
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Licensing Committee (Non Licensing Act 
2003 Functions) 

Date: 26 November 2009 

Time: 3.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Cobb (Chairman), Lepper (Deputy Chair), West, 
Harmer-Strange, Hawkes, Hyde, Kitcat, Marsh, 
Older, Phillips, Pidgeon, Simson, C Theobald, 
Watkins and Wrighton 

Contact: Jane Clarke 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291064 
jane.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout                    

Public Seating 

Press 

Councillor 
Wrighton 

Councillor 
Marsh 

Councillor 
Hawkes 

Councillor 
Lepper 

Councillor 
Older 

Councillor 
Hyde 

Councillor 
Pidgeon 

Councillor 
Mrs 

Theobald 

Councillor 
Phillips 

Councillor 
Mrs Cobb 

Lawyer Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Public 
Speaker 

Councillor 
Harmer-
Strange 

 

Head of 
Department 

Councillor 
Simson 

Councillor 
Watkins 

Councillor 
Kitcat 

Councillor 
West 

Member 
Speaking 



LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

9. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes - Where Councillors are unable to attend a 
meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may 
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 

interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading either that it is confidential or the category under which the 
information disclosed in the report is exempt from disclosure and 
therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the categories of exempt information is 
available for public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

10. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 4 

 

11. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

12. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon on Thursday 
19 November 2009). 
 
No public questions received by date of publication. 

 

 

13. HACKNEY CARRIAGES UNMET DEMAND SURVEY 5 - 146 

 Report of the Director of Environment (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Martin Seymour Tel: 29-6659  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

14. HACKNEY CARRIAGES/PRIVATE HIRE TRADE ETHNICITY 
MONITORING 

147 - 
150 

 Report of the Director of Environment (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Martin Seymour Tel: 29-6659  



LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
 

 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

15. STREET TRADING POLICY 151 - 
172 

 Report of the Director of Environment (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Jean Cranford Tel: 29-2550  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

16. POLICING AND CRIME BILL - SEX ESTABLISHMENTS 
CONSULTATION 

173 - 
208 

 Report of the Director of Environment (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Tim Nichols Tel: 29-2163  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

17. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO COUNCIL  

 To consider items to be submitted to the 10 December 2009 Council 
meeting for information. 
 
In accordance with Procedural Rule 24.3a the Committee may determine 
that any item is to be included in its report to Council.  In addition each 
Minority Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying 
the Chief Executive by 10.00am on 30 November 2009. 

 

 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Jane Clarke, (01273 
291064, email jane.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Wednesday, 18 November 2009 

 

 

 



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
(NON LICENSING ACT 
2003 FUNCTIONS) 

Agenda Item 10 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 
 

 
BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 
3.00PM 25 JUNE 2009 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: Councillors Mrs Cobb (Chairman), Fallon-Khan, Fryer, Hawkes, Hyde, Kitcat, 
Marsh, Pidgeon, Simson, C Theobald, Watkins, West and Young 
 
Apologies: Councillors Lepper, Harmer-Strange, Older and Wrighton 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
1a Declarations of Substitute Members 
 
1.1 Councillor Fryer declared that she was substituting for Councillor Wrighton. 
 
1.2 Councillor Fallon-Khan declared that he was substituting for Councillor Older. 
 
1b Declarations of Interests 
 
1.3 There were none. 
 
1c Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
1.4 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (‘the Act’), the 

Licensing Committee (Non Licensing Act 2003 Functions) considered whether the press 
and public should be excluded from the meeting during an item of business on the 
grounds that it was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, that if members of the press or public were present during 
that item, there would be disclosure to them of confidential information (as defined in 
section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information (as defined in section 100(1) of the 
Act). 

 
1.5 RESOLVED – That the press and public be not excluded.  

1



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 25 JUNE 2009 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
2.1 RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 April 2009 be signed 

as a correct record by the Chairman. 
 
3. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
3.1 The Chairman updated Members on the situation at Brighton Station with regard to taxi 

ranks, and noted that recently all transport operators associated with the station had 
experienced difficulties. A feasibility study was being undertaken by Officers and any 
proposed rank would need to take this into account. She noted that the appointment of a 
rank was a function reserved for the Cabinet Member for Environment, with delegated 
authority to Officers if no objections were received. If a rank were appointed on the 
highway, a Traffic Regulation Order would be needed. 

 
3.2 Councillor West asked if there had been any proposals for a rank at Brighton Station 

currently drawn up and the Chairman replied that there had not. 
 
3.3 Councillor Watkins asked if the station proprietors were under any obligation to have a 

rank and the Head of Environmental Health and Licensing replied that they were not, but 
one was requested because a by-law stated that taxis needed to proceed to the nearest 
available rank when not in use. He added that the situation had been alleviated recently 
by Southern Rail, as they had agreed to stop issuing any more permits and reduce the 
number of permits currently in use at the station by natural wastage. 

 
3.4 The Chairman went on to update Members on the recent suspensions and revocations 

of taxi licences. Since the last meeting, one driver had been given a final warning and 
one garage had been removed from the list of approved garages. 

 
4. CALLOVER 
 
4.1 RESOLVED – That all items are called over. 
 
5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
5.1 There were none. 
 
6. LICENSING ENFORCEMENT POLICY 
 
6.1 The Committee considered a report from the Director of Environment on the Licensing 

Enforcement Policy (for copy see minute book). 
 
6.2 The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing began by stating that this report 

followed a consultation period on the policy and was needed to ensure transparency, 
consistency and efficiency when dealing with licensing enforcement. The policy had 
been updated after DCMS guidance was issued last year, and the Licensing Panels 
were already using this guidance in their determinations of licence applications, 
variations and reviews. 

 

2



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 25 JUNE 2009 

 Responses to the consultation were listed in the report, and it was felt that the policy 
addressed and incorporated the recommendations put forward, and so the 
recommendation from Officers was for adoption of the policy. 

 
6.3 Councillor West was concerned that the changes would have a significant impact on 

Officers’ time, and asked if the department had the capacity to implement this policy. 
The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing stated that budgets were always tight, 
but a restructure of the department had taken place last year and staff members were 
being reduced in some areas via natural wastage to enable an increase in other areas, 
such as the Noise Patrol Team. There was a risk based Licensing Enforcement 
Programme, which enabled the department to manage its programmed and non-
programmed cases on a yearly basis and the Head of Environmental Health and 
Licensing was confident that the department were responding well to current demands. 

 
6.4 Councillor Fryer noted that non-alcohol related problems were not addressed in the 

policy and stated that there was a particular instance in her ward of a premises trading 
late night refreshments beyond their permitted hours, but there seemed to be no 
enforcement action taking place. The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing 
noted the difference between non-compliant premises that were causing suffering to the 
community and non-compliant premises that were not causing suffering. The aim of the 
policy was to target resources at those premises causing suffering and where 
demonstrable harm was being created. 

 
6.5 Councillor Watkins welcomed the risk based approach that was being taken to the 

workload for the department, and asked how compatible this programme was with other 
organisations that the department worked with. The Head of Environmental Health and 
Licensing stated that the department worked very well with other responsible authorities 
and many different aspects of licensing issues were discussed and dealt with regularly 
by all parties. 

 
6.6 Councillor Marsh referred to the lead agency tables contained within the policy and 

noted that proxy sales of alcohol to children listed Sussex Police as the lead agency. 
She had been told in the past that this was monitored by Trading Standards and asked 
for guidance on this area. The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing stated that 
generally sales of alcohol to minors in off-licensed premises were dealt with by Trading 
Standards and in on-licensed premises by Sussex Police. He noted that whilst the 
tables were useful in identifying the agency primarily responsible for the issue, any 
responsible authority could take action where they felt it was appropriate. He added that 
Trading Standards generally conducted business support training and guidance after the 
review process to ensure compliance with the licensing objectives. 

 
6.7 RESOLVED – That the committee adopts the Licensing Enforcement Policy (for copy 

see minute book). 
 
7. DRIVER TRAINING 
 
7.1 The Committee considered a report from the Director of Environment regarding Driver 

Training (for copy see minute book). 
 

3



 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 25 JUNE 2009 

7.2 The Licensing Manager introduced the report and stated that all new Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire drivers were required to undertake training regarding disability 
issues and customer care. The award was a Level 2 BTEC, which was funded by 
central Government. 

 
7.3 Councillor Hawkes asked where drivers could take this training and the Licensing 

Manager replied that there were various different ways to access the training material, 
via classrooms, computers or coursework and the course was tailored to suit the 
individual in this regard. 

 
7.4 Councillor Simson asked if the requirement extended to jockey drivers as well as those 

who owned their own vehicles and the Licensing Manager confirmed that it did. 
 
7.5 Councillor Mrs Theobald stated that she had experienced problems recently with Taxi 

Drivers taking indirect or inappropriate routes through the city, and asked for this to be 
raised at the next Taxi Drivers Forum. Councillor Cobb agreed and noted that there 
were instances of bus lanes being used incorrectly by taxi drivers. The Head of 
Environmental Health and Licensing agreed and noted that some routes in the city were 
currently posing particular problems. Road signage had been checked by Highways 
Officers and was deemed to be correct, and so the next step was to raise the issue at 
the Taxi Drivers’ Forum and consider enforcement action in conjunction with the Police. 

 
7.6 RESOLVED – That: 
 

1. All prospective Hackney Carriage/Private Hire driver applicants shall be required 
to hold the Level 2 BTEC Award in Transporting Passengers by Taxi and Private 
Hire before licensing, from a date agreed by the Director of Environment, and; 

 
2. That the power to approve the training provider is delegated to the Director of 

Environment. 
 
8. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO COUNCIL 
 
8.1 There were none. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 3.30pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Dated this day of  
 

4



LICENSING COMMITTEE 
(NON LICENSING ACT 
2003 FUNCTIONS) 

Agenda Item 13 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

  

Subject: Hackney Carriage Unmet Demand Survey 

Date of Meeting: 26 November 2009 

Report of: Director of Environment 

Contact Officer: Name:  Martin Seymour Tel: 29-6659 

 E-mail:  hco@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
 To present the results of the Hackney Carriage Unmet Demand Survey and 

to give various options available to members to advise the executive. The 
summary and conclusions section of the survey report is appended 
(Appendix A). 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That committee recommends to keep the current number of hackney carriage 

vehicle licences at 528 or;  
 
2.2 Recommends to continue to increase the number of hackney carriage vehicle 

licences issued by the council by 5 annually, such licences to be issued in May 
each year commencing in May 2010 or; 

 
2.3 Recommend to continue to increase the number of hackney carriage vehicle 

licences issued by the council by a reduced number of 2 annually (or such 
number as the committee advises), such licences to be issued in May each year 
commencing in May 2010 or; 

 
2.4 Recommend removing the limit on the number of hackney carriage vehicles 

issued and allow a free entry policy to vehicles, which are constructed or adapted 
and configured to carry passengers seated in wheelchairs, the type and design of 
the vehicle to be agreed by the Director of Environment.  

 
2.5 Recommend any additional licences issued under 2.2 & 2.3 above should be 

issued in accordance with the conditions attached to the Brighton & Hove City 
Council Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence Waiting List and to vehicles which are 
constructed or adapted and configured to carry passengers seated in 
wheelchairs, the type and design of the vehicle to be agreed by the Director of 
Environment). 

 

5



3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

 
3.1 The council licenses hackney carriage vehicles and private hire vehicles. 

The principal differences between the two licensing regimes are (i) hackney 
carriages can ply for hire in the streets and at taxi ranks whilst private hire 
vehicles can only accept bookings made through a private hire operator (ii) 
powers exist to limit the numbers of hackney carriages in prescribed 
circumstances but there is no power to limit the number of private hire 
vehicles (iii) the council prescribes fares for hackney carriages but has no 
power to determine fares for private hire bookings. 

 
3.2 This council last reviewed its policy of quantity control of hackney carriages 

on 27 November 2008.  
 

3.3 This latest review aims to address two key issues (i) the number of hackney 
carriage vehicles (ii) the percentage of those vehicles which are wheelchair 
accessible.  

 
3.4 Section 16 of the Road Transport Act 1985 gives the council the power to 

refuse the grant of a licence for the purpose of limiting the number of 
hackney carriage vehicles within its area, but only if it is satisfied that there 
is no significant demand for the service of hackney carriages within its area 
which is unmet. At present council policy limits the number of hackney 
carriage vehicle licenses to 528 with 5 additional licenses issued annually in 
May.  

 
3.5 The Department of Transport has issued Best Practice guidance regarding 

limiting numbers policies. (Appendices B).  Most local licensing authorities 
do not impose quantity restrictions; the Department regards that as best 
practice. 

 
3.6 Because of its policy of limiting numbers, from time to time the council must 

commission an independent study to establish whether there is any 
significant unmet demand for the service of hackney carriages in Brighton 
and Hove. The Council recently commissioned such a study from 
independent transport consultants, Halcrow Group Limited, who produced 
their study report in October 2009.  

 
3.7 In view of the study findings which found there to be no significant unmet 

demand Members have a discretion to recommend to the council one of the 
following options: either (i) delimit, i.e. to remove the limitation on numbers; 
or (ii) continue with a restricted numbers policy but allow expansion of the 
fleet in a controlled manner; or (iii) keep the current number of hackney 
carriages vehicle licences at 528. 

 
3.8 If Members decide to recommend to keep the current level of licences at 

528 then the council would be required to commission a further survey to 
assess demand in around 3 years time. If Members decide to continue with 
a restricted numbers policy but with a policy of managed growth in line with 

6



paragraph 2.1 or 2.2 then the council would be required to commission a 
further survey to assess demand in around 3 years time. If Members decide 
to delimit the council would not be required to commission a further survey. 

 
3.9 The council maintains a waiting list for hackney carriage vehicle licences 

which currently has 114 applicants on it. It is recommended that all 
additional licences be offered to applicants in accordance with the 
conditions attached to the waiting list. This means that they would be 
offered to applicants according to their position on the list.   

 
3.10 There are two potential avenues of legal challenge; an aggrieved party 

could seek judicial review of the committee’s decision, and applicants on 
the waiting list could appeal against the refusal of a licence to the Courts. 

 
4. THE TYPE OF VEHICLE TO BE LICENSED: 

 
4.1 Taxis provide an important means of transport for disabled people and are 

often the only viable option available. The council’s hackney carriage fleet is 
mixed; consisting of saloon cars and specially constructed or adapted 
wheelchair accessible vehicles. Locally, representatives of disabled groups 
have asked for the continued provision of a mixed fleet. This reflects the 
differing needs and preferences of the travelling public, including those who 
find it difficult to negotiate entry into wheelchair accessible vehicles and to 
sit down easily, and those confined to travelling in wheelchairs.  However 
there is general consensus that there are too few disabled accessible 
vehicles. 

 
4.2 Although unrelated to the concept of significant unmet demand in the 1985 

Transport Act, Halcrow were asked to look at the issue of wheelchair 
accessibility via telephone bookings. Halcrow has identified significantly 
longer waiting times for wheelchair accessible vehicles compared with 
ordinary saloon cars when booked by telephone. To alleviate this 
discrepancy they estimate that an additional 428 wheelchair accessible 
vehicles are required. It should be noted that this demand is principally a 
private hire demand and the requirement for additional accessible vehicles 
is not necessarily a requirement for more licensed vehicles, but for greater 
accessibility. 

 
4.3 Members are therefore recommended to require that additional hackney 

carriage licences are restricted to wheelchair accessible vehicles. This will 
underline the council’s commitment to those who suffer physical disability. 
However, in the interests of continuing to maintain a mixed fleet this policy, 
if continued, would need to be reviewed after a suitable interval, for 
example when the next unmet demand survey is undertaken.  

 
4.4 If Members decide not recommend to so restrict the vehicles, then there is a 

risk of legal challenge from hackney carriage licence holders who were 
previously issued licences for wheelchair accessible vehicles, on the ground 
that the restriction on their licences is unreasonable. If successful, this 
would lead to a reduction in the number of wheelchair accessible vehicles. 

7



In view of the survey findings, disability interest groups or individuals might 
also challenge such a decision. 

 
5. RELATED ISSUES:  

 
5.1 The main purpose of the survey was to determine whether or not there 

exists a significant unmet demand for hackney carriages and to determine 
the number of licences required to meet any identified unmet demand. 
There are other related issues which the council needs to keep under 
review in the longer term, such as the response to telephone bookings for 
wheelchair accessible vehicles referred to in 4.2 above, initiatives to 
encourage hackney carriage and private hire drivers to work unsociable 
hours, particularly at the weekends when there are peaks in night-time 
demand, the level of fares and measures to improve driver and passenger 
safety. 

 
5.2 Crime reduction initiatives such as driver safety screens and in-car CCTV 

cameras have previously been supported by Committee. Other initiatives 
are still being developed including links with the community safety team and 
improved partnership between the taxi trade and the police. The level of 
fares are reviewed regularly including the question of whether there is 
justification to increase the differential between daytime and night-time fares 
to encourage drivers to work at times of peak demand.    

 
6. CONSULTATION: 
 
6.1 Officers have consulted with trade representatives on the Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Consultation Forum, including attending a meeting with the 
consultant, forum members and the police to discuss points the trade 
wished to clarify. 
 

6.2 Halcrow’s consultations were with Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Trade Representatives; Taxis Operators; Disability representatives and 
Social Services; and Police and Community Safety Partnership.  

 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
7.1 Financial Implications: 
 

• The cost of the current Unmet Demand Survey was met from within 
existing revenue budgets. The cost of future Unmet Demand Surveys 
will be contained within the annual licence fee for all hackney carriages. 

• The Council sets the fee rates for both hackney carriages and private 
hire vehicles. Total income in 2008-9 from fees was £285,000. 

• If the number of hackney carriages is allowed to increase this will not 
necessarily result in an increase in income overall, as it may be offset 
by a reduction in private hire vehicles. 

• If the decision is taken to continue with a limitation policy, then there is 
the possibility of a legal challenge to the decision in court. The costs of 

8



any such challenge would have to be met from within existing budgets, 
funded from the fee income. 

• If the decision is taken to delimit the number of taxis, then subsequent 
monitoring of taxi ranks may reveal a need to expand their size or 
number, which the Council would be responsible for funding. Such costs 
could range from a few hundred pounds to a few thousand pounds, 
depending on the specific circumstances.  

  
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 24/10/2009 
  
7.2 Legal Implications 
 
 These are dealt with in the body of the report. 
 
 Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell Date: 23/10/2009 
 
7.3 Equalities Implications: 
 
 The Department of Transport had planned to make taxi accessibility 

regulations under the Disability Discrimination Act but admitted that it could 
not be achieved in a way that would be acceptable to both disabled people 
and the taxi trade for the time being.  It is recommended that Councils make 
their own policy concerning accessible taxis in their area.   

 
           To issue extra licences each year will counter criticism that the hackney 

carriage vehicle licence waiting list may be discriminatory because it does 
not move as no extra licences are issued. 

 
7.4 Sustainability Implications: 
 
 The role of the taxi trade is included in the Local Transport Plan, which 

identifies it as a key element in providing sustainable transport choices.  It 
creates important links in the transport network to other forms of sustainable 
transport providing a seamless connection.  It will contribute to three of the 
government’s four shared transport priorities – reducing congestion, 
improving air quality and accessibility.  Use of taxis for school transport, 
licensed vehicles using bus lanes, locating ranks at railway stations and the 
city coach station, approved use of liquid petroleum gas all contribute to 
reducing congestion and moving passengers quickly.   

  
7.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
 Sufficient late night transport to reduce public place violent crime is 

recognised in the community safety, crime reduction and drugs strategy. 
The presence of CCTV can be an important means of deterring and 
detecting crime. 

9



7.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
    The transport industry should be safe, profitable and be a positive 

experience for residents and visitors. 
  
7.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 

Tourism needs to provide a warm welcome to visitors and the tourism 
strategy depends upon effective partnership with transport operators 
particularly to achieve safe late night dispersal for the night time economy.  

 
 
 
 
 

10



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
 

Appendices: 
 
A.  Summary and Conclusions from the Halcrow Group Limited Hackney 

Carriage Demand Survey – October 2009. 
 
B. Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing: Best Practice Guidance 2005 

(Department for Transport). 
 
 
Documents in Members Rooms: 
 
1. None. 
 
 
Background Documents: 
 
1. None. 
  

 

11



Item 13: APPENDIX A 
 

Summary and Conclusions   

Introduction 

Halcrow has conducted a study of the hackney carriage market on behalf of 

Brighton & Hove City Council.   

The present study has been conducted in pursuit of the following objectives: 

• to identify whether or not there exists a significant 
unmet demand for hackney carriage services in 
Brighton and Hove;  

 

• to recommend the increase in licences required to 
eliminate any significant unmet demand; and 

 

• to assess any significant unmet demand for disabled 

access hackney carriage vehicles at ranks and 

telephone booked demand.   

This section provides a brief description of the work undertaken and 

summarises the conclusions and implications for regulatory policy. 

 

Significant Unmet Demand 

The 2009 study has identified that there is NO evidence of significant unmet 

demand for hackney carriages in Brighton & Hove. This conclusion is based 

on an assessment of the implications of case law that has emerged since 

2000, and the results of Halcrow’s analysis. 

On this basis the authority has discretion in its hackney licensing policy and 

may either: 

• continue to limit the number of vehicles at  528 with 

additional wheelchair accessible licences issued 

annually as the authority sees fit; 

• issue any number of additional plates as it sees fit, 

either in one allocation or a series of allocations; or 

• remove the limit on the number of vehicles and allow 

a free entry policy. 

12



 

Summary of Consultation – Interested Parties 

 

The Department for Transport had requested that licensing authorities consult 

widely to inform their policy making in respect of continued entry control to the 

hackney carriage market. In addition to the consultation that has routinely been 

included in previous market studies (correspondence with interested parties), 

Halcrow has followed the prescribed approach and sought the views of all those 

involved in the taxi trade.  

 

Stakeholders were generally happy with the numbers of hackney carriages but 

highlighted more wheelchair accessible vehicles should be made available. 

Particular problems were highlighted with regard to the availability of accessible 

vehicles at school contract times. Reference was made to the need to improve 

driver training opportunities. Rank availability was the other key issue 

highlighted. It is clear stakeholders do not all consider ranks are sufficient or in 

the right location.   

 

Summary of Consultation – General Public 

Some 493 interviews were carried in June 2009.  The key results are as follows: 

• Some 63% of respondents had used a taxi in Brighton & 
Hove within the last three months; 

• High levels of satisfaction with delay on last trip  

• Some 13% of respondents had given up trying to obtain 
a vehicle by rank or flagdown; 

• Some 55% of respondents feel that taxi services in 
Brighton & Hove could be improved (need to be 
cheaper); and 

• Majority of respondents felt safe using taxis during the 
day and night; 

• Some 68% of respondents said that they would not be 
willing to pay a surcharge to fund marshals; and 

• Some 44% of respondents stated that they would use 

pedicabs. 

 

13



Summary of Consultation – Trade 
Some 506 members of the trade responded to a trade survey.  The key 

results are as follows: 

• The majority of the hackney carriage trade and private 
hire trade thought training was not sufficient and English 
language training in particular was required; 

• Majority of drivers feel safe some of the time whilst 
working in Brighton and Hove; 

• Some 89% of hackney carriage respondents stated that 
there was not sufficient rank space in Brighton and 
Hove; and 

• Some 41% of hackney respondents stated that they 
would leave the trade should the authority de-restrict. 

 

Conclusions 

The 2009 study has identified that there is NO evidence of significant unmet 

demand for hackney carriages in Brighton & Hove. This conclusion is based 

on an assessment of the implications of case law that has emerged since 

2000, and the results of Halcrow’s analysis. 

On this basis the authority has discretion in its hackney licensing policy and 

may either: 

• continue to limit the number of vehicles at 528 with 

additional wheelchair accessible licences issued 

annually as the authority sees fit; 

• issue any number of additional plates as it sees fit, 

either in one allocation or a series of allocations; or 

• remove the limit on the number of vehicles and allow 

a free entry policy. 

 

14



Item 13: APPENDIX B 

 
Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing: Best Practice Guidance 2005 
(Department  for Transport) 

The present legal provision on quantity restrictions for taxis outside London is 
set out in section 16 of the Transport Act 1985. This provides that the grant of 
a taxi licence may be refused, for the purpose of limiting the number of 
licensed taxis 'if, but only if, the [local licensing authority] is satisfied that there 
is no significant demand for the services of hackney carriages (within the area 
to which the licence would apply) which is unmet'. 

Local licensing authorities will be aware that, in the event of a challenge to a 
decision to refuse a licence, the local authority concerned would have to 
establish that it had, reasonably, been satisfied that there was no significant 
unmet demand. 

Most local licensing authorities do not impose quantity restrictions; the 
Department regards that as best practice.  

Where restrictions are imposed, the Department would urge that the matter 
should be regularly reconsidered. The Department further urges that the issue 
to be addressed first in each reconsideration is whether the restrictions should 
continue at all. It is suggested that the matter should be approached in terms 
of the interests of the travelling public - that is to say, the people who use taxi 
services. What benefits or disadvantages arise for them as a result of the 
continuation of controls; and what benefits or disadvantages would result for 
the public if the controls were removed? Is there evidence that removal of the 
controls would result in deterioration in the amount or quality of taxi service 
provision? 

In most cases where quantity restrictions are imposed, vehicle licence plates 
command a premium, often of tens of thousands of pounds. This indicates 
that there are people who want to enter the taxi market and provide a service 
to the public, but who are being prevented from doing so by the quantity 
restrictions. This seems very hard to justify. 

If a local authority does nonetheless take the view that a quantity restriction 
can be justified in principle, there remains the question of the level at which it 
should be set, bearing in mind the need to demonstrate that there is no 
significant unmet demand. This issue is usually addressed by means of a 
survey; it will be necessary for the local licensing authority to carry out a 
survey sufficiently frequently to be able to respond to any challenge to the 
satisfaction of a court. An interval of three years is commonly regarded as the 
maximum reasonable period between surveys. 

As to the conduct of the survey, the Department's letter of 16 June 2004 set 
out a range of considerations. But key points are: 

15



• the length of time that would-be customers have to wait at ranks. 
However, this alone is an inadequate indicator of demand; also taken 
into account should be...  

• waiting times for street hailings and for telephone bookings. But 
waiting times at ranks or elsewhere do not in themselves satisfactorily 
resolve the question of unmet demand. It is also desirable to address...  

• latent demand, for example people who have responded to long 
waiting times by not even trying to travel by taxi. This can be assessed 
by surveys of people who do not use taxis, perhaps using stated 
preference survey techniques.  

• peaked demand. It is sometimes argued that delays associated only 
with peaks in demand (such as morning and evening rush hours, or 
pub closing times) are not 'significant' for the purpose of the Transport 
Act 1985. The Department does not share that view. Since the peaks in 
demand are by definition the most popular times for consumers to use 
taxis, it can be strongly argued that unmet demand at these times 
should not be ignored. Local authorities might wish to consider when 
the peaks occur and who is being disadvantaged through restrictions 
on provision of taxi services.  

• consultation. As well as statistical surveys, assessment of quantity 
restrictions should include consultation with all those concerned, 
including user groups (which should include groups representing 
people with disabilities, and people such as students or women), the 
police, hoteliers, operators of pubs and clubs and visitor attractions, 
and providers of other transport modes (such as train operators, who 
want taxis available to take passengers to and from stations);  

• publication. All the evidence gathered in a survey should be 
published, together with an explanation of what conclusions have been 
drawn from it and why. If quantity restrictions are to be continued, their 
benefits to consumers and the reason for the particular level at which 
the number is set should be set out.  

• financing of surveys. It is not good practice for surveys to be paid for 
by the local taxi trade (except through general revenues from licence 
fees). To do so can call in question the impartiality and objectivity of the 
survey process.  

Quite apart from the requirement of the 1985 Act, the Department's letter of 16 June 
2004 asked all local licensing authorities that operate quantity restrictions to review their 
policy and justify it publicly by 31 March 2005 and at least every three years thereafter. 
The Department also expects the justification for any policy of quantity restrictions to be 
included in the five-yearly Local Transport Plan process. 

16



�

Brighton and Hove City Council 

Hackney Carriage Demand Survey 

Final Report 

October 2009 

Halcrow Group Limited 

 

�

�

17



�

Halcrow Group Limited 
Arndale House  Otley Road  Headingley  Leeds  LS6 2UL 

Tel +44 (0)113 220 8220  Fax +44 (0)113 274 2924 

www.halcrow.com 

 

Halcrow Group Limited has prepared this report in accordance with 

the instructions of their client, Brighton & Hove City Council, for their 

sole and specific use. Any other persons who use any information 

contained herein do so at their own risk. 

 

© Halcrow Group Limited 2009 

Brighton and Hove City Council 

Hackney Carriage Demand Survey 

Final Report 

October 2009 

Halcrow Group Limited 

�

18



�

Halcrow Group Limited 
Arndale House  Otley Road  Headingley  Leeds  LS6 2UL 

Tel +44 (0)113 220 8220  Fax +44 (0)113 274 2924 

www.halcrow.com 

�

19



�

 

Brighton and Hove City Council 

Hackney Carriage Demand Survey 

Final Report 
�

Contents Amendment Record 
��������	�
��������
���������
�����
��������	��	����

�

������ ������	
� �������
�	
� ��
��� ���
���

�� �� ����
����	�
� ���� �� � �!�

�� �� "�
������	�
� ������� � ##�

� � � � �

� � � � �

� � � � �

� � � � �

� � � � �

� � � � �

20



�

 

Contents 

1 Study Objectives and Overview 1 

��� �������	 � 

2 Background 2 


�� �������	 
 


�
 �������
	��
��	���
���	������
����	 
 


�� �����
��	���	����	��������	 
 


�� ����������	
�	
��	�������	��������	 ����
	��	�����
��	���	

����	 � 


�! "��������	�#	�������	��������	$
����	 � 


�% �������	��������	&����	���	'������	"��(��(�	 % 


�) '����	*����+��
	"���	 , 


�- '����	.���	.����(��
	 , 

3 Definition, Measurement and Removal of Significant 

Unmet Demand 10 

��� /�
�����
���	 �0 

��
 ��������	 �0 

��� 1�#�����	$����#����
	2�(�
	1�(���	 �0 

���  ��������	"�
��
	$����#����
	2�(�
	1�(���	 �
 

��! 1�
��(�����	
��	3�(4��	�#	3��	'�������	��5�����	
�	���(���
�	

$����#����
	2�(�
	1�(���	 �� 

��% 3�
�	��	$��+�	�#	.��������	$����#����
	2�(�
	1�(���	 �% 

4 Evidence of Patent Unmet Demand – Rank Observation 

Results 17 

��� /�
�����
���	 �) 

��
 *��	�������	�#	$�++��	���	1�(���	 �) 

��� .������	1�����	���	*�
��	1�(���	 �- 

��� *��	1����61�(���	"��#���	 �, 

��! *��	��������
�	�#	+��������	�����	 
� 

��% *��	�##��
���	$�++��	�#	7�������	 

 

5 Evidence of Suppressed Demand - Public Attitude 

Pedestrian Survey Results 23 

!�� /�
�����
���	 
� 

!�
 $������	/(+����(��
�	 
% 

21



�

 

!�� "�4���	.��������	 
) 

!�� $�#�
�	8	$�����
�	 
) 

!�! "�����4�	 
, 

6 Deriving the Significant Unmet Demand Index value 30 

%�� /�
�����
���	 �0 

%�
 �����
��	8	����	��(+����	
�	�
���	1��
���
�	 �0 

%�� �����
�	�#	
��	��(+������	��
�	"�������	$
�����	 �� 

7 Consultation 33 

)�� /�
�����
���	 �� 

)�
 1����
	������
�
���	 �� 

)�� /������
	������
�
���	 �� 

8 Trade Survey 46 

-�� /�
�����
���	 �% 

-�
 $�����	.�(����
��
���	 �% 

-�� �������	�+���
�����	/�����	 �% 

-�� 1������	 �) 

-�! $�#�
�	8	$�����
�	 !0 

-�% �����	 !
 

-�) &����	 !� 

-�- *�������	 !� 

-�, *�9�	 ����
	��	�����
��	���	����	 !� 

9 Disabled Access 64 

,�� /�
�����
���	 %� 

,�
 ������
	"��������	 %� 

,�� �4������	��(���	 %� 

,��  ��
���	$��++��	$�����	 %! 

,�! ���
�(��	$������	 %! 

,�% �������	
��	����	#��	����������	�������4��	��4�	 %! 

10 Summary and Conclusions 67 

�0�� /�
�����
���	 %) 

�0�
 $����#����
	2�(�
	1�(���	 %) 

�0�� $�((���	�#	������
�
���	:	/�
����
��	"��
���	 %- 

�0�� $�((���	�#	������
�
���	:	�������	"�4���	 %- 

�0�! $�((���	�#	������
�
���	:	*����	 %- 

22



�

 

�0�% �����������	 %, 

�

��

�

�

23



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

1 Study Objectives and Overview 

��� �������	

����� ������
��$��������
��	
���
����$�%����	��	
�������� 	��&����
	
��
��%	���'	�
���� �
�

������
�	��
����	��	��
��	�(��
������

• 
	� ���

��$����
����	��
	
�
������)��
�������
�����

��
��
�����
���	�����*
�$�

�������������������
�&����
	
��
��%	��+��

• 
	� ���	���
�� 
��� �
������� �
� ����
���� ��,������ 
	� �����
�
�� �
$� ���
�����

�

�
��
�����
�+��
��

• 
	���������
$����
�����

��
��
�����
���	���������������������*
�$����������

����������
���
*���
��
�����	
���		*�������
�����

����� �
����-�
���������	������.&��
�!���
����/����
��0��	��
�)������
��
�������������
������	�

���
�
���
��
�
��������	
��������
�
	�������
�����
����
	
�
	����	���,��

�
$����
���
�	
����

%	������ ������ ���
���
�	
�� ���� ���	���1� 
��� �����
��

� ������ 
��
� 
��� ��

��� ���

��������$����	
�����������

����2 �������������
��� ��� (��
� 
��
1������
���� �3�������
������	���
$���
���� 4	����	�	���5�

���
����
��������
�	
�
��
��	���������
�
����������
�
��
��	���
��

�$��	

�	���	���$��
�
���

�	

�)
�	���	�������*
�$�������������*�
���������������	�$�	���������
������������������

�
�� �������

� ��	���� ��� �
�����
��� �$� 
���� �����
���� �6	
��
��
�
��
�� 
���1� 
��� �	����

��
�	��
$���$������
	�
�*��
���������
����

	��	
������
�	
����
���
����
�
���
���	���$1�

���
�������$�����
�
����	�
�����
���$��
�������������		����
	��)�������
��������	
��

�$�

�	

�	���
�!���������2���

; ��
	 �����	 ���������	 ��
����
���	 ��	 ��
	 �(+���	 5���
�
�	 ���
���
����<	 
��	 1�+��
(��
	

�������	
��
	��	4��
	+���
����=	

�

24



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

2 Background 


�� �������	

����� ��������
�	
�	��
������	�
���	����������
��������*��	�
��
	�
���
�)�����*�
� �
�&����
	
�

�
��%	����
�� 
��� ������

� �������
�	
��	���
�
�� 
������*�
������� ���
�	
�	�� 
��� ���	�
�

���	���	�����������*��	�
��
	�������

��	�����	���$��


�
 �������
	��
��	���
���	������
����	

����� 7
���� 
��� �	�
� !	����� '������� 8�
� �9:;1� �� ����
��
�� ��
�	��
$� ���� �
� �
��

�����

������
�	
�
	�����
�
���
������	�����*
�$��������������
�����$����
�������
	�����
���	
�$�

����� 
������� ��� �
� 
�	���
� ��
�� �
� ���� �� �	���1� ������ ���� �����$� ����� �$� ��
$�

��
�	��
���� 
	� ���
���
� 
��� 
������� 	�� ���*
�$� ���������� �	�� 
��� ����	��� 	�� �)������
��

�	

�	�� �
�� ���������	
� 	���� 
�����7
���� 
��� ���
��	�
� 8�
� � 9<1� 
��� �	��
�	
� �
� ����

���
�����
��
����9:;�8�
1����
	�����
�����$����
�	
��-1���	����������	��	����

>*��
	 
��	 ����
	 �#	 �	 �������	 (��	 4�	 ��#����	 #��	 +��+����	 �#	 ��(�
���	 
��	 ��(4��	 �#	

�������	���������?@	 �#	4�
	����	 �#@	 
��	+�����	��
�������	 
�	����
	�	 �������	 ��	��
��#���	


��
	 
����	 ��	 ��	 �����#����
	 ��(���	 #��	 
��	 ��������	 �#	 �������	 ���������?	 �����	 ��	

��(�
A�	

����� ���� 8�
� ���	� ��	������ �	�� �
� �������� ��	������� ������$� �
����������� �������

�� �	��

���*
�$���������� ����
������$��������	
��
���
�	��
$� 
	����	
�
��
��
��
� �
� �����
�������


��
�
������)��
��
	����
�����

��
��
�����
�����1��
�
����$���	��
���'	��
1�
���8�
�	��
$�

������ 
	����
� 
���� ��,������

1� 
��������������
�
� 
��� �������� 
	� �������� ����
�����������

�������������


�� �����
��	���	����	��������	

��2�� ���� '�
$� 	�� &����
	
� �
�� %	��� ��� ��
��
��� 	
� 
��� �	�
�� �	��
� 	�� =
���
�� �
�� ���� ��

�	����
�	
� 	�� �:;19��� 4'�
���� ����5�� ���� ����� ��� �� �	������ �	����$� ���
�
�
�	
� �
��

�

���
������	)���
��$�����
������	
�����
	�����$�����&����
	
��
��%	������������$�����
�$�


���
�
������	
	�$���
��
����	���������
��
���
��������
��
����
�
���
	�
���

���
��
�

�������
������
����	����
���
������
��:����

�

25



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 


�� ����������	
�	
��	�������	��������	 ����
	��	�����
��	���	����	

��:�� &����
	
� �
�� %	��� ����
�� 
��� 
������ 	�� ���*
�$� ����������� 8
� 
��� 
���� 	�� 
��� �
��$�

�	���
���� 
��� ������ ���� ��
� �
� <�2� ��
�� �
� ����
�	
��� ����� ����������� �����������

����
������������

����$����������������
�����	����� ����������������
�>�$���� ����
��
��


��� 
	
��� ��	����	
� ��� 
	� <�9�� ����� ������ �� ������ 	�� ���*
�$� ��������� ��	����	
� 	�� 	
��

������������:;��������

��	����
�	
��%��*
�$������������
�&����
	
��
��%	����������
��

�
��	�	�����
��������
��	

�
��
���		
��8������������������		�����
���������
������
���

��
$��	�
�����	�	���
��
����	����?@���
������)�A1��
�����
�������$������
��	
�
��������	��


���������������������������

�$���-��������������������������*
�$������������

��:�� ���������
�����������
��	
���
��	��:<:������������
�	����
��������������
��
����8�
	
���	�����

�����������
��
�
�������
����������������������������!����
����������������������		�����
��

��������$� ?!����
��%���A�	�� ?!��	��&		*�
��B
�$A���	
����
���� 
�����	
��
����������$�

���
����	�������$�������
�����
������
��	
�
��������	��
�������������


�! "��������	�#	�������	��������	$
����	

��<�� ����������:;�
�)����
*���
�&����
	
��
��%	�����	����
���������	����
	
���	����9����������

4����8���
��)��5���8���	��
�����
*��������	�������$�&����
	
��
��%	���'�
$�'	�
������
��


��� �)���
�	
� 	�� 
��� &����
	
� ������$� �
�
�	
� ��
*� ������ ��� ��	������ �$� 
��� ������$�

8�
�	��
$��!��
�����C:����
�����	���	��
�����
*���

��������� ��	��
��������
��

�

26



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������� ��	��
��������
��

�

�������� ��������
�����
���
��

�

27



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������� ����
	�
��������
��

�

��<�� "������ ���� �
����
��� �	�� ��
*� ��	����	
� ���� ���
���� �
� ��
�� ��
�� ���*
�$� ���������


��������

�������������
�������	��
����� �
��������	��
�

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2006 2009

Year

N
u

m
b

e
r

Hackney carriages

Rank spaces

�

28



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 


�% �������	��������	&����	���	'������	"��(��(�	

��-�� %��*
�$��������������������������
����$�
���@	����8�
�	��
$��������������)�
���������������

	
���	
���
��	��>	
��$�
	���
����$���$
����4-��C����51�
������
�	��	
���
��	�����
�
���

4����C-��51���
��$����
���
�-����
��������
��������� 
������	
���
��	��"����$��
��

��
����$� 
���
�� ��
���
� ����� �
�� -���� �������� :1� <� �
�� -� ���� �	�� ��
*� �
�� �������

�	����$����

��-�� ��������� ����������� 	�� 
�	������

�+��
� �
�
���� ���� 4	�� ?��	�A5�	�� D��:�� �	���

���
�� 
���

���������
��
�������
���
$����
�
������
	�;�<�$�����	��2���
�
���������	
���	�����
�
��


���� 	�� �� �	���
�
�	
� 	�� �	
��� "	�� ����� ����
�	
��� �;-� $����� 
��������� 	�� :9� ���	
���

���
�
�� 
����	���� �	���
�
�	
�	���	
�� 
��� ���� ��������8� 
�	C����� ����� �	�� 
���������	����


�����	��� ��� D<�-��� ������� �� ���� �
� �
�
���� ���� 	�� D2���� �	�� �

���
�� 
��� �������� �
��


�������
�� �
$� ���
�
��� ��� 
	� ;�<� $����� 	�� 2���
�
��� ��� ���	
��� 	�����
�
�� 
���� 	�� ��

�	���
�
�	
�	���	
���"	�����������
�	
����;-�$�����
���������	��:9����	
������
�
��
����

	�����	���
�
�	
�	���	
��
���������������8�
�	C�����(	��
�$��	��
���������	����
�����	������

D-�:�������������	�
��
���
���������
���
�����
��	�����
�����

�

!�"������#�$���%��
�&�������� �
���'�������������!���((��))*�

� !���((�+� !���((�$�

!���((���,�
��
-��-�'%�����

+�����	��������%���
�.	��/ �����%�	��0�
���
�-��
�����((	��

�
�
���������	���
$����
�
���
������������
	�;�<�$�����4-:<���
���5�	��2���
�
������	�����	���
�
�	
�	�����
�
���
�
��
������

"	������������,��

��;-�$�����4�-����
���5�	��:9����	
���	�����	���
�
�	
�	�����
�
����
��
����

�

�

D��:��

����

�

�

D2�-��

2���

!���((���1�2����3��%���

4�
-������
����-���"�����
��)�0��
-�5�0���%����%�
��
-�������((����
�
-��	�1�"�����
�5�0��
-��)�0��

�
�
���������	���
$����
�
���
������������
	�;�<�$�����4����	)���
��$�-:<���
���5�	��2���
�
���������	
���	����
�	���
�
�	
�	�����
�
����
��
�����

"	������������,��

��;-�$�����4����	)���
��$��-����
���5�	��:9����	
������
�
��
����	�����	���
�
�	
�	��
���
�
����
��
�����

�

�

�

D2����

����

�

�

�

D:�9��

2���

!���((���1�2����3��%��

���-���
��%���
-�
����-���
��%���
���"�����
�����0��
-�5�0��%��(������
��-����

�
�
���������	���
$����
�
���
������������
	�;�<�$�����4����	)���
��$�-:<���
���5�	��2���
�
���������	
���	����
�	���
�
�	
�	�����
�
����
��
�����

"	������������,��

��;-�$�����4����	)���
��$��-����
���5�	��:9����	
������
�
��
����	�����	���
�
�	
�	��
���
�
����
��
�����

�

�

D:����

�

����

�

�

D-�2��

�

2���

!���((���1�$�
�������"�� �����-���

$�
�������"�� �%���-������5�0��%��(������
��-����/ ��-�
���%����0�	� �����-�"���%��'%��	�0�	��
-�3���
6�����/���� %�������

�

�

�

�

�

�

29



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

� !���((�+� !���((�$�

�
�
���������	���
$����
�
���
������������
	�;�<�$�����4����	)���
��$�-:<���
���5�	��2���
�
���������	
���	����
�	���
�
�	
�	�����
�
����
��
�����

"	������������,��

��;-�$�����4����	)���
��$��-����
���5�	��:9����	
������
�
��
����	�����	���
�
�	
�	��
���
�
����
��
����

D2�:��

����

D<����

2���

!���((�7�1�'%��	�0�	�8���&�$�/�
��8���

$�����
��)�0����8� �0"����
-�5�0��9�8� �0"��:��
-�7�0��
-��)�0��
��	��;�
������

�
�
���������	���
$����
�
���
������������
	�;�<�$�����4����	)���
��$�-:<���
���5�	��2���
�
���������	
���	����
�	���
�
�	
�	�����
�
����
��
�����

"	������������,��

��;-�$�����4����	)���
��$��-����
���5�	��:9����	
������
�
��
����	�����	���
�
�	
�	��
���
�
����
��
����

�

�

D2�-��

2���

�

�

D<�:��

:<��

!���((�5�1�3���6����

$�����
��)�0����8� �0"����
-�7�0��	��;�
������

�
�
���������	���
$����
�
���
������������
	�;�<�$�����4����	)���
��$�-:<���
���5�	��2���
�
���������	
���	����
�	���
�
�	
�	�����
�
����
��
�����

"	������������,��

��;-�$�����4����	)���
��$��-����
���5�	��:9����	
������
�
��
����	�����	���
�
�	
�	��
���
�
����
��
����

�

�

D2�-��

�

2���

�

�

D<�:��

�

:<��

<�%���'%����	�

"	���
��'������

&		*�
�������	��
�����	
���
�����C�		*�������
���

�������������$���������	�����������	��
	��0����������������������������
�������������
��
������
	�������	��������
�	���
���5�

�

D<�����

:���

�

D<�����

-���

$�����)		�����
��	*	����	��
�	�������+	,���	
--.	

��-�2 �
� 
��� ���������� �	

��$� ������� 
����1� &����
	
� �
�� %	��� ��� ��
*��� <9� 	�� 
��� 2;;�

��
�	��
������
��� 4!����
��%�����
����)��>	

��$1�E��$���� 5������� �����	��� 
��� ������	��

������ 
$������ ���������� ���	��� 
��� 7#�� ������ ���� ��	������ �� �	������	
� 	�� ������


�����	���
����
�	��
������
*��
�
�����	���������������

�

�

�

�

�

30



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

!�"������#�'�0����	�
��(�3���%"����
��+��%������	��
�!��0	��(�����	�=(�����	�����

��
��-������(����������(��99�+��%������	����%���"��
���%��0�	���/��
	���>�

2� ���+��%������ ��
�� +����������,0����
?���
���

8���� 2� D-�-��

8��
� ;� D-�2��

>��������)� ��� D-����

=��
�	��
�� :-� D<�;��

$���%��
��
-������ 7@� A7�5)�

%	������ 9:� D<�<��

@��������
���
� ��2� D<�:��

3	�
��
�� �;�� D<����

$�����)	"����
�	����	���	/�0�	 ��
���+	,���	
--.	

��-�: 3������	�������*
�$�������������*�
���������(��
�
	��	
���������
���

�$� ������
�	
1��
�

�����	��	
�$����
�
��������
��
�����

���������
	�
���	�
�������	��
���������������
����

�������

�	��?�������A������������
�
	��������������
��$����
�����C�����	��������������
����

��� 
	
� �
�	������� �$� 
��� 8�
�	��
$�� ���� %��*
�$� '�������� 
����� ��
���
��� 
��
� 
���

�������������	��������
����
�&����
	
��
��%	���������	�
���
	�����
�
�������	
�	��D2<1�����

��������������
������
�$���	��
�����
���
��	��D:�1��������������
������������	�
�������
��


������-��
��$���

��-�< ���� �)��
�
��� 	�� �� ����
��� �������� ��� �����
��� 	�� ?�)����A� ��	��
+� 
��
� ��1� ��	��
� 
��
�

�	����
	
��)��
����
���������	�������$�	�����*
�$�����������������
����
����$�
������*�
�

��
���� 
��
� �$� 
��� ������
	��� @���
��� ��������� �	� 
	
� �)��
� �
� 8�
�	��
���� ������

,��

�
$� �	

�	��� ���� ����

�� ����� �	��� 
	
� ���
� 
��
� ��� (����� ���*
�$� ���������

��	����
	����
�&����
	
��
��%	���
	������*�
��
		�������	
�$���
����
	
���
��
�	�������
�


	� �	���

� 	
� ���
� ��� 	�� ��� 
	
� �
� ����	����
�� ��
�� 	�� ����
���
�	
� ��	�� ���*
�$�

���������	����
�	
������
����?�)����A���	��
������$����
��
��
����
�
�����	����$�
���	��

�����������������
������

�
��
�
��$��	������������������

�$��	���$������

�	�������

��-�- 8�
�	���� �� �������� ��� �� ������ �
����
	�� 	�� ������� 
��
� ?���*�
A� ��	��
�� �
� ��� 
	
�


���������$��
��
����
	��	�����
�����

��
��
�����
���3����������������)��
�1�
������$�

��� ���� 
	� �	�� ���� ���
�
�� 
���� ���	���
��� ��
�� �
���C�����$1� �
�� ��
��� �����
����

����$���8�
��
�
����$1��
���$��������
	��������������1�����������������
��
�
�������*C���
�

31



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

������ �	�� �� ����
� �����$�� "�
���$1� �
� ��$� �����$� ��� �� ������
�	
� 	�� 
��� ����
��� 	��

��
��
�
�������
��	�����
�
������	$��

��


�1 '����	/����2��
	"���	

��;�� ����"�
���&����
	
��
��%	���@	�������
��	�
�!��
����-C�����������	������ �
�>�����

���-�� @	���� 8�
�	��
���� ���� ��,������ 
	� ��	����� �� @	���� ���
��	�
� !��
1� ������ ����

�
��
�������	�������	��
���	�����

����
���
��
��	�
�������
�	�����	
����
��������	
��	��
���

��
$��

��;�� ��������	��
������
����
	�������	
���
�	
1� ����	��������������
$1�����,����
$��
������
$��

��)��� ���� �� *�$� ���
	�� �
� �������
�� 
����� ����� �������� 
��$� ���� ���	�
�

� �	��

�����������
$����
�������$� �	�� ��	������	� ��
�� ���
�� ������� 
��
��	�
� ��������
� �	���)������

��	���� ��
�� ��������
����� ��)��� ���� ���	� ����

���� �
� ���

��
�
�� �� ����� 
���
� 
����

��	
	�$��

	


�3 '����	4���	4����(��
	

��9�� &����
	
�F�%	�������������	������
���@	����8����8������

�4@885��������
�������2<�

�	���� ����	����

� 
����
��� ���� ��������� 
��
��	�
� 
����
�� ���� 
	� ������� 
��� 
������ 	��

��	���� *������ 	�� ����	���$� �
(����� �
� �	��� 
������� ������

�+� ������� �	
���
�	
+� �
��

����	��� ������� 
	� ��������� �
�� ������
�����$� ������� 
��
��	�
1����*�
�� �
�� �$���
�������

@88� �
�
��� 
��
� 
�)��� ���� ���	�
�

� �
� �������
�� 
��� 
����
� 
	� ������� �	
���
�	
�� ����

@88��
�
���
��
�
�)�������������	�	
�������

���
���1��	
��
��

��
�����
��
�����
��
��	�
�

��
��
�
����1����
�������$��	�� (	��
�$�� 
	��	�*��
�����		�����������������	
��
��	����
���

�	

�
�����������$�	��
���@�!��
������
����
���
��

���	������� 

32



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

3 Definition, Measurement and Removal of 
Significant Unmet Demand 

��� 5�
�����
���	

2���� ���
�	
�2���	������������
�
�	
�	�����
�����

��
��
�����
������������	���)�����
���	��

	���� ���� �
��
� ����
�� �
������ ��
��� � 9;�� ����� ������ 
	� �
� 	�(��
���� �������� 	��

���
�����

� �
��
� ����
�� 
��
� ���	��� ������ �	
�����	
�� �������
�� 
��� �����
��� 	��

����
���	��
�������
	��
	
�
	��������
��"	��	��
��
���1����������
�	
������	������	��
���

�7���>��	���������������
		�������	����
	���
����
��
���
������	������
�	
������*
�$�

����
������,������ 
	������
�
�����
�����

��
��
�����
�1�������������
��
�����
�����

�	�
��
	��)��
��

��
 ��������	

• ���
�����

�7
��
�����
��4�7�5�����
�	��	��	
�

���

• ��
�

�����
��G�
��
���������������
�$�	���������+��
��

• ?����������A�����
��G�
��
��������������������$�����
�	
��������$��

2���� !�
�

� ����
�� ��� ��������� ���
�� ��
*� 	������
�	
� ��
��� ����������� 4	�� ��
�

5�

����
�����������������
����
����	��
�����
*�	������
�	
���
����������

�
�����

�������

�����$��&	
��������	���
�
	��
�����
�����
������������	���
��
�����
�1���7��4�
��)�	��

���
�����

�7
��
�����
�5��

�

��� 6�#�����	$����#����
	7�(�
	6�(���	

2�2�� ������	����	
�	�������
���
	���������
��
����
�	��
�����
���*�
��������	
����	�
����*
�$�

��������� ��	����	
� ��,������ 
��
� �����$�� 	�� ����
�� ��� �������� 	�
�� �����
�� ������ 	
�

	������
�	
��	����
���
$��
����*
�$���
*����������	���
�����
�����$������
�����
�����

��,������

��

2�2�� ���� ����
�
�	
� 	�� ���
�����

� �
��
� ����
�� ��� �
�	����� �$� 
�	� '	��
� 	�� 8������

(������

���

• ����/���
�H���	�
��&	�	����'	�
�����)������$���4� 9;5+��
��

• ����'��
���!	�

�&	�	����'	�
�����)���>�����4����5��

2�2�2 �������$����������	�������
��
����
�	
�	��
�����$��
��������
�8�
�	��
$���$��

�����
�


��� ��
��
��� 	�� �����$��	�*�� �
� 
��������	�����$������H���	�
��'�
$�'	�
���1� �-�E�
��

33



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

� 9;1�@	���E��
����3		���������
��
��
�8�
�	��
$�����

�
����
	��	
������
�����
��
�	
���	��

�� 
���	���� �	�

� 	�� ����� ��� �� ��	���� �
� �	��� 
	
� ����� 
	� �	
�����
�� �

	� �� ��
������

�	
������
�	
� ��� 
	����
���$� ��� 
��� �	��
�	
� �
� ����$� ����
��� ����� 	�� 
���8�
�	��
$� �
�

����
�	
�
	�
������
�������
����	����$����������������,������
	�����������
�
	�
�����
������

������$�
������
�	
�4���
�	
��-5��
����
���*��
�������
���������
	�
���������������	���

���
����	��
	
��
������
�������
��
�
��������
	����
�����

��
��
�����
�����

2�2�: ����
����?����������A�	��?��
�

A�����
��������������	����	
����	
�	����
���$�������
�

��	��������	�

���	�
�
��
��	��	��
��>�������'��
���!	�

�&	�	����'	�
���1��������
�
���

'	��
� 	�� 8������ �
� B�
	���� ����1� 
��� 
���� ��� 
	�� �

�����
��� 
	� ����
�� �����$� 
	� 
��
�

����
��
��
� ���������������"	��	��
��>����1� 
��������� 
�	��	��	
�

�� 
	����
�@	���

E��
����#��
����������
	�������
	����?���������������
�A��

• ���
���
����
�������
����	����
��$���
�����
����������������

�	����������

����
��
��
�������
����
��$1��	���)�����1������
��������������������$���
*�
����+�

�
��

• 
��
�������������������	���������	�����
	������	����������
�����
	�$���
�	��	��


����������
	�
����
����������
$�	�������*
�$�����������

2�2�< �������
�������
����
����	
�
�

�������
��	���	�
�
�����$��
�����*1�
������

�����
�	
�

�
��
���
��

�	�����
�����

��
��
�����
���	��������	����
�����
C�	����������
����������

�	��������
��
���,������
	����
�
����)��
�
������
��
������	�������,������	�������	
�

��
*�� 
��	���	�
� 
��� ��$� �
�� 
���
� �
�� �����
���� ���
�
�� 
����� �	���� ��� I��	��

'	
������$1����
		�������������������������
������	����
�
��
	����,������	�������
�����


��	���	�
�
�����$���
��������������
��	���1��
����
�����1���������������

���
	���
���
��


����
��������
������$�	�������
�������$�
	�(��
������
�
�������
����,�������

2�2�- ����
�� �	�� ���*
�$� ���������� ������� 
��	���	�
� 
��� ��$� �
�� 	
� �������

� ��$��� ����

��	����1� �

�	������ �$� ��������� ����
�1� ���	���� ������ ���
� ������� ���
�
��� ����

�	
����������������
�������������������
���
�
���
�
��
��
��������
��
�����$1��
��
�������

�
����������$� �������
	����
	������
�
�����*�����$�������������������	�	�
�	
�
�������
�

	
�
���	�����
�	
���
��	��������
�����	
����
�������=��
�
��������������
������������
������


	�����
��������������$�
	����
��
�
��������$�	��������
�	��
�����
��
����������

2�2�; �������
��������
�	
�	��
��������

���������	
����
��
��
����
�������$1����
��	
������
��

���
���� ���
�����

� �
��
� ����
�� �)��
�1� 
	� 
�*�� ���	�

� 	�� 
��� ����
�������
$� 	��

����	��
��
����
�
�����	����������
��	�����
������
�������$����

34



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

���  ��������	"�
��
	$����#����
	7�(�
	6�(���	

2�:�� ��*�
�� �

	� ���	�

� 
��� ��	
	���1� ����
��
��
���� �
�� ������ �	
������
�	
�1� 
���

���

�����
�	
�	��
�������	�
�

������
�	�����
�����

��
��
�����
����	�������
���
��������


������
������	���������	��	����

• ���

��$�
�������
����	����+�

• ��
���
�������
�����
����������$�+��
��

• �	��������
���
�������$��
	�
�������
����	������

2�:�� ������	����

�����
�
�	
�
	��������
�
	�
��������
��	��
�����	������	
�����������������
�

������2����

!�"������#��/�	��
 ���(�
��
�(� �
��B
0���8�0�
-�=
B8>�8����0�
�-�"��'�0����
��

8�0�
-��
-�8��������(���	��

� 8����	�-���
��������
��� 8����	�-���
��������
-���%���
��0�	�

����
������

���%��������-�

3������%��������-�

�

6	��7��

!	�����$����7��

�

!	�����$����7��

!	�����$����7��

2�:�2 �
� ��� ������ ��	�� 
��� �	

�

� 	�� 
��� 
����� 
��
� 
��� ������� �������
���� ����	���� ������ 
	�

��	�����
���
�������$��������	�������
$�
	�����	�
�
���������	
���*�
����	������
�������

������ 
��� �
������	��� �	
�����	
� ��� 
	
� ������������ � %	�����1� �
� �	��� ��	����� 
���

������	���� �	���
���������

�	�� 
������
�������	��	
�

�	�����
�����

��
��
�����
���

���� �
��$���� ��� 
�����	��� �)
�
���� 
	� ��	����� �� �	��� �	����� 
��������� �������� 	��

���
�����

��
��
�����
��������� ���������	
�
������
��������	

��
��� �
�
����������
����

����	������
���	����������
��������
$���8��������
�	
��	��	����

2�:�: �����������������������
�$�	���
��������
��	��	������
�	
��	����
���
$��
�
�����
*���
��
���

�����
��	���������
���������$����
����
��������
�
�*������	�

�	���

• ���������
��
�������
���
���
�	��
$���	����
�*������	��������	��
������*�
+�

• 
��������
�	���������

��������	�������$�����
���������

�����	����
�
�����
*�	
�

��������,����
$+�

• 
���
�����	���	
���
�

�
���
��

�	���������

���
�	��
���1��
��
����������
�	��
$�

	����
�����

35



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

2�:�< �����
��)�	�����
�����

�7
��
�����
��4��7�5����������	�����
�
�������$��  �0���
��

���������	
�
����	��	��
���	�������������"������

������

�	�������
����2��
��
���@�"�

�����

������

�	�������
����-�
	�������
�
����
�����������������	
���
�

�����
���
�

����/����
���

��7��J�8!��)�!"�)�/���)���!�)��"�)�@�"�

3������

8!�� J� 8�������!����
��������$��������
������	���
����

�������*��

!"� J� !��*�
��"��
	�����������
��������
����������$����*����
�
���
�
������
	��


�*���
���������	����<������
����
	
����*���
���������������"	��	��
�����������


������	�����������
��
�	
��	��
��������
��	�����*�������
��	
�
��������
$�

	�� 
��� ������ 
	� ���
� 
��
� ����
��� �	� ���

��$� ����� ���*�
�� ��� ����

��
�����$� �		*�
�� �	�� ����
�� �
� 
���
� 4�
� ���*�
��5� 
	� ��� ����
�

����$�

�������
��
�����
���
�	
����
������

/��� J� /�
����� �
����
��� 	�� ����$�� ����� ��� ��������� ��� 
��� ��	�	�
�	
� 	��

�����
�������	�
�������
��	����������
�������$��)������	
����
�
���

��!� J� �
���$��
�
��!���	���
���������	�	����$�	����	����
�������
��
�	
�����
��


������*���
�����
�����
��
��
����
�������$�
	��	����	
�����	���
�������
��

?
	����A� �	����� ����� ��� ��������� �$� 
��� ��	�	�
�	
� 	�� �	���� ����
��

���*��$� ��$
����� ���
� 
������*�
� �)����
�� �)����� ����
�� �	
��
�	
��

4����������
����,�������	����
���
*�5��

�"� J� ����	
���
$����
	�������
	�
���
�
����	��
����������$���
����
	
��	�������
	�

�	����
� �
�	���
�	
� 
��	���	�
� �
� �

���� $���� 
	� ������� 
��� �����
�� 	��

����	
���
$��=)�����
�������������
���
��
����*
�$�����
���	����)����
�

�� ������� 	�� ����	
���
$� �
�� 
���� ��� ���	���� �	�� �$� 
��� �
�����	
� 	�� ��

����	
���
$� ���
	��� ���� ���
	�� ��� ��
� �
� �� ������ 
	� �
����� 
��
� �������
���

������	
���
������$�	�
��
����
��
�?�

$�����A��	

�������������������������

���
	��
�*�����������	�����	�������$���	
���
����
����
������
	�6	�������

�
��>�����
	�E�
�1������?
$�����A��	

�����
�
�*�����������	�������	�������$��

�	
���
����
�E�
���$��
��"������$��
��
����	
�������		���	����$�1�������

�	������
��
�������
���	���	

���
��	�*�����������
��������
���
����	���	��


������*
�$�
����1��
����������	����9��	�������$���	
���
����
����������

36



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

����
�� 
��� ���� '����
���� ����� 	�� ��
���
$�� /�
�����$1� �����$�� �
� 
�����

�
$�������	

��1��
���
����		���	����$�1���	���������	������

@�"� J� @�
�

� ����
�� "��
	��� � ����� ��� �������� ��	�� 
��� ������� �

�
���� �����$�

�����
�� �
���	����������������	�� 
�����	�	�
�	
�	�� � 
������������	� �����

����
� ��� 
�$�
�� 
	� 	�
��
� �� ���*
�$� ��������� �
� ��
���� �� ��
*� 	�� �$�

�����	�
� ����
�� 
��� �����	��� 
����� �	

���� � �
� ��� ��������� ��� �K�

��	�	�
�	
� ����
�� ��� ���
�
��� ���� �
�����	
� 	�� 
���� ���
	�� ��� �� 
��
�����

����	
���
	�
�����
��
����������
������

2�:�- ������	���
� 	�� 
����� ��)���������� ��	�������
� �
��)������������ �
��)� ����)�	
�

����

�
�����������	��� 
���9�����*���������
��	�
�� 
	� �
����
�����
�����

��
��
�����
���

�������
�����*���������
����$�����$�
��
������
	��
	�
����<�	���	��
������
��
��������
�

�	
���
��� �
� 
��� �	�

� �
� ���� �����	����� ������ �������� �
������ ���� ����� 
��� �����

���
���������
��
���������
���
�������

��������������
���7���������	�����
��$���������

�	
�����	
�	��
	����
�����

��
��
�����
���������
��	�
������;�������
�����	�������


�����	�����
��
�9���������7�����
	���������
���������
	�	����9���
�������$�%����	���
��

�������
���	�
����$�	
������	�*�
���
�
�����������
�������	����
	�������	���
1��

��
����$�

�������
���
���������������������

2�:�; ����������L��
�

�����
������)�����
�$��
��������
�
�����	����
��$�����$�
����
�����	
�	��


���@�"����
	���
�����������
$�*
	�
�����������$�
���	��������$�
��������
�������
��������

�
������� �
�
�����
*�	������
�	
���
����������	������	
�������

��	������������L��
�

�

����
�������
�
�� ��	��
���>���������� ��������� 
	���	����
�� ��� �

�
����
	���	�������

.���
� �
�� ������0�����	����� � �8��	
������
�	
�	�� ��
�

�����
�� ������	� �
�������������


����������
����
	��
�������
���
������	�����*
�$��������������
�����	��	��
������
��
��

	�����
�����

��
��
�����
�����������������������
�
���
�)
����
�	
��

�

��! 6�
��(�����	
��	8�(9��	�#	8��	'�������	��:�����	
�	���(���
�	$����#����
	7�(�
	

6�(���	

2�<�� �	� ��	����� ������� 	
� 
��� �
������� �
� ����
���� ��,������ 
	� �����
�
�� ���
�����

� �
��
�

����
�1�%����	�����������	������������
�����	������7���>� �������	���
�	�����$�����

�)�����
��� 	�� �
��$��
�� ���*
�$� ��������� ����
��� �
� ��� ����
����
������	���1�������

������
�� 
��� 
������ 	�� ����
�	
��� ����
���� ��,������ 
	� �����
�
�� ���
�����

� �
��
�

����
���������
�
�	
�	��*�$����*�
�������
����
�����

37



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

2�<�� �7���>� �������

�� �� �$

������ 	�� �� ,����� ������
�	
��	�*� 
��
����� �����	���$� �����

4� 9 �
	�����5�
	�������
�
����������
�	
�	�����
�����

��
��
�����
���
��
�����7�����
	��

���������� ��	��� 4��
��� 
��� 
���� �7���>5�� ���� ��
���
� 	�� 
���� ����	���� ��� 
��
� �
�

��	�������������
� ����
�	
�������
���
�
���������	�� 
��� ��7�����
	���
�� 
���
������	��


������*
�$�����
������,��������

2�<�2 �7���>����������	����
�*�
��
������	���
��
�	
����	���:��
������
��
������
����
��
�

�
��������
�����
���1��
�����
��
�������
��
	��������
�������������	
	��
�����	���������

�	������	������������
�	
�������
���
�
������	���
�����
��������
�����
�����
��
�����

*�$����*�
��
����
	����

• 
����	����
�	
�	��
�������
��
��8�
�	��
$+�

• 
���
������	�����*
�$��������$�����
�����$�
�������
��
��8�
�	��
$+��
��

• 
�����I��	��
�����7�����
	���

2�<�: �������
��������
�	
��	��
����	�������������
��
����
�"������2������	����������������	���


��
� 
��������

���� �
������� �
������*
�$� ����
� ��,������ 
	������
�
�����
�����

��
��
�

����
�� ����	��
����$� ����
��� 
	� 
����	����
�	
��������*
�$�4!!%5��
�� 
���������	�� 
���

��7�����
	��	����
����)���
�����
���	��
�����
�	������������

����������#����� �	��C
 ���	���
��� �
���������
�D���	�����
 ���
��(����������
������� �
���=���>��
-��%��C
B8�

E����� ��

�

38



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

2�<�< 3��������
�����

��
��
�����
��������

�����1�
������	���
�����
��������
�����
�������


�����	�����
����
����$�
����	��	��
���	��������

3���2� �
 �	�F�
B8
C4�/�2���
��8�0�
-��� ����

3������

• @�
�

�����
��"��
	��J�4��K���	�	�
�	
�����
��������
�
���	�������*
�$��
�

��
��������
*�	�����������	�
5��

�

��% 8�
�	��	$��2�	�#	4��������	$����#����
	7�(�
	6�(���	

2�-�� �
� ��� ������� 
	� 
	
�� 
��� �)
�

� 
	� ������ �� ����
��
�� ��
�	��
$� ��� ��,������ 
	� �	
������

����������� ��

���� ���
� ��
�������
�� 
��� �)��
�
��� 	�� 	
�������� 	�� ���
�����

� �
��
�

����
�������������������
�	������$�����&����
	
�&	�	����'	�
���1��)����&�
���� 9 ����

������������
�
����������

�
��
��
� ���	
�$�
�	������������
��
������)��������
	����*
�$�

���������� 
��
� 
���� �	
���
� �� ����
��
�� ��
�	��
$� ���
� �	
������
�� ���
�����

� �
��
�

����
��� �������	
�� �		*��� 
����1� 
����� �		*��� �
� ����
���	�� �
����� 
��� ��	����	
� 	��

���� 
$��� ��������� ���� 
	
� �)�������� 
	� ���*
�$� ���������� �
�� ����� 
�����	��� ���
�

�)���������	���	
������
�	
���

�

�

�����������������������������������������������������������

������&�

	
�E%�.��)���G�@���
��
��@����
��!���
���0��
�����
�	
��	

������-�!��-C;�

39



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

4 Evidence of Patent Unmet Demand – 
Rank Observation Results  

��� 5�
�����
���	

:���� ��������
�	
�	��
������	�
���������
��
��������
��	��
�����
*�	������
�	
������$��������
*�

	������
�	
���	��������	������������	��	��2:2��	���������
��
����	����	���������	���

<�1<:�� �����
����� �
�� 291 �9� ���� �����
���������� ���	������ ���� ��
*� 	������
�	
��

����� �������� 	�
� ��	��������$� ���
�8����� 
	���
��$� ;
�� E�
���8�������$� 	�� 
��� ��
*�

	������
�	
���	������������	�������
�8���
��)����

:���� ���� �����
�� �����

��� �
� 
���� ���
�	
� ���������� 
��� �
�	���
�	
� �
�� ����� 	�
� �
��

�������
�	
���������������������$����
��������
����
	����

• !%�� $���
 �� �(� 
������ �
-� 8�0�
-� G� 
���� �
����
��� 
��� ��	�	�
�	
� 	�� 
���


����
��
�
������*�
��)����
���)���������
�1��,�����������
���)����������$+�

• +������� 8����	� �
-� !����� 8�0�
-� G� 
���� �
����
��� 
��� 	������� ������ 	��

�����
������
����������$���
����	��������
���
���	��
	
�������
�+�

• !%�� 8�0�
-G8����� ���(���� G� 
���� ��	������ 
��� *�$� �
�	���
�	
� ��,������ 
	�

��
����
��
����)��
�
���	��	
��������	�����
�����

��
��
�����
�+�

• !%�����������
	��(���		�
���	��/�����
 �
��H���
�2����	��(�8�����G�
����

��	��������������
	�
�����
�����
$�	�������
��������$+��
��

• !%���((� �����
�������(�E�%� ��	� G� 
���� �
����
��� 
�����	�	�
�	
�	�� 
��� ����
�


��
�����	���
����	�������
��
��������$��

�

��
 /��	�������	�#	$�22��	���	6�(���	

:���� ���������
��	�� 
����
��$�������������

��� �
�������:������	�����������	��
�

����*�
�

�
�
�� ��� 	
�� 	�� �,����������� =)����� �����$� 4,������ 	�� ����5� ���� �)�����
����

����
���<M�	�� 
��� �	���� 	�������������� �)����� ����
�� 4,������ 	�� �����
����5� ����

�)�����
���� �
���M� 	�� �	����� '	
��
�	
�� ����� ����
� ���	������� 
	� ���
	����� 	
�

���*�
�� 
���
� ����	���� 3��
� �	������� ��
�� 
��� ��
��
��� ��	�� �����	��� �
������ �
� ���

������
��
��	
��
�	
���������	��
���	������	�������
	������
������=)���������
������

�����
���	��� M�	���	�����
����2�
	���M�	���	�����
���� ���

40



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

!�"������#�!%��$���
 ���(�
�������
-�8�0�
-��
��%��$���%��
��
-��������
�,$�	�-�

�� �
���'��������4������=��� �
����	�1����	�
�0�����))>�

�����-� �/ �		�8�0�
-� ������"���0� �/ �		�
������

��$� ;� --� �9�
3��*��$�

6���
� 9� <�� :��

��$� ��� ;9� ���
3��*�
��

6���
� �<� :<� 2��

��
��$� ��$� ��� ;;� ���

!������))*� ��� 5�� �7�

!������))5� �5� 9�� ���

!������))�� �*� 79� ���

6&�G�=)���������
��J�>�)�����!����
����N�����O2��=)����������$�J�>�
�����'���N�����

O2�G����������������	�������
��������	�����
��
��
��	����

��� 4������	6�����	���	/�
��	6�(���	

:�2�� �����	��	��
����
���
���	��������������$���
��
��	�����
��������	�������	�������	��
���

���
���
*���
�&����
	
�F�%	���4������:��5���

:�2�� ���������$�������
���	���<�1<:�������
���������
�����	������������*���	����
*���
�

&����
	
�F�%	����
�	���
���	���291 �9����������
������

:�2�2 ���� ���*
�$� ��������� 
����� ��� �	�����
� �	
��

��
��� �
� &����
	
� ����� �
�
�	
1�

���	�

�
�� �	��2�M�	�� 
��� 
	
��1������
� 
�����
*�	
�=��
��
���
����	�

���	����M�	��
���


	
��� �����
������ B
� �������1� �����
����� ���
� ��;�� ��
�
��� �	�� �� ����� !����
�����

�)�����
���
�������
��
�����$��
�
���=���/�	�����
*1��������
�������������$�	��	����

;��:���
�
�������)�����
�����

:�2�: ������
����	��
��
�	����
���������
������������
�
���	�������
�����	�������*
�$���
��
���

���
�� �
� ���

������ �
� 
��������	����
��$����
�����

��
���� ������ ����
� 
����)��
���	����

������������
�
�����	�

�	��
�������*
�$������,����
���
�
�����
*���

�

�

41



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�

!�"������#� � �+�������8����	��
-�!�����8�0�
-�=8����	��
�4�
���	>�

��
��
��		�
����
8��������	�

'�"�
8��������	�

+�������
��		�
����
8�����

+�������
'�"�
8�����

&����
	
�������$� 16,634 12,365 0.39 7.41 

=��
��
���
� 11,225 6,582 0.00 9.52 

�
�!�
��0��!����� 2,518 2,124 0.41 8.51 

N���
0���,����� 3,418 2,279 0.99 15.31 

6	�
	
��	��� 1,494 2,419 0.02 11.09 

%	���������$� 2,527 2,341 0.11 7.79 

&��
����*�!����� 1,216 1,402 0.71 9.25 

'�������	��� 488 580 0.33 7.49 

3��
��
���
� 6,628 3,330 3.68 7.61 

/	���
	
��P������ 314 671 0.05 9.09 

!��
	
�!����� 1,268 2,211 0.05 12.10 

=���/�	��� 39 272 7.14 12.81 

B��������%	
��� 4,773 2,352 0.18 6.65 

!������))*� 7�:7��� �@:*�@� )�9�� @�*��

!������))5� �5:�)@� ��:���� )�9�� 9�5��

!������))�� �9:7))� �@:@7)� ����� @����

	

��� /��	6����;6�(���	"��#���	

:�:�� "������ :��� ��	������ �� ���������� �����
��
�	
� 	�� �����
���� ����
�� �	�� 
��� >	
��$� 
	�

��
����$�����	����
���
�
����	����	��� �����
���2�������������������*��
�����
��	
�


������*�
��
���
�����	����
���
�
����	����	���:����
����$	
���2����������������	���

���*��
�����
��	
����*��$����
���
��9����
��������

42



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

����������� � ���		�
����8�0�
-�"��!�0���(�8����
��))*�=4�
-������
����-��>�

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 1 2 3

Hour Starting

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 P
a

s
s

e
n

g
e

rs
Weekday
Weekend
All Week
2 per. Mov. Avg. (All Week)

�

:�:�� ����������	�����*�
����
���
�
���
��
���
�
���8>����*�����	������
����	
����
������������+�

���
�����	����	
������
��
�
���������.�����$����*��0�����
����	����������������������
�	
��

�	��
����

�����
�
�	
�	��
��������
��4�������
�	
�:�-����	�5��

:�:�2 ����

� ���
� ����
���� �����
��1� ������� �$� 
��� ���1� �
�
��� 
��
� ����$�� ���	���
��� ��
��

���*�� �
� ����
�� 4����� ��� �	�
�
�� �
�� ���
�
�� ����� �	���1� 	�� ���� ��	��
�� 
����5�

��	�������
���
������.���
�����

0����
��$�����	�
�
�
����	�
��	������
������	���	
�������


	�����
�)�����%	�����1��
�����/���
�H���	�
��&	�	����'	�
�����)������$���4� 9;5�@	���

E��
����3		���������
��
��
�8�
�	��
$�����

�
����
	��	
������
�����
��
�	
���	����
���	����

�	�

�	��������������	�����
��	���
	
������
	��	
�����
���

	�����
�������	
������
�	
����


	� ���
� ��$� ��� 
��� �	��
�	
� �
� ����$� ����
��� ����� 	�� 
��� 8�
�	��
$� �
� ����
�	
� 
	� 
���

���
�������
����	����$���

:�:�: �
���	�������	����
	
���
��
�
�����.���*�0���$�
	
����
��������
������
�	��
�����
�	��
$0��

����
�
�	
� �	���$� ��� 
��$� ��
� ���	� 	����� �
� ��C���
���
��� ��
�	��
����� "	�� �)�����1� ���

	�������� ����� �����
���� ����$�� �
� ��
*�� ����
�� ���*�
�� ��
�� 
���
� ���*� ����	��� �
�

@�����
����
�����������
��
������
�
��
�
������������
�
	�
�������������
��
��������
�
���

���*
�$�������������*�
� �	��	�������$�������������� �����
�������	�
��
��� �
�&���
	�1��
�

43



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

��
�	��
$� 
��
� ���� ���
� ��C���
���
��� �	�� :� $����� �
� 
��� 
���� 	�� 
��� �
��$�� � %����	��

��������� 
��
� 
��� ���� ��� ���
�*�
� �
� �
�� �����
�	
� 
��
� �����
���� ����$� ��
�� �
� 
���
�

���	���
�����
�� ��	�
� 
���� ���*�� �
� ����
�� ��� �����
��� 	�� 
��� ��
����

��� �����
� 	��

,��

�
$��	

�	��������
�	
������
���1��
�����
��
���
������	
��,��
���	��
����	
��

��
�	
�

	�� ����
�� ����� �
� ��� ������� �$� 
��� ����� ��
����

��� ���
������� 
��
� ������ ,������ �
�

��
*�1��	�
�	��������
����������*�
���

:�:�< "������:�����	�������
������
��
�	
�	�������
��������$��$�
���
����	����$��	��
������*��$�

�
�� ���*�
�� ����	���� �
� �
����
��� �
����
���� 	�� �����
���� ����$� ���*� 	
� ���*��$��

��
���
��;����
��� ����
��	
����*�
�����
�
�����
���
�������
���2��������������

	�������
��������$��������
��
��
������	
����*�
��������������
��������$���
����*�
	�

2�9<���
�
����

����������� � ���		�
����8�����"��!�0���(�8����
��))*�=4�
-������
����-��>�

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 1 2 3

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

M
in

u
te

s

Hour Starting

Weekday

Weekend

�

��! /��	��������
�	�#	2��������	�����	

:�<�� ������
*�	������
�	
���
����
���������
	���	����������������������

�	��
�����*����		��

	�� �����
����� �
�	�

���
�� ����$� �
� ��
*��� ���� �����
�� ���� �����

��� ���	�� �
� ������

:�2��

�

�

44



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

!�"�������� ��� �
�������		�
����8�����

8����� ��		�
���	�8�����

����$�Q��� ���9:M 

8�����I���0�
���� 7�59J 

����$�Q�<�>�
�
��� ��� M 

�

:�<�� ���������
���
����
��
��
����	�
���M�	��
��������
�����	�����������
������
*�
���������

�
��
��	����������	�������$�	���������������	�	�
�	
���*��$�
	��)�����
����	���
��
���

��
�
��	������$������
���
����
�<�-;M���
����
������	�	�
�	
�
��
�����������
��
�
�����7�����


���./�
�����
$�	��!����
��������$�0�

	

��% /��	�##��
���	$�22��	�#	<�������	

:�-�� B��������� ����� ��,������ 
	� ���	��� 
��� ���*
�$� ��������� ����
��� ���
�� 
������ 	��

��������������
�
����	����
*����
�
������$�������������
	������
��
�
�����	�	�
�	
�	��
���

����
�
��
�����	����
�
������
��
��������$��

:�-�� ����
�� 
��� ��$
��������	�� 4�;��� 
	� �9��5� �	���::�� 49:M5� 	�� 
��� ���*
�$� ����
������

	�������� �
� ����
� 	
��� ����
�� 
��� ����	�� 	�� 
��� �
��$�� ����
�� 
��� ���
�
�L
���
C
����

����	��4�9���
	��;��5��	���:;��4 �M5�	��
������*
�$�����
���������	�	���������
�����
�

	
�������
��
�������	��	��
����
��$���

 

45



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

5 Evidence of Suppressed Demand - 
Public Attitude Pedestrian Survey 
Results 

!�� 5�
�����
���	

<���� �	���: 2�	
C�
���
���������

������������$���������������	�
��
�E�
����� ��8�,�	
������

�	��	���� �	� 
��
� 
��� �����$� ������
��� 
��� ���� �
�� ��
���� ������
����
���� 	�� 
��� �	����

�	���
�
$������1��
�
��
1��
������
��
���	���$��������

�
���������
�������	�
��
�����"	��


��� ����	��� 	�� 
��� �����$� 
��� ��
����� �	��� .
�)�0� ���� ����� ������ �
�	��	��
��� �	
��

���*
�$������������
�������
�����������������

<���� 8� ����� ����*�	�
� �
�� �
��$���� 	�� 
��� �����
�� �
�� 
��� �����$� �	��� ��� ��	������ �
�

8���
��)�2��

<���2 ���������$��	�
��
��
�-2M�	������	
��

�������������
�)���
�&����
	
�F�%	�����
��
�
���

���
�
������	

�������������
������������$����
�"������<������	���

�������7��#�4�-���������"����/���
��%����	����0�
�%	K�

63%

37%

yes

no

�

46



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

<���: ������*��������� ��*��� �	�� 
��$� 	�
��
��� 
����� 
�)��� �	��� 29M� 	�� 
�����*���� �
�
���


��
�
��$�������
�����
�)���
�����
*���	���:�M�	������
������������������$�
�����	
����
��

��M�	��
�����*����	�
��
�
����
�)���$�	
C�
���
������	�
���"������<�����������
�����

��
�

	��
�)��������

�������7��#�4��%�-��(������(���2�	��!����

38%

21%

41%
Rank

Flagdown

Telephone

�

<���< ����	
��

���������*������
��$��������
���������
��
���
����
�*�
��
��
�����	��

����

	��
���
�)������������������(	��
$�	����	�����������
���������
��
�������$�	
�
��������
�
�)��

(	��
�$�4 �M5�����������������
�
�� 
����������)���
�
��+��	�������	��� ����	
��

��

�
�
���
��$����
�������	
�����:<���
�
����	����
�)����

<���- �	���	����������
�������
�
��
	�����������L��
�

�����
������	
��

���������*��� 
	�

���

��$����
����	��
	
�
��$���������
�������
�
���	����
�)���
�����
*1�	
�
����
���
1�	���$�


�����	
�� �
�&����
	
�F�%	��� �
� 
��� ���
� 
������	

�������������
�������	����

��� �
�

"������<�2��

47



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������7��#�2���
��-�0�
-�"��0��%�-��(�%����1�J��%��%�-�����
��������
�����0������%���
��

�
��%����	����0�
�%	K�

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

Rank Flagdow n Telephone Rank / Flagdow n

%

�

<���; "������<�2���������
��
��
�	����-M���������
�������
�
���	����
�)���
�����
*+����	�
���M�

���� ����
� ��� ���� �����	�
� �
�� 	���� 9M� ���� 
�����	
��� �	��� �2�2M� ���� ����
� ���

���
�
���	����
�)���
�����
*�	���$������	�
��
�
������
�
������	

��������������������������

�����
	��������

�
���������	����
�

�4����������5�����
���
�&����
	
��
��%	����

<���9 ��	�����	���������
�������
�
���	�������������
�&����
	
��
��%	����������*����	��
����

�	��
�	
��������	��
�	
���
�
����	�
����,��

�$�������

• &����
	
�'�

��+�

• @������	��+��
��

• @	
�	
��	���

<���  ����	
��

���������*������
�
$���	����������
��$���,������
������
�
����
��$���������

���
�
��� �	��� 9:M� 	�� 
�	��� ��	� �
������� �
�
��� 
��
� �
� ���� 
	
���

��+� �
$� ��������

48



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�	������������
������
�������	���;M��
�
���
��
�
��$���,����������������
��
��	������
�

�	��� 
��
� �	��������
����1��
��-M��
�
��� 
��
� 
��$� ��,������ ������������� �����������

���������

!�
 $������	5(2����(��
�	

<���� ����	
��

���������*������
��$�
�	���
�
���
�)������������
�
���&����
	
��
��%	��������

�	���� ��� ����	����� � ���� ����	
���� �
����
�� 
��
� 
��� ��(	��
$� 	�� ����	
��

�� 4<<M5�


�	���
�
��
�
�)������������
�&����
	
��
��%	����	�����������	������

<���� ��	��� ��	� �	
�������� 
��
� 
�)�� ��������� 
������ ����	����

� ����� ��*��� �	�� 
��$�

�	�����������	���������������
�������	����

����
�"������<�:��

�������7���� ����	%���-���/��	���� �	�"���0�����-K�

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

More of them

More ranks

Shared taxis

Better vehicles

Better drivers

Cheaper

More disabled access vehicles

Other

%

�

<���2 B�� 
�	��� �
�
�
�� 
��
� 
��� �������� �	���� ��� ����	���� �	��� 
��
� -9M� 	�� ����	
��

��

�
�
��� 
��
� 
�)��� �
�&����
	
� �
��%	��� �	������� ����	���� ��� 
��$��������������������

�	����;M�	������	
��

���	������*��
	������	�����
*���
���;M��	������*��
	������	���

����������"	��
�	���
��
��
�
���	
���1�
����	�
��	��	
�����	����

�������
�������
	�

��	������	������������
��
���
�����$��	���	���	��������
������

	

49



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

	

!�� "�9���	4��������	

<�2�� ����	
��

���������*������
����
��$������������
��
�&����
	
��
��%	���'	�
��������
�


���
������	��%��*
�$�'����������
�<�2��B
�$���M�	��
�	�����	��
������������������

	��
��������
�������������
��������	�
��
�"������<�<��

�

�������7�7� � �%���������������(��%��
�0��� �����0����
���/��	��-��	K�

11%

89%

yes

no

�

�

!�� $�#�
�	*	$�����
�	

<�:�� ����	
��

���������*������
����
��$����
���������
����
��
�)����
�&����
	
��
��%	����

������(	��
$�	�� ����	
��

�� ���
���������
�� 
�)�������
�� 
�����$� 4 9M51��	�������	���

�<M��
�
���
��
�
��$����
��
��������
��
�)����
�
���
��
�&����
	
��
��%	����

<�:�� ����	
��

����	�����
	
���������������
��
�����$�	���
�
���
��������*������
�
������
	�

����	
�� 
	� ����	�������
$��
��������
$����
����
�� 
�)��� �
�&����
	
��
��%	�����	���

-2M�	������	
��

���
�
���
��
�
��$��	�����������������
���	��
��������������
��9M�	��

����	
��

���
�
���
��
�''�P��
�
�)����	��������	�������
$����
����
��
�)����
�&����
	
�

�
��%	��������������
��������	�
��
�"������<�-��

�

50



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������7�5�� C0�����0�
�	����	�(�����
-�	� ������

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

CCTV in taxis

CCTV on ranks

More Taxi

Marshalls at ranks

More Taxis

Women Drivers

More signage on

licensed drivers

Other

%
�

<�:�2 ����	
��

�� ����� ��*��� ���
���� 
��$� �	���� ��� �����
�� �	�� �� ������ ���������� 
	� ���

������
	�
������������
�	�����
	���
��
�)�������������	���-9M�	������	
��

�������
��
�


��$��	����
	
���������
��
	���$��������������	��
��������	
1��������;M�	�� ����	
��

��

��������
��
�
��$��	���
0
���
������������
�
���<M��
�
���
��
�
��$�������
������

�������7�5�� ������	�� %��������(�
-�0��	%��	�

17%

68%

15%

Yes 

No

Don’t know

�

51



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

!�! "�����9�	

<�<�� ���� ������� ����� ��*��� ���
���� 
��$� �	���� ���� ���*������ 4��������5� ��� 
��$� �����

�����

� �
� &����
	
� �
�� %	���� ���� �����
�� ���� ��
������ �
� ������ �-�� �	��� ::M� 	��

����	
��

�� �
�
��� 
��
� 
��$� �	���� ���� ��������� ��
�� 2<M� �
�
�
�� 
��$� �	���� 
	
��

��	�����	��
�
���
��
�
��$��	����
	
���������������������*�����$�������	�
��	��	
�

�
�����������
��
�
��$������
		���	�1�
		��)��
������
��
		���
���	����

<�<�� ��	�����	��
�
���
��$��	������������������������*����	��	�
�
�
��$�
��
*�
��$��	����

����
�����8��	�
�<�M�	������	
��

���
�
���
��
�
��$��	����	
�$��������������	
���	��


�������$������

<�<�2 ��	�����	��
�
���
��
�
��$��	����
	
���������������������*�����$�������	�
��	��	
�

�
����������� 
��
� 
��$������ 
		���	�1� 
		��)��
������
�� 
		���
���	����B
����������


��
�
��$��	�
	
�����
�)���	�
�
��
$��$1�	��
��
�
��$�(��
��	���
0
���

�
	���������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�


�00����

#�$������
����	��
���!������8

�
���������$���
�������������������

• �	���-2M�	������	
��

�������������
�)���
�&����
	
�F�%	�����
��
�
������
�
�����

�	

��+�

• %�����������	����
�����
�	
���
������$�	
����
�
���+�

• �	����2M�	������	
��

����������
����
�$�
��
	�	�
��
������������$���
*�	��

�����	�
+�

• �	���<<M�	������	
��

�������
��
�
�)������������
�&����
	
�F�%	����	�������

����	����4
����
	�����������5+��

• >�(	��
$�	������	
��

�����
���������
��
�)�������
��
�����$��
��
���
+�

• �	���-9M�	������	
��

�������
��
�
��$��	����
	
���������
��
	���$�������������
	�

��
����������+��
��

• �	���::M�	������	
��

���
�
���
��
�
��$��	������������������

�

�

52



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

6 Deriving the Significant Unmet Demand 
Index value 

%�� 5�
�����
���	

-���� ������
����	�����
������������������
��%����	�0����7�����
	�������������
����
�	
�2��

�����	��	
�

����
��	��
����
��)1�
������	������
��
��������������������
����	���

• 8�������!����
��������$�4������:��5� ��;��

• !��*�"��
	��4"������:��5� ��<�

• /�
������
����
���	������$�4������:�25� <�-;�

• �
���$��
�
��!���	���
���4������:��5� ;�

• ����	
���
$�"��
	��4����������2�:�<5� ��

• @�
�

�����
��"��
	��4����������<���;5� ���22�

�

�

C
B8�=)�9�L)�7L7�59L9L�L�����>� � � � �5��� �

� �

-���� ������
�	��� �������	�����
�����

��
��
�����
�����9����
� ��������� 
��
�&����
	
�F�%	������

��������	��
������
�	����	�

1� �
����
�
��
��
�
��������6B����
�����

��
��
�����
��������

�	
�����	
��	������	
����
�

��
����
�

L���������������
���

�

%�
 �����
��	*	����	��(2����	
�	�
���	6��
���
�	

-���� '	��������� �
�
��
���� ���� ���������� ��	�� :9� �	���� ��
�	��
���� �
�� 
����� ���� ���
��� �
�

������:�:������
�������������
����
������	��*�$������
���
�����
���

• �	����
�	
��������*
�$�����������
�
���
����	��
����
��$�4�	���
�	
�5+�

• 
�����	�	�
�	
�	�� ��
*�������
�������
���
��	�����
�����������$��	������
���
��
�

I��	1������
���
��
�	
����
�
���
������
���
��
��������
�
���	��������4�	���
��


�	�
	��	��5+�

53



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

• �������� �����
���� �
�� ���� ����$� �������
��� ��	�� 
��� ��
*� 	������
�	
��

4�	���
�������
	���)5+�

• 
�����	�	�
�	
�	��>	
��$�
	��������$���$
�����	�����
��������)���������
��

����	��������4�	���
�����
5+�

• 
���(������

�	
����
������
*�����
����������$����*���4�	���
������
5+��
��

• ��
����������
����
	��	�����
�����

��
��
�����
���

�

%�� �����
�	�#	
��	��(2������	��
�	"�������	$
�����	

-�2�� ���� �	��	��
�� �	�

�� 4	�
��
��� ��	�� 
��� ��
*� 	������
�	
�5� ��$� ��� ����� ��	�
� 
���

�����
���
�&����
	
�F�%	����	�������
	�	
�����������
�������

• �	����
�	
��������*
�$��������������	����
��
�
�����������	������������������

&����
	
�F�%	����������������
��
�����������	����	
+�

• 
�����	�	�
�	
�	�������
����1���	�
�������
��	�����������	�������$�	�����1�

������9:M1�����������	����
��
�
�����������4�;M5��	��
������
���
���
��$���������

��	�	�
�	
�	�������
�����
�������
���
��	����������
�������$��,�����	���)������

	
����
�
��4<�-;M5�������	����	��
�����������	���:M��	������
�����
�	��
���+�

• 	��������������������
��������$��
���;����
�
�������	����
��
�
�����������

�����+�

• 	�����������������������$�����	����
��
�
������������	������
������
���
����	�
+�

• 
�����	�	�
�	
�	�����*��$���$
�����	��������������)���������
���	
��
�	
��

����	�����������;M���������������
�$������
��
�
�����������	��9M��	������

��
�	��
������	�
+��
��

• ����
���
�&����
	
�F�%	�������	
��������
	��)����
���������������	�����*�
��

��
���
�
���
��	�������
	�
������
�	��
�����$���

�

�

�

�

�

54



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�

�

�

District and Year of 

Survey

Population 

per 

Hackney

Proportion 

Waiting at 

Ranks

Proportion 

Waiting >=  

1 Min

Proportion 

Waiting >= 5 

Mins

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

% Excess 

Demand

Demand 

Peaked, 

Yes=0.5 

No=1

ISUD  

Indicator 

Value

Brighton & Hove 09 474 10.84 5.67 1.19 0.72 8.91 7 0.5 16.2

Brighton & Hove 06 508 52 23 6 0.73 7.64 6 0.5 50

Brighton & Hove 03 540 60 35 12 1.11 8.31 5 0.5 97

Hull 09 1,465 12.15 8.54 0.99 1.72 9.34 2 0.5 18

Rochdale 09 1,937 3.1 1.18 0 0.14 12.92 5 1 1

North Tyneside 2008 971 15.68 1.18 0.03 0.38 10.72 8 0.5 2

Rotherham 2008 5,192 0.09 0.09 0 0.01 27.29 0 1 0

Preston 08 677 11.85 5.28 0 0.61 11.13 7 1.0 21

Scarborough 08 1,111 11.75 5 1.06 0.49 7.74 7 0.5 0

Barrow 2008 474 13.97 12.52 0 0.5 6.85 0 0.5 0

York 08 1,146 31 11.5 6.74 3.21 5.42 31 0.5 645

Stirling 08 1,265 25 18 0.3 0.7 10.94 2 0.5 38

Torridge 08 1,202 7 0.94 0 0.12 14.99 0 1 0

Richmondshire 08 723 5 1 0.07 0.22 34.32 1 0.5 0.4

Exeter 2007/08 1,883 7 4 0.6 0.33 15.27 6 1 9

Manchester 07 394 21 6 2.28 1.59 10.24 14 1 174

Bradford 07 1,630 18 2 0.03 0.23 17.64 5 1 2

Barnsley 07 3,254 5 8 0.22 1.32 11.93 5 1 58

Broadstairs 06 1,000 13 13 10 3.25 23.97 4 1 177

Margate 06 1,622 4 1 0 0.05 33.14 0 1 0

Ramsgate 06 1,026 2 2 2 0.49 19.57 13 1 13

Plymouth 06 669 7 3 1 0.52 11.58 1 1 2

Thurrock 06 1,590 32 13 1 0.22 15.27 0 1 0

Trafford 06 2,039 55 38 6 1.09 13.15 5 1 249

Hull 06 1,433 45 23 4 0.68 12.52 5 0.5 38

Leicester 05 880 20.8 11 1.15 0.35 19.36 3 1 12

Bournemouth 05 656 20 11 2 0.37 12.25 1 0.5 2

Bradford 03 2,171 19 6 0.77 0.25 14.89 6 1.0 9

Oldham 03 2,558 30 12 0.79 0.48 14.8 7 1.0 40

Blackpool 03 556 21 4 0.3 0.13 12.4 6 1.0 3

Thurrock 03 1,607 43 14 1.01 0.50 12.5 2 1.0 14

Wolverhampton 03 3,113 50 31 7.39 1.49 11.18 14 1.0 647

Bournemouth 02 702 25 15 2 0.67 9.97 1 0.5 5

Exeter 02 2,353 47 18 3 0.71 10.12 20 1.0 256

Wigan 02 2,279 28 10 0 1.17 11.98 6 1.0 70

Cardiff 01 656 51 29 6 0.83 8.77 14 0.5 168

Edinburgh 01 373 47 29 9 1.27 8.77 13 1.0 479

Torridge 01 1,298 25 21 0 0.51 9.32 8 0.5 43

Worcester 01* 941 40 4 1 0.46 12.3 8 0.5 7

Ellesmere Port 01 2,527 80 48 17 2.49 4.23 49 0.5 2,928

Southend 00 895 46 29 8 1.92 8.08 4 1.0 223

South Ribble 00 * 485 12 0.25 0.25 0.07 11.27 0 1.0 0

Leicester 00 * 956 10 7 3 1.17 20.19 1 1.0 8

Leeds 00 1,693 83 61 33 5.03 7.92 36 1.0 11,046

Sefton 00 1,069 18 8 0.6 0.28 12.95 6 1.0 13

Castle Point 00 2,286 28 12 3 0.74 8.6 2 0.5 9

Bedford 00 2,931 25 15 10 0.86 6.86 4 1.0 52

Thurrock 00 1,406 28 14 2 0.63 10.66 6 1.0 53

Manchester 00 569 59 40 13 1.78 6.79 23 1.0 1,638

AVERAGE 1,412 27 14 4 0.91 13 8

 Table 4.4         A Comparison of Brighton & Hove with Other Authorities Studied (values in italics make up ISUD) 

55



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

7 Consultation  

1�� 5�
�����
���	

;���� /������
��� ������� �$� 
��� �����
��

� �	�� ���
��	�
� �
�
�� 
��
� �	
���
�
�	
� ��	���� ���

�
���
�*�
���
��
����	��	��
�+�

• ����
�	����	�*�
���
�
������*�
+�

• �	
�������
�������
����4�
�����
����������5���	���+�

• ��	�����������������

�
�	��������
�������
����������
����+�

• 
���!	����+�

• �	�����

����
���	�������������	���
����	������
	���

���
�	
�+��
��

• ���������
���	��
��
��	�
��
�*��	������������������L���L�	����	����
	����
��


��
��	�
���
�������

�

1�
 6����
	������
�
���	

;���� 8��������	�� �	������	�������������� �
�E��$���� ���
���� ��
���	���
�*��	������ 
	�����
�


������������������
��
���
�)���
�������
������������������	���&����
	
�F�%	����������
��

���
�
��������	���
�������
��
����	��	��
���

�

• %��*
�$�'��������
������������

�
����+�

• !����
�������
������������

�
����+���

• ��)��	����
	��+�

• ��������
$��������

�
������
���	�������������+��
��

• !	������
��'	���
�
$�����
$�!��

��������

�

;���� �����	���

�����������������
���������	���

�

�������	��������	*����	

;���2 �������*
�$���������� �������

�
����� ���
� 
��
�&����
	
��
��%	��� �������������������
��


�)��1� ���
� �
� 
���
� �
�� 
��� �����

� ����
� ������ 
	� ��� �	�*�
�� ������ ���� %��*
�$�

'�������� 
����� ����� 
��
� 
����� ���� ,������ 	�� ���*
�$�� ��
�� �
� 
���
� �
�� 
����� ���� 
	�

�����
����,����������$������
��
�
���@���
��
��8�
��������

�
���
������*��

56



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

;���: �
� ��� ���
� 
��
� 
����� ���� �
	���� ����������� ����������� ��������� �
� &����
	
� F� %	���

�	����������������
$���
��������
����
����		���	

���
�
�������
�������
���
��
���
������	��

��������������������������������	����
�����������

;���< 8��	���
�� 
	� 
��� %��*
�$� 
����1� ��������� 
�
�� 
	� �	
��

��
�� 	
� ��

���� ��
*��� ����

%��*
�$�'��������
������
�
���
��
�
��$�����
	
��	
���
������
���
*������
�*�
����$���
�

��������
���
��
�
����������	����	��
�	
����������
*������
	
����
���������
��	�������

���
�� ���	���� �	��	
���� ����	
���
��
	
����
�� ������������
*��	
�6����	��1�6	�
��

�
���
��
���
�E������
���
���������
�
�*�
����$��
��
	
�����������
��
�����
*��$�
���

B��������%	
����
��
�����
*�	
�
��������	

��������	��
����
����
�	�����
�����	���������

��
*�	
�6����	����
�� 
�����
*��$�
���B��������%	
����������
���������
�����
�������$�

���$��
��
������*
�$�
����������
�	
��$�����
�
�
������	����	��
�����
*�	
�
��������	

���

;���- ���� 
����� �
�
��� 
��
� 
����� ���� �� 
���� �	�� 
��� ��
*�� �$� 
��� ����
��� %	
��� �
�� 
���

N���
0��%	
��1��
���
	
������
*�
����
���������
�
�	
1���������
��������
	���
*���
���
�


����
�
�	
��
��N���
0���,�������
� ������
� 
��
� ��
�
��
�
����
*���	����
	
���� ��������1�

��� �
� �	���� ������ ������

�� ���� 
	� 
��� �	��� ��$	�
�� ������ ���� �	��� �	��
�	
��������

��
*�� ���� 
	
� ��������$� ����� �������� 	�� 
����� �	��
�	
1� �	�� �)������ 
��� ���*� 	�� 
���

�
�
�	
����
	
������	�
�
��������������
�����
�
��
	��	�����	��
����	�
���

;���; �
� ���� ���	� 
	
��� 
��
� 	
�� 	�� 
��� 
�)�� ������ ���� (��
� ���
��� �� 
��� �	

���
� ��
�� 
���

�
�
�	
1���$�
��D:���
	�����
����
�
�	
���
*��

;���9 8
� 
���
� �������� ��
�����$� ��	���3��
��
���
� ��� 
����� ��� 	�
�
� 
�	�������
�� �����
�����

�
����
����
����
���	�����	�	��,�����(����
�1�������
���		���
�����
*��
�
�)��1��

�C�	�����

������	����
������C�	���
���'������	
�
�)����������	�
�
��	��
���	�
�������
	�
���
����


�*�
�
	����	�
��
����

�����
�
��
����	���	���������

;���  ����%��*
�$�
����������
��
�����
�����������	
���
*��������		�����������������������	
�

��
���� �$� 
��� ����
���� ��)�� "	���� �
�� 
��� �	������ ����� �	�
�� 
��
� �����
����� �	�

���
�
�
	�
���������������
*��
��
���������
���
������
����
�����������	
���"����$��
��

��
����$�
���
�����3��
��
���
1�=��
��
���
1�N���
0���,����1��
���
�
����
�
�	
��
��B���

�����%	
���� �
� ��� ���
� 
��
��������������
�������	�������������
$��������������	���������

�����

���������������
��,����� (����
���
��������� .�����$����*�
�0��	�����
	��� �
�����

������
���
��
�'	���
�
$�����	�
�B���������	�������������������������

;����� �
�������
�
��
�
���������	��%��*
�$����������	����	����
���$��������
����
�
�����������

����	�����%	�����1��
� ������
� 
��
�
�����������
��	
��	
��%��*
�$�'����������
��!����
��

%���������������	������������������
�����������
���
��
�
�����������
���	����������
����

57



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 


	� ����
� $����� �	�� %��*
�$� '��������� �
�� ��� $����� �	�� !����
�� %���� ��������� �
��

����������������������%��*
�$������������
�������
�
��
�
�������	�������	�����)���
�	
���	��

����	�������
��������

;����� 3�
����������
	�
���
�
�1�
����������

�
�������
�
��
���
�	����
����
���
�
������

�������$�

�������� �)�����
��� ��� �	��� ���	�
�

+� �	������ �
� ��	���� ��� �� ��,������

� �	�� 
���

������������$����
�
��
�����
�����
���
�
����	�������	������1��
�������
	��������������	�����

������������
�����
�
������
��	������������	����������
�
�
�����

;����� ����������	��%��*
�$�'��������������������������������	�
�����
������
���������	����
���

�	�
�����

����$� 
	���
� 
�����	����� �	���
� �
������� �
� ������� �
�������������
��� 
��
� 
���


	����� 
����� 
���������
��	
����������
������
���
��	�����	�*���

��� ��� 
����������	
�$�


�	� 
�������� � � ����%��*
�$� �������

�
���� �
�
��� 
��
� 
��� �������� ��� �����

�$� ��	�
��

D2<1��������
��
��	
�
������������

�

"����
�	����	*����	

;����2 �
� �	

���
� 
	� 
��� ������ 	�� 
��� %��*
�$� 
����� �������

�
����� 
��� �����
�� �����

�������

�
��������
� 
��
�
�������
�	
����
�����	����������	������
�
���1�
��������
�������


����� ����� 
��
� 
�������	�������,����
$� ���
���
�	
�� ��
���� 
��
�,��

�
$� ���
���
�	
�������

�������

�
������	������
��
�
������
�
�����
����
������
�&����
	
�F�%	������������
������

;����: �����������

�
������
�
���
��
�
���
�������

���
	�������
�)�����������	�
�
	������1���
�


����	�
����	�����(��
���
������������$���
�����
*��	
�3��
��
���
1�=��
��
���
��
�������

�
���
� ��� ���
�� 	
��� 
��
� �	���� ��,����� ��������1� �
�� ���������$� ����
�� "����$� �
��

��
����$� 
���
�1� ��	�� ����� 
	� <��� 
��� 
�)
� �	�
�
��� !������� 
����� �	���� ��� ��

���������	
������	��
�����
�����
*�1����
��������
����������
$�������8���
��������������

	

	����
	����0���������	�����������
��
�������������
���
��	����	
�$��	�
��C������������


��$�
�������

;����< �
� ��� ���
� 
��
� 
����� ���� 
	
� �
	���� %��*
�$� '��������+� �	������ ����
�� ��� �����

�$�

���
����
�����
	�
�������

���	
	���������
���������$
����
���������
	
���������1���
�


���
���
�
����
����������
�����������
	���	���������
���������$��%	�����1��
� ������	����
�


��
� 
��� 
�)�� 
����� �
�&����
	
��
��%	��������
	
� ������� ��	�� 
��� �������	
������������

��������������
	�
	����������
��
�����������	

����
��
����������
���

��	����
�	
���

;����- �
� ��� ���
� 
��
� 
����� ���� 
	
� �
	���� ����������� ����������� ���������� ���� ����������
$�

��	������ ���� ����� �	���� ��� �	��� �������� ����� ���
� *
	�
� 
	� ������� 
	� 
�*��

����������������
����1����������$��
�
����
�
�	
���

58



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

;����; ���� �����
�� ����� 
����� ���
� 
��
� �������� �
�
������ ���� �����
����� �	������ �
� �	���� ���

�		��
	� ����	��� 
���1��$�����
�� 
�	� 
��
������$��������$� ����� 
��
� 
��� 
$���	����������


��
�������	������������
������

;����9 ���� �������

�
����� ���
� 
��
� 
����� ��� �� ���� ��	����� ��
�� ������� ,����
$� �
�� �
�
������

�������	�������
��� 
��� ���
��
��$� �
����-�� �
��������	� ���
� 
��
�	���������
�� ����������

�
���������
��	
��%��*
�$�'���������
��!����
��%�����������1����������
	�������������
��


���*
	�������	�� 
�������������	���
���� �
����� ���
� 
��
���&�='���	���� ����������
�


�����������	
�$���
��������
�
��
�
���*
	�������
��
���	���������������	��
��������������


��$���
����$�
		������	
�
�������
����
��6�����
�	
��$�
�����
��������
�
��
����
����������

�	�����

����������
�
���������1�
��$���	����������(��
���
	�����
�	
���
��
���

;����  ���� �����
�� ����� 
����� ����� 
��
� ���
	����� �	� 
	
� *
	�� 
��� ��	������� ��� 
��$���

� 
	�

�	�����
���	�
�
��������������
��$��������
�����$� ��
�� 
���	����
	���
��
	
�
����	�
�����

������ ��	���� ��� �	��� �
�	���
�	
� ���������� 	
� 
��� �	�����

� ��	�������� �
� ����

��������
���
��
�����	�����

����������1�
����	�
�����	��
���
���
���

;����� ���� �����
�� ����� 
����� ����� 
��
� ��
*�� 
��
� ���� ��������$� ����� 
���� 
	� ��� �	
���1� �
�

�	

���
�
	�
��������
���	��
���%��*
�$�
���������$������
��
�
���@���
��
��������
�
���

�	�
���� ���� �		�1� ��
� 
��� %�����$�� ����� 	�
�
� 
�*�� ���$� ��
*�� 	�� �������� ��
*��

��
�	�
��	
���
�
�	
���
��
���
���������$������
�������	���������(	�

���
*����������
��
���

@���
��
�� 
�����
�� 
���%�����$�� 
��������� �����
�� ����� 
����� ����� 
��
� �� ��
*� �
� 
���

>���
���	���������
�������1��	������
�����
��	�
����	����	�(��
�
	��
��

;����� �����������

�
������
�
���
��
�
���
������	����
	
� 
�*������
$� 
�)�����	�
�	
�����
���

��������������
�&����
	
��
��%	��������		���

�

*�9�	�+���
���	

;����� ��)��	����
	����	�
	
���

�
�������
�	
����
���
	�������	������
������
�
���
�����������
���


��
������ ������� 
���� $�����������
� 
�*�
�����
�� 
��$����� (	�
���	����
	�������$� �����


��
�
�����
�������	�
���	���$���	������������������
��
����������	
�����$����	������


�������������*�	����
*��������	�
	����
�����	���������������

���
����������	������

;����2 ����	����
	��������
��
�
����������	���
��
��
	��������������
�
����	��

1��������������

�
������ 
�����	�� 
�����$������	�����������������
���������
�����

���	���������
�
��

�������
���
���������
�
	����
��������
	��	�����
*���
����
��
�
�����	����$���
����
��
�
�����

���
�� �
��������

� ���������� ����	
�� �	�� 
���� ���� ����� 
	� �
�����+� �	
���
�	
� �
� ���
��
�

59



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 


����� 	�� ��$1� ��(	�� �	��� �	�*�� �
�� ���� �
	��� �
�� ��	�� 	���� ��	�*�
�� ������� 
	� 
���

�
�
�	
���

;����: ����
�)��	����
	����	������*��
	���������
*�	
������
����	������
����	������������	
�C

��$�������������,��

�$�����
����	������)��	����
	����
��
���������
�
�	
������
����	���	��

��D2���������	���������
	�
������*�	��
����
�
�	
��	�����1�
���%�����$��
���������
	
�

����	
����
	�
�����	�	�������	��$�
��

;����< ���� ���
� �
��$��
�
��� 
��
� 
��������� 
	��
��
� ����
�� �
� &����
	
� �
��%	��1� $�
� 
���

�	�
���� ������� �	��� ���
���� ���� ���
� ���	�
� ���� ����� 
	� (��
��$� �)
��� �����������

����������� ����
������
�	����
���������
	��
��
�����
���B����
	��������	
�������
��

���������������
��%��*
�$�'����������
���	�
�	��
���
�������
	������	�
	
������������


$���	���������� 
��$� �������1���
� ����
�������������������� ��� ��,���
��� 
���	����
	����
�

��
����
�����
���������������*
�$����������	�������
�������������������
��
��	
����
����

����������� ����� 	����
	��� �
�
��� 
��
� �������� ��	���� ���
������� 
�)�� �������
� �����
��� �
�

�)
���D<����
��$������
	��	�	�
�	���
������
��
�
��$������
�
	��	������������������������

;����- B����
	��������
��
�
����������
	��������������������������������������
���<����
���
��
�

���������������$�$����������,������
	���������������������������!����
����������������
��
�

��
�����$�	�����	��������
������������	���,������
	���������������������������

;����; B����
	��������
��
�������������,��
������1����
��$������
���
������
��
��������
	
������


�	������
�&����
	
��
��%	����

;����9 �
� ��� ���
� 
��
���������,����
$����� �
������������
�� ����

�$������B����
	����	���� ��*�� 
	�

���� �� ������� 
��
� ��
����
�� �	�
��1� �������� 
	� 
��� 
���
�
�� �	�� @	
�	
� 
�)�� ���������

B����
	������	����
�
��
�
����	�
���0���������	��������
��������
	�
���
����1��
��
��$��	����

��*��
	��������	�����	
����
��
��������

;����  3�
����������
	���
*�1�	����
	��������
��
�
�������������*�	����
*������1����������$��
�
���

������
���
���
*��
��
������
�
��
���
*����������
����	������������
�����
*�	
�6	�
��

�
���
���
*������
	�
���	����������*�	����
*��������
�&����
	
�F�%	�����
�������
�
��
���
*��

����
	
�����$���
�
����	�
�����	����
���	��
�	
���

;���2� B����
	�����������

������
��������
� ��
*��
��
���������
������	���

���	�����������	����

����������
�����
*��	
�3��
��
���
1�=��
��
���
��
���
�
���B��������%	
�����
�������
�
��
�


�����������
�������������������1��
��	����
	����	������*��
	������
��
�	����
�	
�����
�	
�

�� �������$1� "����$� �
�� ��
����$� 
���
�� %	�����1� 
��$� ����� 
��
� 
��� 
����� ��	���� 
	
�

�����
	����
�
�����	����	�
��
����������	�����	

����
��
		���	
����
��
����	������

60



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

	

	

	

	

1���4���
�	��+�����
�
����	���	$�����	$�������	

;���2� ��	� �	���� ��	���� ����� ����� 
	� �	
���
� ��
�� ��������
$� �������

�
����� �
�� �	�����

����������������
��
�����	���	
�����
�
�������������������������

;���2� ���� �������

�
���� �	�� ��������
$� ��	���� �
�
��� 
��
� 
����� ��� �
� ������ 
�$�
�� 
	� �		*�

����������� ��������������������� �
� ����	
��������������������������������������� 
�
�� 
	�

��� �
����
��

� �
�� �	
0
� ����$�� ���� �� ������
�� ���$� 
�
�� 
	��	�*� ��	�� 
��� ��
*� �
��

.�����$����*0�(	��������
��
����
������
���
��9����G�� �2���
���:�2��G��<�:<��
��������
�


��
� �
� ���� �
�������$� ����1� �
�� �	��
����� ���	������1� 
	� ������� �� �		*�
�� ��� 
���

�����������������
��������	�����		����
���B
����
�����
��
�������������
�
	���
���
�)�������

��
����$��
����
��$��	�
�
��������
$��������������������	�*�����
��
���
���
����	����

@�
���	
��
�
������
�
�����
��������
�)���������,���
����$�
�	���
�������
���
���	�����	��


���
�� 	�
� ���� ���	� ��
��� ��� �� ��������
� ����	�� 
	� ������� �� �		*�
�� 	���� 
��� ��	
���

'	���
���� 
�
�� 
	� ��$� �������� D<� ���� (	�� 
	� 
�*�� 	
� ����������� (	��1� ������ ��� 
	
�

�
	������������������ ����������� ��������� ���� �)��
����� 
	� ��
��3���������� �����������

�
	�� ���
�� 
�)�� ��������� ��� �
� ��� 
		� ��������
� 
	� �		*� �
�� �������*�� 	
���� ����
����

��

�
�
�����

;���22 ������	��������
������������
$�������	�
��	��	
����
�
�������
����	���	����
������
��


	��		*�	����
�����	
���8
������

����
�
�$�
��
	����C�		*����
	�����������
�����$�
	���


	���
�����*��<���
�
������	���
��$�
����
	����������
���
�)���	���
��������
����������

����������������������� �
� 
�����������
� 
��� 
������������
� 
��
� �����
� �
� 
�������
�� 
	���

��	��� 
	����
�
��$�
����
	� ������ 
��
� 
���������
	���������� �
� 
��������� �
���$���� 
���

����� 
��
� 
������������������������������	�*�
�� 
��
���$���
� 
����	���
$0��	
�$� ����	�

��
��
������
��
���������8���	�
����������	�*��	��
�)���	���
�����
����
	
������

���
	�
�*��

�
��
���������������0��
�������
�	�����
	������
����
	��		*�
���������
�$��

;���2: �	����������

�
��������
�
��
�	�������
����������
	��������������
��
��������
	�
�����	��

�	�������������������
*���
�
�����
$���

���
�
��
	���������

$�	������������������������

���*
�$� ����������� �
� ���� ������
��� 
��
� 
��� �)��
�
�� 	
��� (��
� 
���� 
	� ��� 	
� ����	�

������
���	�
��$���
�����		*����	��������$��������������	���
����
	��
������	����	�*��
�


���
��
�����	�	����
��	�
�����	��
�����
$���

����

61



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

;���2< �
����� ���
� 
��
� 
�������������
����� ���*�	�����,��
�� �
�	���
�	
�	
� 
�)��������������	�

�������

�
���������������
�����	�
�����������	���

���
��
�
��$�����
	
������
��$������

������
�	������
���	������
���
������
	��		*���
�)���"	��
�	���
��
�����
�)�����������$�
��$�

���
�
��
�
���������
	���$�	��*
	��
�����
����	��
	
����
�$	����
��
���������������
�)���
�

	����
�	
���������������	��	��
��$	������������
	��
�	���
�	
�	
�������
�)���	���
����

��������
�
$����	������������	�*�
���	��
�����
��
$�	
��
�����
��
������������
���
��

$�

��	�
����
����	��
	
� $	������� ��� ����� 
	��
���
�*�� �� ���
������� (	��
�$��
� �� ���
�������


������
��	�������	�������	�
�

��	���
$��
�	���
�	
���	������
	�
	
�����	���$����C������

��� 
������������
$� ��	������	����� 
	
� ����� ������� 
	� �
�	���
�	
� �����

��� �
� 
����

��$���	���	��
�����������
$��������

�
��������
��
�
�	������
��������

����
���
	�*
	��


����	��	��
���

• 3��
�
���
�
���	��������������
	��
���
�*���
�	�����
	�,�����$��	��
���������
��R�

• 3��
����
�)����������������
�	��
���������
����������

������	

���
���
	��	����		��

��
�R�

;���2- 3�
�� �������� 
	� �������� ,����
$1� �������

�
����� ���
� 
��
� 
��� %��*
�$� '��������� �
�

&����
	
��
��%	����		*�	
��	��
������
��
�
����	�

�$��������������
	���	�������������

��
�� �������� 
	� 
��� ����
��
���� 	�� ��*���� 	�� ���������� ���� 	
�$� ������� ������� ��
��

��������
	���������������
�����$���������������
�	
��	���	���	��
�����

• %����		��G�
�	���
����������������
��������������������������$�
	
������
	���
��
���

�
�
��������*
�$����������

• '������G����������������
	
C�
��	���������L��������
�1��
����
	
������
	�����

������


	�
�������������
���
�����	��	
���������
������
���
�
���������
������������	����


	
����*��
�
	�
�*������������������
��������
������
����
������
	
��������

• ������G�!�	������������	�
�����
������������
	
�	
����
�������
�������
�	�


���*������
	
�����	����
������������0�������������
	
��
��
���
�
�����	

��
�����*��

;���2; �
�������
�
��
��������0������
����	����������
�������
	
�����
+��	���)�������	����
$����������

��	���� ����
	
����������
�� �����������������

�
�������� ���
� 
	��������
����

� 
	� ���
��


�)��������
������	��
�	����

�
��
���������������)�����
�����
�
������
����
�$�����
	�

������� ��
	��
���� ���� ���
� ����
��
�	
� ���� 
��
� 
����� ���� �	
�� 	�� �����$� �������� �
��

������������������
���		�������������
��
����
	
��	�������
	��		*����
�����������������
��
���

��$�
����$�
����	�*���
������

����������	�����	
���������
������
�
�����������������


��
��������
����		*�
������
	
�����	����
��	��
��������������
	
��,�������
	�
�*��
����

62



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������� 	�� ���L���� 	�
� ��������
����� B
���� 	�����	
�� ������ �
���������� ����� ����

��	�������������
��
�)�����������������
�������

• ���������
��
�
����
������	��������������������������
��	������
�	��	�
�	��
���
�)��

• ��������������
���
���������
��$�������	��������	��	�����
��
�����	�
	
�*
	���	��
	�

����
�������1��������
��

• ��������
	
��
����
�
��
��
���
����
	���
�	�
�	��
���
�)���	�����
��	���������$�

����������
����������
	���
�
����*
	��
��$��������������

• ����������
�����$����
���
�����
��
	������$	�1�
�$�
��
	��������$	���)
���	��
	
�

������$�
���		����

����

• �������������
��	������
�
��$�����
���������������������	��

• �������� 
	
� ���
�� ����� 
	� 
�*�� �� ������ �	�� �������� 	�� ��
���� 4
���� ��	���� ���

��
����������
�
����		*�
���
���5�

• ��������
	
�*
	��
��
������������
�	
��	��
�����	�
�����
�������������
���*����
�
���


����	���		*�
��

• ��������
	
����
�������
	���������������������������
������������
	����������*��

;���29 �
� 
����� 	�� �	����� ��������� �	

���
�� �������*� 	
� ������� ����	���
��� ��� ��
�����$�

�	��
����� �
� ��� ���
� 
��
���������	

�
��
$� ����		���
��
���	
�$�	�����	������������
��
���

����������

;���2  3�
�� ������� 
	� 
���
�
�1� �������

�
����� ����� 
��
� �
� ��	���� ��� ����
��� �
�� ����������


���
�
�����
��������
���	�
��
�
�������
���)�����
����@�����������
��
���
���	�
���
�
��

�
�
������ ��	���� ��� ����
��� 
	� ��
� �
� ��
�� 
��� �
�
������ ��� 
�������$�� �
� ��� ���
� 
��
�

�������� �	�� 
��� �����
�	
��� 
��
��	�
� ����
� ��	���� ����� 
��� 6PN� ������� ,��������
�	
��

����
�
����	�����������
�	
��	��
	���������������������������������������
� 
��$�����

�	���
�
����
�����
�
��$��������	����"����
���
�
���	�������	���������
��.����
�
	�/��
0��

8�� &����
	
� ��� �� 
	����
� 
	�
1� 
��� �������

�
����� ���
� ����
�� �� �		�� �����������

����������� ���������	���� ��� ��
�������� 
	� 
��� 
	�
� �
�� 
��� ��	
	�$1� ��� �
� ����� �

���
�

�	�����	������

;���:� �������

�
������
�
�� 
��
� 
����	�
���������D-<��	�
��	�� 
�)���	������� �������������� ���


	
�
�*�
�����%	�����1�
�����	���
	
��	����$������
��	������	
�
	�	
������������
����
	
�

�
�	��	
� �	�� �� (	��
�$� �
� 
	� &����
	
� 
	� �	�
� ��
���
� D�<� �
�� D2�1� ����
��
�� 	
�

������
����
��������������1��	�
���D-<���$�����	������������
������

����	���
��
�	
��8��


	
������������
�&����
	
��
��%	�������������������$�����������1���
��	������1� �
�����


	
����
���������
��
��	����
��������������
	�����������
�����������������
�	�����
	���
�
���


�)���	��������
��
��
�
�����
�	��	
�����	
����	����
	
������
����$��)����������

63



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

;���:� �
��������	���

�	
��� 
��
� 
��������� �
�	
���
�
�$� ��
���
� ���������������
�� 
��
� �
�

����
����$�����$����������
	��������	�����	���
$��
��
�����
��
�(	��
�$���	������
*��
�

&����
	
L%	����	��������$������	����)��
������

;���:� !	��������	��
�	
����
��	�������$� 
��� �������

�
�����
	���������
������������������
���

�
��������

• �����������������
���
�
��
	��
�
����
�
�����	��
	��������
����	������
���	����
$�

��������

���
���	���
���
���
$�����
���

• '��
����
	�
����		*�
���$�
���

• 8��	��
�����C�		*�
��	����������������������

• ��	�	�����
�
���������,���
�	
�
���
�
���
����	���		*�
��
	���	����	
����	
�

• >	����	���������	�����������
�����	���
��
�	
� �	��
	
� 
�*�
���������������1�	��

��������	���������������������

�

"�����	

;���:2 8��������

�
������	��
����	�����
		*����
��
�
����	
���
�
�	
�������	������������

�
����

����� 
��
�&����
	
�F�%	��� �����������$����$��		��������� 
��
��	�
��
�� 
����� ������		��

�����$� 	�� 
�)���� �
� ���� ���

������ 
��
� 
����� ��
� ��� �
� ������ 	�� �	
���
�	
� �
� 
��� �����

�
�
�	
���
*����
�
�����
*�����������
��������	�
	
���
��
�
���������
		���
$�
�)�������
��

�
�&����
	
�F�%	�����

;���:: ��
��� 
��� B��� ����� ��
*� ���� ���	���� 
�)��� ����� ���
� ���*�
�� 	
� 
��� ����������$�

�����
�� �	
���
�	
� �
�� ����
$� �������� ���� �������

�
���� ���
� 
��
� 
��� ��
*� ��	���� ���

���
�
�
�����

;���:< ������ ����� ���	� ���
� ��������	
�� 	�� �� 
��� ��
*� 	
� N���
�� �	��� 	��	��
�� 
��� 	���

����
	�� ������	���� ��� ����� ��� �� ������� ��
*� 
	� 
��� ����� �
�
�	
� �
�� ����� �������� 
���

�	
���
�	
��
������
$�������������������
�
����������

�

1�� 5������
	������
�
���	

;�2�� �
�����
�	
� 
	� 
��� ����� 
	� ������	
���
�
�	
��
���
�*�
��� 
������ 	���
�*��	�����������

�	

��
����$���

����������
�
��
���������
��������������
�������������������
������������

�

	���
���
�	
���
���	������������	��������
���
�	��	�
�
�
$� 
	��	���

��'	�����	������


����������������
��������
�8���
��)�:��

64



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

;�2�� �
� ���	���
��� ��
�� �����
��� ������� �$� 
��� ���� 
��� �	��	��
�� �
�*��	������ �����

�	

��
����

• &����
	
��
��%	���'�
$�'	�
���+�

• !	����+�

• ���		����
��'	������+�

• '����
�����	���
���
�	
�+�

• ��������
$�	���
���
�	
�+�

• &���
�����������

�
����+�

• @���
����!�������+��
��

• %	
�����

�

;�2�2 �����	���

���������������	�
��
������	���

$����9	1��#	.������
���	

;�2�: 8� �������

�
���� ��	�� 
��� �����)� ����� 8��	���
�	
� ����	
���� 
	� 
��� ��

��� 	�� ���

�
�

�	
���
�
�	
�� �
� ���� ���
� 
��
� 
��� ���,���$� 	�� �	
�� ���*
�$� ���������� �
�� �����
�� �����

��������� ��� ���,��
�� ���	��� ���� 
����� 	�� 
��� ��$� �
�� ���	��� ���� ������ �
�&����
	
� �
��

%	����

;�2�< 3�
���������
	�
���������	��
���
�����
����������

�
�������
�
��
�
���,����
$��
��
$���	��


����������������.	*0���
������	���

�����	
�
��
�������������	�
�
���*�
���	����$��

�

��	���	�
������������	���
��$���
��

	�
�������	��������
��
	�
�*��
���������������
����	�

����
������	�����
�
�
�	
���
������
�*�
���	
�����	�
��+��
��������
�
��
�����
�	
���
���
�
��

�	���������
����������
���������
	������*
	��������

;�2�- ���� �������

�
���� ���� 
	
� ����� 
��
� �
$� ����
�	
��� ��
*�� ���� ��,������ �
�&����
	
� �
��

%	����
��
	�����	����

������
�������
��)��
�
����
*���

;�2�; �
� ���� ���
� 
��
� ����
�	
��� ����������� ����������� ��������� ���� 
������ �
� &����
	
� �
��

%	��� ��� ������ �
� 
��� ����� 8��	���
�	
� ��
�� �
� ���$� ��������
� 
	� ������� 	
�+� ���
� ����

�		*�
������������� ����������� ��������� ������ ����� 
	����
� ����	)���
��$� :<���
�
����

�����������

�
�����	�������	���*��
	������
�����	����

�
	�
�)���
	���*��
�����	���

�����������
	��������	�������
��$�����	�
�
��
�����
	��	���
���
����
��
�����������

;�2�9 ����������
���
�����
�&����
	
��
��%	��������	
��������������
�����
������
���
��������
�


��
�
����������������

������
���
��	���	
�������
��������
�����*
�$��������������������

65



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

;�2�  8��	���

������������	�
��	����������������
��
		����
��
���	�
��
��	������������
�1�

��*�
��
����������

�
����������
���������$��	�������	���*��
	���������������
���
*��
	�

��*��
��������������������
����
�
���
���
*���

;�2��� "�
���$1� 
��� �������

�
���� ���
� 
��
� 
�)��� �	������

� 	
���� 
$���� 	�� ������� 
��
��	�
� �
�

&����
	
��
��%	����
��
��
�
��$�����	�
�
���

���
��
��������

��������	���	B����	"��+��=�	*���
	*����+��
	

;�2��� 8��������

�
������	��
���'H!�����
��	�
�����	
����
	�
������

�
��	
���
�
�	
���
�����

���
�
��
�
��������$�	����������������
�����$����,��
�1��	���������
�
������
�����������


�)�������	�
�
���
�1����
�
�	����
��$���������
������		*�����
�����
�	���
�
��
���������


�$��
����
��
��)
���(	������	���
������		��(	��
�$���

;�2��� 3�
�� ������� 
	� 
��� ������ 	�� 
��� 
����1� 
��� �������

�
���� �	���

��� 
��
� 	������� 
���

���*
�$����������
������
�&����
	
��
��%	����������	
���$�����������������������������

�����$� ���	�
���������� 
�)����������(	��
$�	�������������� ����
��$��
���	��
�+��	��������

�		�� ����
�	
������ ��
�� 
��� �������
� �
�� �����
� 
���� ���� ��$	
�� 
����� ��
$1� ������ 	
�

	�����	
��������	�������	��������
��$����	���
		���	����

;�2��2 ���� �������

�
���� ���� 
	
� ����� 
��
� ����
�	
��� ����������� ����������� ��������� ����


�������B
�
��������
�	
��	

���
������������ 
�)��������		*����
����
�������
�������

�������	��
����	��
������		��$�����%	����������
�����
�	
���������������������������������

��� 
������ 
��� 'H!�� ��� ��,������ 
	� ��
�� ��� 	
�� �	��� ���	��� 
��� �������� ��� 
������ 
	�

��
����
�� �	����
$� �������������� ��� ���������������� �$�
������� ����� 
	� ��	���� ���
��

��
���	�����	�

��

����
���
�����$�
����������
	����
�)�����

;�2��: ������������
$��������

�
$����	��������������
����
���������
	�
���
$���	��
�)���������1�

�
��	����������
����$����	�������
	��	����������������
���1����
���	������
�	�
���
	
��������

��������
$� ��

	
� ������� �	��� 	�� 
��� ���������� ������ ��� �� ���
������� ��	����� ��
��

�	������������������ ��� 
��$� ���� 	�
�
� ����$� �
�� �	��� �����������$� 
	
� ��� ����� 
	�


�*��
�����

;�2��< �
� ���� �	
�������� 
��
� 
��� ������ �
�� �
���
���� 	�� 
��� ������ ��� ,��
�� �)��
����� �
�

�	������	
� 
	� 	
���� �������'	

���
�� �	�� �	
�� �����
�	
� �
���	����� ����� ���� ��
� 	
� ��

���C
��	
��
����	

���
+��	������
������*
�$��������
���	���������
������
�	
��	

���
�

��������

;�2��- 3�
���������
	��������
$1�
�������������
	�������

$�	�������
���
���	������	����	���
����

�	�������
����
	
������$�������

�
	��	�����������
��
��
��	�
�����
�����

66



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

;�2��; ���� �������

�
���� �	���

��� 
��
� 
��$��	���� ��*�� 
	� ���� 
�)������������
� ��
*���
��

���	�
�	���
��
��	�������	����
���
��	��
����
	�����$�	�
���	
�����*��	
���������	
��������

	��
������������1�	
�	�����	
1� �
��������
�������
���
��
��
,�������������������������
�

�����
�����*
�$��������
�	����
��� �������

�
�����������
�
	������
���	�� 
�����8�!�6�

�$�
����	��������������

�
���1���
�	�����
��	���������$������������

;�2��9 �
����� ���
� 
��
� 
�)��� �	������

� 	
���� 
$���� 	�� ������� 
��
��	�
� �
�&����
	
� �
��%	���

����	
���$� ������ &	
�� 
�)��� �
�� ������ ����� �	���� 
	������ �
�������� 
������� 	��

����������� ����������6	
� ����$	
�� ������ 	
� �������
����� �	�
�� �
�� ����
� 
��� �		�� 
�)��

��������� 
	��
�� ��	��
��� ������$��
�
�	
�1� 
���	������� 
��
��	�
��	��������
��������� ���

����	
�����

$����9	"�����	

;�2��  8��������

�
������	��
��������)�!	���������	
����
	�
�����

���	�����

�
��	
���
�
�	
���
�

���� �
�
��� 
��
� 
��� 
�)�� ��
*� 	�
����� 
��� B��� ����� %	
��� ���� ���
� �	�
� ���� 
	� 
���

����
�
�� 	�� 
��� ������

�� �
� ��� 
	�� ���$� ��
���	��� ��� 
�)��� ���� ,����
�� ��� 	
� 
���

�
�������
��	��
�������������������$��������
��
�	
�����)������
����$�
�)���
��
��	�
���C


��
���
�
����	����

;�2��� �����������

�
�����	���

���
��
�
������
���$�
	�	�����	���
������	������	�������
	�

����� ������
$� �
���
�$� 8�
�	��
$� 4��85� 
���
��� 
�)�� ��������� �
� 
��� ��
*��� %	�����1� �
�

������*
	��������
��
���
�
��
��
�����	��������
��������

��((���
�	����	

;�2��� 8� �������

�
���� ��	�� '	���
�
$� &���� ��	������ �	���

�� 	
� 
��� ��	����	
� 	
� 
�)��

��
*���
�&����
	
��
��%	����

;�2��� �
��������
�
��
�
�������
��	
�
�)����
�&����
	
������	
����
�����
��$�������
����
�
���
�)�����


	
������

�$�������
�������
	���1�
������������������	�����
����
��$�����	
�
�����$�
	�

���*�����������
����	��
	
�� �
�	
���������1�
�������
� ���	
���� 
����������� ��������������	��

�����������������
���
$���	������������
�&����
	
��

;�2��2 ���� �������

�
���� �
�
��� 
��
� 
���� ��� ���	��
�� �
� ������ ��� ���� ������

��������
$�

��	������
��	��
�)���������
��$�����
��
�
��
������$���	�����������
���	����
����
����������

�	��
��
����	�
�
���
�)�1�
��$���

�
	�*
	�����
����	��
	
��
���������������	������1�
	
�����
�

��� ��*�
�� �	
�$�� ���� �������

�
���� �	���� ��*�� 
	� ���� 
��� ���
�
�� 	�� 
��� ����
��

���
�����
�&����
	
�
	�
�����������	
�����������
	���	����	
����	
��

���
���	���	�����(�	1�+��
(��
@	�����
��	���	����	��
�	�������	

67



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

;�2��: 8��������

�
������	��
���'��
�����
��=�	
	�$������
��

��
�&����
	
��
��%	���'�
$�

'	�
��������	
����
	�
����	
���
�
�	
���
��������
�
��
�
��������$�	�����*
�$��������������

���,��
�� ���	��� 
��� ��
$� �
� ���� 
����1���
�	�����	��� ���	�
� �	���� �������� 
	� ���
�	�
�

�����
�	
��
	�
���
�����
�
�)����
*��

;�2��< ���� �������

�
���� ���� �
������ 
��
� 
����� ���� �����
�� ����� ��������� �
� &����
	
� �
��

%	����

;�2��- �
��������
� 
��
�
�����(	��
$�	����������������
��		���	
��
�	
1���
�	������
�� �������
	���

��
	��
$� 	�� ��������� �
� ��� ,���
�	
������	�� 
��$� ������� 
�����>B������� �������

�
����

�	���

���
��
���������

�
�������
����$���
���
�����$���	�����	
�����
�	
���
��
�������


��$� 	
�$� ��

� 
	� �������� �	�� �������� 
��� �	�
���� ���� ���� �������

�
���� ���� ���	�

��

���������������	�
��
��	������������
�1���	*�
���
�
���������������
��
��*�
��	
�
�����

�	�������	
����

;�2��; ���� �������

�
���� �	���

��� 
��
���
$� �������� ���$� 	
� ��
����
�� 
�����
�	
� �$�
����

�
��	�
�
�
�*�����	
�����	�
��	������
������	��
���
��
��	��
��������
�
���'�
$���
����������
	�

��������������������������
��
�
���
������	
�����

;�2��9 3�
�� ������� 
	� ��
*�1� �
� ���� ���
� 
��
� 
����� �	���� ��� �	��� �
� #���
	�
� �
�� ��

���

���
�	�
�
��
	���
*�����
�������

;�2��  ���� �������

�
���� �
�
��� 
��
� ������ ���� ����
�
��$� 
		� ����1� 
��� �������

�
���� ����

�	�����
��� 	
��������� 	�����	
�� 
��
� �������� �
��
� 
�����
������	��� 
��$� ���*� $	������

���$����	������������	�������
����
�)�����
��$�������
�������.�����		*��0���
�	����$	������

�
�����
	������
�����	�
��

;�2�2� �
��������
� 
��
�
����������������

��������
$���	�
�
�)���	

��
�
���������
�
	
���	�
�
���

��
*��	��
�	
���

;�2�2� ���� �������

�
���� ���� 
����� ���
� �
����� �����
� ���
�� 
�)��� �
� &����
	
� �
�� %	��� ��
�

��
�����$��	����
	
����
��
�����
*���
���
�
���
1����������$��
�
���
	�
���

����������

�

�

68



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

8 Trade Survey 

3�� 5�
�����
���		

9���� 8�
����������$����������
�����
��
�������	���	����
�
���
�	���
�	
��
����������	���	
��


��������
����
�������
��������$����	�����
���������

�	��	����
�	
��� ��������
��������

	��
������*
�$�������������*�
�
	���������

�
�����
*�	������
�	
�1�������������	����
��

�
�	�����

��
����������
$� ������������ �	��	��
�����
�	
������������ 
��� �����
��	�� 
���


����������$��
������������
�����������

����
�8���
��)�<��

3�
 $�����	4�(����
��
���		

9���� ���������$������	
���
���
��	������������	����
�	
�,���
�	

�������������������

�
	�

�19��� ����
���� ������� �
�� �����
�� ����� �������� �
� &����
	
� �
�� %	���� 8� 
	
��� 	�� <�-�

,���
�	

����� �	���� ����� �	����
��� �
�� ��
��
��1� ����
�� �� ����	
��� ��
�� 	�� �9M�� �
�

��	���� ��� 
	
��� 
��
� 
	
� ���� 
	
���� ���� 
	� 
��� 
	
��� 
������ 	�� ����	
��

�� ���� 
�����

��	�������	�������	
��

���������
	��
���������,���
�	
���

3�� �������	�2���
�����	5�����	

9�2�� ���� ����	
���� ��	������ ����� ���
� ����������
��� 
	� ��	�� 
��� �����
�	
�� �
� ���*
�$�

����������
�������
�������
���������	
�����B����
�����,���
����	�� ����	
�����������	��


�	����
�
������*
�$����������
����������	�
��
�"������9������	�����

�������@��#�$����-��
��(���	��
	�	�"�����
�!��-�	�

76%

24%

Hackney carriage

Private hire

�

69



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

9�2�� "������9��� �
����
��� 
��
�2 M�	�� 
������*
�$���������� 
�������������
� �
�	����� �
� 
���

&����
	
� �
��%	��� 
�)�� 
����� �	���	��� 
��
� ��� $����� �������� � M� 	�� 
��� �����
�������


�������

�������@��#�8������
��(��%����	��
-�
�	.��
�����0�
���
��%��%� �
��� �����������-�G��������

%�������-���

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

0 – 2 2 – 5 5 – 10 10 – 15 15 – 20 Over 20 

Years

%

Hackney Carriage

Private Hire

�

3�� 6������	

9�:�� ����	
��

���������*������
�
$���	����������
��$��������	�
����,��

�$��������(	��
$�	��

���*
�$������������������4;:M5��
�������
���������������49<M5������������		
������

9�:�� ����	
��

�� ����� ��*��� 	
� �������� 
��� 
������ 	�� �	���� 
��$� �	�*��� �
� �� 
$������

���*����������*
�$����������
�������
����
���������	��:-����	�����������*��	�������

��
���
���������	��:9�:�	�����������*��	��
��������
�������
������

9�:�2 ����	
��

���������*���
	��
�
���	����
$��	����
��$��	�*����
��������

�
�����	����$�

����
�� �� 
$������ ���*�� "������ 9�2� �	����

�� 
��� �������� �	���� �	�*��� ����
�� 
���

��$
��������	��4�-���C�9���5� �	���������$�	��
������*���B
��������1����*
�$����������


������	�*�������������	�

�	���	����
	�
��������
�������
�������
���	���
��
�
������*
�$�

���������
������	�*�������	��������
��
������*��$���$
���1������
�
��������
�������
�����

70



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�	�*�������	����	
������*�
����$
�����8���
�	
���$1��	
��
�������	�*��	�������
��
���

���*���$
�����
��
�
������*�
����

�������@��#�+�������-����0��%���	������-�

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun

HC PHV

�

9�:�: "������9�:���	���
�����������
������	���	�����	�*�������
��
������
�
�L
���
�����	��

4�9���C�-���5�� ���� ���*
�$� ��������� 
����� �	�*1� 	
� �������1� �	
���� �	���� 	
� ����$�


���
��)���
���
��$1��	
��
�������	�*��	
����	
�>	
��$��
��"����$����
�
����

71



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������@��#�+�������
��%����0��%���	������-�

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun

HC PHV

�

9�:�< ����
������������*������
����
���@���
��
��8�
����2����������
������
�	
�
�����
$������

�	�*�
�����*��%����	�����*
�$��������������	
��

���
�
���
��
��
����������
������
�	
�


�����	���������
��2�M�	�������
�����������	
��

�����

9�:�- ��	��� ��	� �������� 
��
� �
� ���� ���� �
� �����
� 	
� 
����� 
$������ �	�*�
�� ���*� ����� 
��
�

��*����
����
���$��
����������
���
��������������
��������	�
����	���
�������9����

!�"���@��#��((� �	��(��%���))��2� �
	�
��+ ��=4����������	��
	�	>�

�� �
���'��������!��-�� �������������!��-���

������
 �� ��� �
�� ������
 �� ��� �
��

3	�*���
����
�
������
�
�� ��;� -:�2� �9� <��:�

3	�*��	���	
�����	���� ���� -��<� ��� -����

B
���� ��� ����� -� �;���

�

9�:�; �	���-:M�	�����*
�$��������������	
��

���
��<�M�	�������
����������������
�
���
��
�


��$��	�*���
����
�
������
�
���

72



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

9�:�9 ����	
��

���������*��� 
	��
�
�� 
���
������	��
����� 
��$�����$���������������
�����

	
������*�$��������������9�����	������
��������
�����	���-�M�	�����*
�$�����	
��

��

�
��<;M�	��!����
��%��������	
��

���
�
���
��
�
��$�����$���������������
�������
	�<�


����������*���

!�"���@��#�������
 ���(�!��
	������(�8�	�"��-����	�
	�

�� �
���'��������!��-�� �������������!��-��
�

������
 �� ��� �
�� ������
 �� ��� �
��

6����� 9:� ���<� �2� �����

��
	�<� ���� < �<� --� <;�:�

<�
	���� ::� ���9� ��� �;�:�

���
	���� � � <��� <� :�2�

>	���
��
���� :� ���� �� �� �

!����� �9�� �))�)� ��7� �))�)�

	

�

3�! $�#�
�	*	$�����
�	

9�<�� ���� ,���
�	

����� ��*��� ��� �������� ���� ���
� �

��*��� �$� �� �����
���� ��
��
� 
��� ���
�

$�������	�����M�	�����*
�$�������������������
��;M�	�������
����������������
�
���
��
�


��$� ���� ���
� ��$������$� �

��*��� �
� 
��� ���
� $����� 3����
� :�M� 	�� ���*
�$� ���������

����	
��

���
����M�	�������
�����������	
��

���������
��������$��

��*����

9�<�� ����	
��

�������
��
���*������
��$����
�����������
��	�*�
�������
�)����������
�&����
	
�

�
�� %	��1� 
��� �����
�� 	�� ������ ���� ��	�
� ���	�� �
� "������ 9�<�� ���� ��(	��
$� 	�� ����

���*
�$��������������	
��

���
�
���
��
�
��$����
�������	���	��
���
����4-�M51��������


�����(	��
$�	��
��������
�����������	
��

��4<2M5��

73



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������@�7#�8������(����	�(���%��	�������
���	���!�/��8�������
�$���%��
��
-�����K�

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Yes, all of the

time

Some of the time None of the time

%

Hackney Carriage

Private Hire

�

9�<�2 B��
�	����
�
�
��
��
�
��$����
��
����1�;<M�	�����*
�$�����������
��-�M�	�������
�������

����	
��

���
�
���
��
�
��$����
��
����������
��	�*�
���
�
���
��
�&����
	
��
��%	�����

74



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�

�������@�5#��%�
�-������(�����
	�(���	�����/��-�������
�$���%��
��
-�����K���

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Day time Night time In certain areas

%

Hackney Carriage

Private Hire

�

9�<�: �	���<�M�	��
������*
�$����������
������
�
���
��
�
��$�������
������
����
��
�������	��

&����
	
� �
�� %	��1� ��� ���� < M� 	�� 
��� �����
�� ����� 
������ ���� ������ �	�
� �	��	
�$�

���	�
���������
���
���������+�

• 3��
����*+��
��

• >	�����		���

�

3�% �����	

9�-�� >�������	���	
��
�������������*������
����
��$���������
����������������

���
*�������

�
�&����
	
��
��%	�����	���9 M�	�����*
�$��������������	
��

���
�
���
��
�
���������


	
���������

���
*��������
�&����
	
��
��%	��1��������-:M�	��
��������
�������
������

9�-�� ����	
��

�������
��
���*������
�����������
$��������
�&����
	
��
��%	���������
���

��
*����	������� �

�	��������	���-�M�	�������
�����������	
��

�������
����������
	�

75



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

������������
�����
*���������,�����1������
�;-M�	�����*
�$��������������	
��

�������


����������������������
�����
*�������
�������

9�-�2 ����	
��

�������
��
���*����
����
��	��
�	
��
���
�����
*���������,������������	�
�

�	�������	��
�	
��������
�������+�

• &����
	
��
�
�	
1�N���
���	��+��
��

• B��������%	
��1�#�
����	���

�

3�1 &����	

9�;�� >������� 	�� �	
�� 
������ ����� ��*��� �	�� 
����� 	��
�	
�� �������
�� 
��� �����

� ������ 	��

���*
�$���������������1�
��������
�������	����

����
�"������9�;��

9�;�� �	���- M�	�� ���*
�$���������� ����	
��

�� �	
�������� ���*
�$� ��������� ������ 
	� ���

.��	�
�����
0����

�������@�9#�E�����(��� �
���'������������	�

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Too high Too low About right None/no

opinion

%

Hackney Carriage

Private Hire

�

3�3 /�������	

9�9�� &	
��
�������������*������
��$����
�
��
�
�)�������������������
	����
���
�
�����	������
��

���

���������
������	�
������	��
������*
�$����������
�����4--M5��
��;2M�	��
��������
��

76



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

����� 
����� ����� 	�� 
��� 	��
�	
� 
��
� 
���
�
�� ���� �
��������

�� ��	��� ����	
��

�� ��	�

�
�
��� 
��
� 
��$� ���
0
� 
��
*� 
��$� ��������� ��������

� 
���
�
�� ����� 
��
� ��*��� ���
�


���
�
�� 
��$� �	���� ��*�� 
	� ���� 	������� 
	� ��������� ���� �����
�� ���� ��	�
� �
� ������ 9�2�

���	���

!�"���@������%����--����
�������
�
���	�
� �		���K�=4����������	��
	�	>�

�� �
���'��������!��-�� �������������!��-��
�

������
 �� ��� �
�� ������
 �� ��� �
��

&�='L6PN� :�� ����� �-� �9���

=
������@�
������ ��:� -��-� 9��  ����

��������
$�8����
���� ���� �;� � 2�� 2-���

#
	����������
� �; � <���� -�� - �;�

'��
	����'���� �-�� :<��� -9� ;-�:�

�����
��8����
$����
� �-9� :-� � <:� -��;�

B
���� 2:�  �<� -� -�;�

9�9�� ������(	��
$�	��
������*
�$����������
�����4 �M5����
�
��
�=
��������
���������
����	�
�

���	�
�

� 
���
�
�� 
��$��	���� ��*�� 
	� ���� 	������� 
	� �������� ��� ���� -2M� 	�� �����
�� �����

����	
��

�������
�)
��	�
��	������
���
�
����,���
���������*
	�������
��
1����
	����

������
���������
�������
$�
��
���

9�9�2 ����	
��

�������
��
���*������
����
����
���
�
����	��������	�����	�$�	���	��

��$��

B��
�	�����	��
�������
����,���
�	
1��	���  M�	��
��������
�������
����������
��
�
���


���
�
����	��������	�����	�$�������� ;M�	��
������*
�$��������������	
��

����

�

3�. /�0�	 ����
	��	�����
��	���	����	

9� �� >������� 	�� �	
�� 
������ ����� ��*��� ��� 
��$� ����� ������ 
��
� &����
	
� �
�� %	��� '�
$�

'	�
���� �
�	����� �� 
��������� ����
� 	�� <�2� 	
� 
��� 
������ 	�� ���*
�$� ��������� ��������

����
�����
�
�����
$������������
������	�
��
����
�"������9�9��

77



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

������� @�@#� ����� ���� ������ �%��� �%���� �	� �� 
�0��� ��� ��0��� �
� �%�� 
�0"��� �(� %� �
���

 ����������%� ����� �
 �	��
�$���%��
��
-�����K�

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Hackney Carriage Private Hire

%

Yes

No

�

9� �� ������(	��
$�	��
������*
�$��������������	
��

���������������	�
�
���
�������������
�

4;9M51�-<M�	�������
�����������	
��

�������������	��
������
���
�	
���>�������	���	
��


������ ����� ��*��� ���
���� 
��$� �	
������ 
����� 
	� ��� ��������

� ���*
�$� ���������� 
	�

���
� 
��� �����

� ������ 	�� ����
�� �
�&����
	
� �
��%	���� "������ 9� � �
����
��� 
��
� 
���

��(	��
$�	������	
��

����	��
������*
�$����������
�����4;<M5��	
������
�����
	����
		�

��
$� ���*
�$� ���������1� �	������� 
	� :-M� 	�� �����
�� ����� ��������� �	��� � M� 	��

���*
�$��������������	
��

���
���2M�	�������
�����������	
��

�����
� 
��
�
����������

��������

����*
�$������������
�&����
	
��
��%	����

� �

78



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������@�*#�8������ �
	�-��� �%���� ���"��	�((� ��
��%� �
��� �������	� ���0���� �%�� ����
��

�������(�-�0�
-��
�$���%��
��
-�����K�

0 20 40 60 80

Yes, there are too many

Yes, there are sufficient

No, not during all periods of

the day

No Opinion

Don’t Know

%

Private Hire

Hackney Carriage

�

9� �2 ��	��� ����	
��

�� �
�
�
�� 
��
� 
����� ����� �
��������

� ���*
�$� ���������� 	����
�
�� �
�

&����
	
��
��%	����������*������
�
�����	����$�����
�	
�������������������,�����������

�����
�� ���� ����������� �
� ������ 9�:�� B�� 
�	��� ����	
��

�� 
��
� ���
� 
����� ���� �
�

�
��������

� �����$� 	�� ���*
�$� ���������� 	����
�
�� �
� &����
	
� �
�� %	��1� - M� 	�� 
���

���*
�$� ��������� �
�� -�M� 	�� �����
�� ����� ����	
��

�� �
�
��� 
��
� �	��� ���*
�$�

�����������������,�������
�&����
	
��
��%	�������
��
������
�
���
��
���
��

!�"���@��#�C(��
	�((� ��
�:��%�
�����0����%� �
��	� �������	��������-K�

�� �
���'��������!��-�� �������������!��-���

������
 �� ��� �
�� ������
 �� ��� �
��

����
��
�����$
���� �� ���� �� :�9�

����
��
������
�
�L
���
� ��� -9�9� �2� -�� �

8�����$��
��
���
� <� 2���� ;� 22�2�

!����� �5� �))�)� ��� �))�)�

�

79



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

9� �: 8�������	
��

���������*���
	��
�
��
�������������
���I���	�����*
�$������������
�&����
	
�

�
��%	�������������
��������
�������
�"������9������B��
�	�������������	�����	
���1�� M�

	��
������*
�$����������
��������
�
��
�
�������
���I����	�����
�$��
�
��������

�
�����1����

�����-M�	��
��������
�������
������������(	��
$�	��
��������
�������
�����4;2M5����
�
��
�
���

����
���	��������	����
��
�<�2��������<-M�	�����*
�$��������������	
��

���

�

�������@��)#�<��
��
��(��%��C-������ �
���'��������������
�D���

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Under 523 523 Over 523

%

Hackney Carriage

Private Hire

�

9� �< 8�������	
��

���������*���
	��
�
�����
��$�
�	���
�
��
�&����
	
��
��%	���'�
$�'	�
����

��	�������	���
���
��������� ����
�	
�
���
������	�����*
�$������������������ ����
�����

��������	
����������
�������
�"������9�����

� �

80



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�������@���#�
%���-�$���%��
��
-������'����'��
 �����0�����%��
�0��� �����0��K�

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Yes No No opinion

%

Hackney Carriage

Private Hire

�

9� �- ���� ��(	��
$� 	�� ����	
��

�� ��	�� 
��� ���*
�$� ��������� 
����� 49;M5� ���
� 
��
� 
���


��������� ����
� ��	���� 
	
� ��� ���	���� �	������� ��
�� <9M� 	�� 
��� �����
�� �����

����	
��

��� �	��� 2�M� 	�� 
��� �����
�� ����� ����	
��

�� 
�	���
� 
��� ����
� ��	���� ���

���	�����

9� �; P�����������	���
��������
��
�����*��$������
�	
����������	�����
	������&����
	
��
��%	���

'�
$�'	�
���������
	����	���
����)��
�
������
�	
����*
�$��������������
�����������
��
���

������������������	���
�����������

����
�������9�<�� � ���

'	
���
�	
�

9� �9 �	��� 92M� 	�� ����	
��

�� ��	�� 
��� ���*
�$� ��������� 
����� ���
� �	
���
�	
� �	����

�
������1� �	���������
�� :-M�	�� 
��� �����
�� ����� 
�������	� 
��
� ���
� 
�����	���� ��� 
���

�������

"�����

9� �  �	����:M�	�����*
�$��������������	
��

���	
��������
��
�
������	��������
��
�������

�
��������	��	��
����C���
���
�	
1��	���������
��� M�	��
��������
�������
������

�

81



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

!����
����3��
�
��������

9� ��� ������(	��
$�	�� ����	
��

�� ��	���	
�� 
��������������� 
��
������
�������
�
�� 
������
�

��
*�1����
���������	�����
��		*����$�
�����	
�1��	�������������	��
	
���������
�����

P�������N����
$�

9� ��� ������(	��
$�	�����*
�$��������������	
��

����������
��
����*
�$�����������
�������
��

����� �������� ,����
$� �	���� ��������1� �������� 
�����(	��
$� 	�� �����
�� ����� ����	
��

��

��������
��
�
������	�������
	������
�	
���������,����
$���

=����
���
����	��=
�	�����

�

9� ��� 3�
���������
	������
���
����	���
�	�����

1�-;M�	��
������*
�$����������
����������	��


���	��
�	
� 
��
� ���	��
�� �)��
�
�� ����
��� ���
���
�	
���	���� �����
� �
��� ��������1���
��

:�M�	��
��������
�������
��������
��	��
��������	��
�	
���

��������!�$�
���	��%����

9� ��2 �
� 
�����	�� ����������$�
�� �	��������$������
���������������1�<<M�	�� 
������*
�$����������


����������	��
���	��
�	
�
��
������
����
�����
������
���
�	
��	
��
�	
���	�����
�������


������
���
$1��	�������
	�2�M�	�������
�����������������	���<<M�	��
������*
�$����������


��������
�
��
�����������$�
���	��������$��
����
��������������	�����
��������	���������
��

29M�	��
��������
�������
������

B������
*�
��

9� ��: &	
��
������*
�$�����������
�������
�������
��������
�	������
*�
���	�����
������1���
����

����	
�����
��	��9 M��
��;�M�������
����$���

'��
	������
�����
�	
�

9� ��< �	��� ��M�	�� ���*
�$� ��������� ������������� 	�� 
��� 	��
�	
� 
��
� ���
	���� ��
�����
�	
�

�	���� �
������������ �����
�	�� 
��� ���	����	�� 
��� ����
��� ����
1��	������� 
	�2<M�	�� 
���

�����
�������
������

�

�

�

�

82



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

!�"���@�7#��%�������-�%����
�	%���-�$���%��
��
-������'����'��
 �����0�����%����0��K�

�� �
���'��������!��-��=J>� �������������!��-��=J>�
�

C
 ���	�� 3���((� �� 8� ���	�� C
 ���	�� 3���((� �� 8� ���	��

��������'	
���
�	
� 9��;� �<�-� ��-� :-��� :2�:� ���:�

"����� �2�9� <��2� �:� � �9� � -:��� �;���

!����
�������
�
��
������
���
*�� -��� ;:�9� � ��� 2�9� :��<� <:�;�

!����
�������
�
��
�������
������	�
� <��� ;���� �2�-� :�-� 2 �:� <-���

!����
�������
�
��
�����$�
�����	
�� �2�;� - ��� �;���  �<� <<��� 2<���

%��*
�$������������������,����
$� -��� �;�9� --��� :�;� <;��� 29�2�

!����
���������������,����
$� <�9� 2���� -:��� 9�2� <9�;� 22���

=����
���
����	���
�	�����

�  ��� �2�<� -;�:� 9�<� <�� � :��-�

����������$�
���	�������G������
������� <:�;� �-��� � ��� 2�� � 29��� 2�� �

����������$�
���	�������G��
����
���� <<��� 2��<� �2�:� 2;�;� 2 �-� ���-�

B������
*�
��� 9 ��� -�9� :��� - �;� ����� 9�2�

'��
	������
�����
�	
� ����� :���� : � � 2:� � :��2� �2� �

9� ��- ����	
��

�� ����� 
��
� ��*��� 
����� 	��
�	
� 	
� �� ������� 	�� �
�
���

��� ���� ����
�

�
�
���

� ���� =/����	 ��	 ��
	 ������	 ����	 
�	 ��22��
	 
��	 ������
	 ��(9��	 �#	

�������	���������>�����������
��������	�
��
�������9�-��

!�"���@�5�M!%�����	�
����
���%���������	��������%�� ����
��
�0"����(�%� �
��� �������	.�

�� �
���'��������!��-�� �������������!��-��
�

������
 �� ��� �
�� ������
 �� ��� �
��

�
�	
��$���������� � � <��� �:� �2�2�

��������� ��� 2�2� ��� ���<�

6��
����������
	����������� �:� -�-� ��� � ���

8����� 99� �:��� �:� ��� �

�
�	
��$������� ��2� -�� � 2-� 2:�2�

�	
��� �55� �))�)� �)7� �))�)�

83



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

9� ��; B���������	�����*
�$��������������	
��

��4-�M5��
�	
��$���������
��
����
�
���

�
��
�


����� ��� 
	
� �
	���� �	�*� 
	� ����	�
� 
��� �����

� 
������ 	�� ���*
�$� ����������� �	���

2:M�	�������
��������
�	
��$�������
��
�
��������
	
��
	�����	�*��

9� ��9 �����	��	��
���	���

����������	������

• .%��*
�$���������������������
����
	�	
���	����	����(	�0�

• .�		���
$�
�)����
������

0��
��

• ��
*�����������	��
�)�������
���
�����

�

9� ��  �������	
���
�
���

�����.���	��
��
�������
�	
� 
���
������	�����*
�$������������
�

&����
	
��
��%	����	������
���
� 
�����������$� ������
�� 
������
�
��
�����
� ��
*�0������

�����
������	�
��
����
�������9�;��

!�"���@�9#��M��0���
���%����0����
��%��
�0"����(�%� �
��� �������	��
�$���%��
��
-������

����-�"�
�(����%����"�� �"����-� �
���%�������
����0�������
�	.�

�� �
���'��������!��-�� �������������!��-��
�

������
 �� ��� �
�� ������
 �� ��� �
��

�
�	
��$���������� � 2� <:�9� 2�� �9�-�

��������� - � � �-� ��� �����

6��
����������
	����������� �;� ;�;� ��� ���<�

8����� � � 9��� ��� � ���

�
�	
��$������� 2:�  �;� �2� ��� �

�	
��� �7�� �))�)� �)7� �))�)�

9� ��� �	���;:M�	�����*
�$� ����������������� �
�	
��$� ����������	�� ���������� 
��
� ���	��
��


��� ����
� 	
� 
��� 
������ 	�� ���*
�$� ���������� �
�&����
	
� �
��%	����	���� ��
���
� 
���

��������$�������
�����
�
��
������
���
*�1��	�������
	�: M�	��!����
��%��������	
��

���

9� ��� �����	��	��
���	���

����������	������

• .��
*����������$�������	��
�)��0��
��

• .'��
	������	�
	
������
	����
��
���
*�0�

84



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

9� ��� ����
������
�
���

�����=/����	���	�2�����	�����(�
�����	��	�����
��	���	����	
��
	

(���	
��	��
��
���	�#	 
��	��(������	��(�
	�����
���>�����������
��������	�
��
�������

9�9����	���

!�"���@�@#��M!%��������	�� ���� �� �0	��
 �	��
�$���%��
��
-�������%���0�����%������
���
�

�(��%��
�0��� �����0����		�
����.�

�� �
���'��������!��-�� �������������!��-���

������
 �� ��� �
�� ������
 �� ��� �
��

�
�	
��$���������� 2-� ��� � � � �9�;�

��������� �-� :�9� ��� ��� �

6��
����������
	����������� �9� 9�<� �;� �-�9�

8����� -�� �9�:� �-� �<�9�

�
�	
��$������� � �� <;�:� �9� �;�;�

!����� ���� �))�)� �)�� �))�)�

9� ��2 �	��� ;-M� 	�� ���*
�$� ��������� 
����� ������ 	�� �
�	
��$� ������ 
��
� 
����� ���� ��������

�������
�
���� �
� &����
	
� �
�� %	��� 
��
� ��*�� 
��� ��
�

�	
� 	�� 
��� 
��������� ����
�

����

���1��	�������
	�::M�	��
��������
�������
������

9� ��: �����	��	��
���	���

����������	������

• .����	
��������0�

• .�	����

��
����		��,����
$�	���������0��
��

• .�		���
$�
�)���������$0�

9� ��< 8�������	
��

���������*������
�
��������
�	
�
�����������	����������
���
�������������
�

�������	��������������
������	�
��
������	���
�������9� ��

9� ��- "�
���$� 
��� 
����� ����� ��*��� ���
� �����
� 
��$� 
�	���
� �
� �	���� ����� 	
� 
���� ��� 
���

��
�	��
$� ���	���� 
��� 
��������� ����
������ �����
�� ��	�� 
��
�;�M�	�����*
�$� ���������

����	
��

�� ��
��� 
��$� �	���� �	�*� �	��� �	���� ��� 
��� 
��������� ����
� 	
� ���*
�$�

�����������������	�����
��	������	
�
	�: M�	�������
�����������	
��

����	���22M�	��

�����
��������������������
��$��	����
	
����
������ 
��� ����
��������	������	���:�M�	��

���*
�$� ��������� ����	
��

�� �	���� ������ 
��� 
����1� ��� �	���� �<M� 	�� �����
�� �����

����	
��

���%	�������	���:�M�	�������
�����������	
��

���	�������
�����	�������
��

�����
	����*
�$�����������

85



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

!�"���@�*#���((� �	��(���0���
����0���=4����������	��
	�	>�

�� �
���'��������!��-�� �������������!��-��
�

������
 �� ��� �
�� ������
 �� ��� �
��

���	�����	

�
������
	�����
:;� ���2� 29� 22�2�

���	�����)���
�
	��	�*��	����	���� �-;� ;���� <-� : ���

���	�����)���
�
	��	�*��������	���� -� ��-� �� ����

���	������,����������*
�$����������
����
���

�:� -�2� 2-� 2��-�

���	������,��������
��������*
�$�
�������������
����

�:� 2�;� -� <�2�

���	�������
�����	�����*
�$�
	������
��
�����

��� 2��� �� �� �

���	�������
�����	�������
�������
	�
���*
�$�

;� ��9� :9� :����

���	����������
���
����� �<<� :��;� �;� �:� �

B
���� 2:� 9� � :� 2�<�

�

9� ��; #�$������
����	��
��������������$���
�����������������+�


�00����

#�$���
��
�����	��
��������$���
�������������������	��	����

• ������(	��
$�	��
������*
�$����������
������
�������
�������
�����
�	���
�
���
�
������
	
���������

��
��

=
��������
������
���
�
���
����
�������������,�������

• >�(	��
$�	���������������������	���	��
���
���������
��	�*�
���
�&����
	
��
��%	���

• �	���99�;�	�����*
�$��������������	
��

���
�
���
��
�
���������
	
���������

���
*��������
�&����
	
�

�
��%	���

• �	���:��;M�	�����*
�$�����	
��

���
�
���
��
�
��$��	����������
���
�������	����
�����
�	��
$���C

���
���
��

86



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

9 Disabled Access 

.�� 5�
�����
���	

 ���� �
� ��
����
������,���
���	��&����
	
�F�%	���'�
$�'	�
�����
���������

�	��
��� ������	��

�����$� ���	��� 
��� ���*
�$� �
�� �����
�� ����� ���� ����
�� �
� &����
	
� F� %	��� ����

�
���
�*�
���

.�
 ������
	"��������	

 ���� &����
	
� �
�� %	��� '	�
���� �����

�$� ����
��� ��-� ����������� ����������� 
�)���� � �����

�,��
��� 
	� �:M� 	�� 
��� ����
�� � ������ ���� ���	� ��� ����������� ����������� �����
�� �����

�������������
�����,��
�
��
	������
��
�<M�	��
�������
���

.�� �9������	��(���	

 �2�� ����
�� 
��� ��
*� 	������
�	
� ��	������� 
�
������������ ����������� 	�������� ����
�� ��


�)���"	��������	���������
�&����
	
��
�
�	
���
*1�
������
�
���=��
��
���
���
*1�
�	��
��
�

!�
���� !����� ��
*� �
�� 	
�� �
� 
��� !��
	
� !����� ��
*�� � �
� 
	
��� 
����� ����� <�1<:��

	�������� �����
���� �����
����� �
����
�
�� 
����� ��� 
	
� �� ���
�����

� ����
�� �	��

���������������������������������	����
*���
�&����
	
��

 �2�� �	���: 2�	
C�
���
�������� �

������������$���������������	�
� �
�E�
����� �� �B�� 
�����

����	
��

�� �<� 4<M5� �
�
��� 
��
� 
��$� �	
�������� 
���������� 
	� ����� �� �	����
$�

��������

���B��
�	������
����
�)���
�
������
�
������	

���4�:51�����
���	����	�
��
���


��������������
�����
*��
��	
��	�
��
��������������$������	�
������������
�
����)�������

�		*���
��������������$�
�����	
���

 �2�2 �	� ��	����� �����
��� ����
�
�� 
	� ����������� ����
�� �
� 
��� ���

� 	�� �� ��
��
�� 	��

���
�����

� ��
�

� �
��
� ����
�1� ����	
��

�� ����� ��*��� 
	� ���

��$� ���
���� 	�� 
	
�


��$���������
�������
�
���	����
�)���
�����
*1�	
�
����
���
1�	���$�
�����	
���
�&����
	
�

�
�� %	��� �
� 
��� ���
� 
����� �	

���� � B�� 
�	��� ��
�
�� �	����
$� ��������

� 
�����

����	
��

����������
�������
�
�� �	���� 
�)���$���
���� ��
*�	�� ������	�
� 4��M5������� ���

�	����
��
���
����$���	������
�	�
����	����
$� ��������

1� 4�2M5���E��
�
�	�����	
��

��

49M5���������
�����$�
�����	
��G�
����������	�	�
�	
���
����$���	������
�	�
����	����
$�

��������

���

�

87



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

.��  ��
���	$��22��	$�����	

 �:�� 8�
�����	
���������$�
��$���	����������$�������������	�
�
	��������
���������	�������$�

	�� ���*
�$� �
�� �����
�� ����� ��������� �
� &����
	
� F� %	���� ���� �����$� ��
����
��� 
���

�������� ���
�
�� 
����� �	�� �� �
�
����� �������� 	�� �
$� 
$��� �
�� 
��� ���
�
�� 
����� �	�� ��

������������������������������
	����	���
���������

�	�����
�
��
������	���������������

 �:�� �	����	�
$��
,������������
���
�*�
���
������
���	�����*
�$�����������
�������
�������


�)�� 	����
	��� ��
��
� &����
	
� F� %	��1� ����� 	�� ������ ��*��� �	�� �
� ��
���
�� 	�� ���
�
��


������	���
$�
$���	���������1��
��
���	
�����������*�
���	���
���
���
��	�����
�
��
�����

�	���
��������������������������� ��������������
��������
���

�!�"���*��� �����
��!�0�	�(���+  �		�"����
-�
��
-��-�E�%� ��	�=0�
���	>�

�
4�
�0�0������

!�0��
4�/�0�0������

!�0��
+������������

!�0��

�
�
�����P������� <� -�� ���

8����������P������� <� -�� :2�

�

 �:�2 ���������
���
����
��
��
����
��		*�
����
�)������
���
�����	
�1������
������)�����
���

���������
����
����
�
��
�����	���
��������������������
��
�
��$��	��	�����
�
��������������

���������������
�
��
�����	�����
�
�����������������	���
��	������	
�
	�
������
�
��
����

�	����������������������������������

.�! ���
�(��	$������	

 �<�� �������
	����������������������������
��

���
�
��
	��		*���
�)���
�&����
	
�F�%	����

���� ��(	��
$� 	�� ��	
�� 	����
	��� ����� �	��
�� �
�� ��������� ��� 
��$� ���� 
	
� ����� ��

����������������������������������������
��$��	����	�
�
������
���
������	���
	
����
�)��

�������	��������*��$�
	������	
�����������������������(��
�	
���
�
�
���������
�����	
��

	����
	������
	
����������
������,��
�������
	�
������
	�����

�

.�% �������	
��	����	#��	����������	�������9��	��9�	

 �-�� "�	��
����	�

�	�������	�����
�����

��
��
�����
�1�����
����	��������������
	��������


	
� ������

������� ����������� 
�������
��������	�
��)��������$�����
�����	
���		*�
���

�
��
�����	�����������$	
��
�������
�	�����*
�$�����������4&����
	
�����
�5����

88



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

 �-�� /���
�
��
1��
�
���
����	��
��������$�1�
���
������	������������������������
��
�
����

����

���*
�$��
�������
���������������
������:;�
����	��	��
���	��������	�������
���
���
��	��


���
������	������������������������,������
	������
�
��
������������
�$��
����
�
��
������

1

2

1

2
Qx

D

D
Q = �

 �-�2 3������� �

• 8�����
���������������$��	����������������������J�:2���
�
��+�

• 8�����
�������$��	���
$�
$���	����������J������
�
��+�

• ������
��������

�
������	�����������������������
�
����

��������
�4���*
�$�������

�����
�����������5�J�:;+��
��

• ������
���
	
�����,������
������	������������������������,������
	������
�
��
����

��������
�$��
����
�
��
������

�

574147
11

43
2

== xQ �

 �-�: ���� �	������ �
����
��� 
��
� �
��--����
��� ��@� �  �		�"��� ��%� ��	� ��
��-� ��� �� ��-���

 �� ���� ���� ��,������ 
	� �����
�
�� 
��� ��������
�$� �
� 
�����	
�� �		*�
�� ���
�
�� 
�����

��
���
�������������
��
	
���������������������� � �
���	�������
	
��� 
��
� 
��������
��

�	������
�	
�����������������������%����-�0�
-��
��
�����	���
	
�������

�
	�
���������	��

���
�����

��
��
�����
��������������������	����������
	�
��������
��	
�$���������������

���������������������
�
��������
�����������
�� ��
� ������	�
��������
��
�
�����,������

��	��

����
�	
��� ����������� ��������� ��� 
	
� 
���������$� �� ��,������

� �	�� �	��� ����
����

���������� ���� ��������
�$� �
� ���
�
�� 
����� �	���� ��� �������
��� �$� �������
�� �
�
�����

��������� ��
�� ����������� ��������� 	�� �	

��
�
�� �����

� ����������� ��������� 
	� ����	�

������
��� 6����
������1� �
� �����
�� 
��� ����� 
��
� �
� ��� �	������� 
	� ����	��� 
��� ������ 	��

�������� 
	� ��������� ��	���� ���� �
������
�� 
��� 
������ 	�� ����������� ��������� ����������

���
�����

�$��

89



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

10 Summary and Conclusions   

�-�� 5�
�����
���	

������ %����	�������	
���
������
��$�	��
������*
�$�������������*�
�	
��������	��&����
	
�F�

%	���'�
$�'	�
�������

������ ���������

��
��$��������
��	
���
����
�������
�	��
����	��	��
��	�(��
������

• 
	� ���

��$� ���
���� 	�� 
	
� 
����� �)��
�� �� ���
�����

� �
��
� ����
�� �	�� ���*
�$�

�������������������
�&����
	
��
��%	��+��

• 
	� ���	���
��
��� �
������� �
� ����
���� ��,������ 
	������
�
���
$����
�����

��
��
�

����
�+��
��

• 
	���������
$����
�����

��
��
�����
���	���������������������*
�$����������

����������
���
*���
��
�����	
���		*�������
�����

�

�����2 ����� ���
�	
� ��	������ �� ������ �������
�	
� 	�� 
����	�*� �
���
�*�
� �
�� ����������� 
���

�	
�����	
���
���������
�	
���	��������
	�$��	���$��

�

�-�
 $����#����
	7�(�
	6�(���	

������ ������� ��
��$��������

������
��
�
��������6B������
���	�����
�����

��
��
�����
���	��

���*
�$����������� �
�&����
	
�F�%	����������	
�����	
� ���������	
��
���������

�	��


����������
�	
��	�����������
��
���������������
�������1��
��
��������
��	��%����	�0��

�
��$�����

������ B
�
����������
�����
�	��
$�����������
�	
��
��
�����*
�$�����
��
���	���$��
����$���
�����

• �	

�
���
	�����
�
���
������	������������
��<�9���
������
�	
��������������

���������������
������������

����$����
�����
�	��
$��������
+�

• �������
$�
������	������
�	
������
�������
��������
1���
�����
�	
�����	��
�	
�	����

�������	�����	��
�	
�+�	��

• ���	���
�������
�	
�
���
������	������������
�����	����������

�$��	���$��

90



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

�

�-�� $�((���	�#	������
�
���	?	5�
����
��	"��
���	

���2�� ���������
��

��	�����
��	�
�������,���
���
��
�����
��
����
�	��
�����	
���
������$�
	�

�
�	���
������	���$���*�
���
� ������
�	���	

�
�����

�$��	

�	��
	�
������*
�$����������

���*�
�� �
� ����
�	
� 
	� 
��� �	
���
�
�	
� 
��
� ���� �	�
�
��$� ���
� �
������� �
� �����	���

���*�
� �
������ 4�	�����	
��
��� ��
�� �

����
��� ���
���51� %����	�� ���� �	��	���� 
���

���������������	�����
���	���
�
���������	������
�	����
�	������
�
���
�)��
�������

���2�� �
�*��	������ ����� ��
�����$� ����$� ��
�� 
��� 
������� 	�� ���*
�$� ���������� ��
�

��������
����	��� ����������� ����������� ��������� ��	���� �������� ����������� !��
�������

��	�������������������
�����
���������
	�
�������������
$�	�����������������������
����		��

�	

���
�
������������
������������
	�
���
����
	�����	����������
���
�
��	��	�
�
�
�����

��
*�����������
$����� 
���	
����*�$���������������
�����
� ����������
�*��	�������	�
	
�����

�	
��������
*��������������

�	���
�
�������
��	��
�	
����

�-�� $�((���	�#	������
�
���	?	�������	"�9���	

���:�� �	���: 2��

����������������������
�E�
����� �������*�$������
����������	��	����

• �	���-2M�	������	
��

�������������
�)���
�&����
	
�F�%	�����
��
�
������
�
�����

�	

��+�

• %�����������	����
�����
�	
���
������$�	
����
�
�����

• �	��� �2M� 	�� ����	
��

�� ���� ����
� ��� 
�$�
�� 
	� 	�
��
� �� �������� �$� ��
*� 	��

�����	�
+�

• �	��� <<M� 	�� ����	
��

�� ����� 
��
� 
�)�� ��������� �
� &����
	
� F� %	��� �	���� ���

����	����4
����
	�����������5+��
��

• >�(	��
$�	������	
��

�����
���������
��
�)�������
��
�����$��
��
���
+�

• �	���-9M�	������	
��

�������
��
�
��$��	����
	
���������
��
	���$�������������
	�

��
����������+��
��

• �	���::M�	������	
��

���
�
���
��
�
��$��	������������������

�

�-�! $�((���	�#	������
�
���	?	/����	

���<�� �	���<�-���������	��
���
���������	
����
	���
����������$�� �����*�$� �����
���������

�	��	����

91



�

U:\Projects\Other Offices\VH Taxi Studies\CTLCWH - Brighton and Hove Taxis 2009\DOCS\Outgoing\FINAL REPORT.doc 

• ������(	��
$� 	�� 
������*
�$� ��������� 
����� �
�� �����
�� ����� 
����� 
�	���
� 
���
�
��

����
	
���������

��
��=
��������
������
���
�
���
����
�������������,�����+�

• >�(	��
$�	���������������������	���	��
���
���������
��	�*�
���
�&����
	
��
��%	��+�

• �	��� 9 M� 	�� ���*
�$� ��������� ����	
��

�� �
�
��� 
��
� 
����� ���� 
	
� ��������

�

��
*��������
�&����
	
��
��%	��+��
��

• �	���:�M�	�����*
�$� ����	
��

���
�
��� 
��
� 
��$��	���� ������ 
��� 
�������	����


�����
�	��
$���C���
���
��

�

�-�% �����������	

���-�� ������� ��
��$��������

������
��
�
��������6B������
���	�����
�����

��
��
�����
���	��

���*
�$����������� �
�&����
	
�F�%	����������	
�����	
� ���������	
��
���������

�	��


����������
�	
��	�����������
��
���������������
�������1��
��
��������
��	��%����	�0��

�
��$�����

���-�� B
�
����������
�����
�	��
$�����������
�	
��
��
�����*
�$�����
��
���	���$��
����$���
�����

• �	

�
���
	�����
�
���
������	������������
��<�9���
������
�	
��������������

���������������
������������

����$����
�����
�	��
$��������
+�

• �������
$�
������	������
�	
������
�������
��������
1���
�����
�	
�����	��
�	
�	����

�������	�����	��
�	
�+�	��

• ���	���
�������
�	
�
���
������	������������
�����	����������

�$��	���$��

��

�

�

92



Halcrow Group Limited 

Arndale House  Otley Road  Headingley  Leeds  LS6 2UL 

Tel +44 (0)113 220 8220  Fax +44 (0)113 274 2924 

www.halcrow.com 

Appendix 1 
 

�
�������	�
	����
����
��	����
���
����
	�����
���	��

�

�
	�����
���	� ��
����

���������	
���		���� 
�

������������	���� 
�

��	������	���� ��

������������� ��

�	������
������� ��

���	�������� ��

����������� ��

 ���������!������ "#�

$��%���&� '�

(�	��������� #�

�������� �	����� )�

��	����������� 
�

 ��������	������� 
�

*����������� 
�

����+�����	��	������� ,�

(�����%�������	���� 
�

�������	��������� ��

�������	���� ")�

(�	-��
������ ��

�����!����&� )�

�	��������	���� ��

�������.��	�� /�

0������	���� "'�

0����	����	���� ��

��	����1���� 
�

���� 	�2�� )�

1����&������ ��

1�����%3�	&���		���� ��

*���������� #�

 

93



Halcrow Group Limited 

Arndale House  Otley Road  Headingley  Leeds  LS6 2UL 

Tel +44 (0)113 220 8220  Fax +44 (0)113 274 2924 

www.halcrow.com 

Appendix 1 
 

 
�

�
	�����
���	� ��
����

��	������	���� ��

���-��3�	&������� "�

����-�	��42����� )�

0�	������ 
�

0����0�&� 
�

��	������	���� ,�

��������.��	�� ,�

0����	������� ��

������������ 
"�

�

94



Brighton Railway

Wednesday 17/12/2008 0700-1300

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

07-08 40 38 4 42 0.50 5.53 2 0 0 1 0

08-09 107 79 50 23 2.34 1.46 11 0 1 0 0

09-10 168 132 80 47 2.38 1.78 13 0 1 0 0

10-11 146 114 38 114 1.30 5.00 12 0 1 0 0

11-12 127 98 30 139 1.18 7.09 13 1 1 0 0

12-13 108 91 15 141 0.69 7.75 6 0 1 0 0

Total 696 552 217 506 1.56 4.58 5 1 0

Thursday 07/05/2009 1300-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

13-14 85 65 0 263 0.00 20.23 0 18 0 0 1

14-15 90 59 0 265 0.00 22.46 0 16 0 0 1

15-16 93 68 0 273 0.00 20.07 0 20 0 0 1

16-17 109 77 0 246 0.00 15.97 0 18 0 0 1

17-18 172 115 0 154 0.00 6.70 0 8 0 0 1

Total 549 384 0 1201 0.00 15.64 0 0 5

Tuesday 28/04/2009 1800-2300

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 117 102 0 143 0.00 7.01 0 7 0 0 1

19-20 184 155 6 135 0.16 4.35 6 0 1 0 0

20-21 169 137 0 203 0.00 7.41 0 8 0 0 1

21-22 151 127 8 150 0.26 5.91 7 0 1 0 0

22-23 125 111 0 205 0.00 9.23 0 9 0 0 1

Total 746 632 14 836 0.09 6.61 2 0 3

Saturday 30/05/2009 1000-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 80 41 0 137 0.00 16.71 0 8 0 0 1

11-12 145 64 30 101 1.03 7.89 21 0 1 0 0

12-13 127 74 29 70 2.24 0.31 15 0 1 0 0

13-14 161 96 72 6 2.50 3.75 19 0 1 0 0

14-15 112 64 56 48 0.92 3.59 12 0 1 0 0

15-16 152 85 28 61 0.00 15.56 12 0 1 0 0

16-17 96 54 0 168 0.63 3.97 0 11 0 0 1

17-18 183 97 23 77 1.13 5.81 14 0 1 0 0

Total 1056 575 238 668 1.13 5.81 6 0 2

Friday 24/04/2009 1800-0000

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 210 148 0 186 0.00 6.28 0 12 0 0 1

19-20 282 194 0 245 0.00 6.31 0 14 0 0 1

20-21 220 134 0 290 0.00 10.82 0 20 0 0 1

21-22 218 146 0 219 0.00 7.50 0 11 0 0 1

22-23 187 122 10 207 0.27 8.48 10 0 1 0 0

23-00 257 174 46 122 0.89 3.51 18 0 1 0 0

Total 1374 918 56 1269 0.20 6.91 2 0 4

Sunday 10/05/2009 1200-1600

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

12-13 72 50 17 149 1.18 14.90 11 0 1 0 0

13-14 86 61 38 99 2.21 8.11 11 0 1 0 0

14-15 109 70 0 105 0.00 7.50 0 3 0 0 1

15-16 115 79 11 82 0.48 5.19 8 0 1 0 0

Total 382 260 66 435 0.86 8.37 3 0 1

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

95



East Street

Tuesday 21/04/2009 1000-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 13 11 0 86 0.00 39.09 0 6 0 0 1

11-12 23 21 0 71 0.00 16.90 0 0 0 1 0

12-13 30 23 0 53 0.00 11.52 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 34 26 0 118 0.00 22.69 0 5 0 0 1

14-15 39 32 0 71 0.00 11.09 0 3 0 0 1

15-16 49 35 0 91 0.00 13.00 0 3 0 0 1

16-17 78 52 0 56 0.00 5.38 0 2 0 1 0

17-18 42 34 0 109 0.00 16.03 0 6 0 0 1

Total 308 234 0 655 0.00 14.00 0 3 5

Wednesday 29/04/2009 2000-0400

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

20-21 75 50 0 108 0.00 10.80 0 3 0 0 1

21-22 97 63 0 118 0.00 9.37 0 7 0 0 1

22-23 169 111 0 143 0.00 6.44 0 7 0 0 1

23-00 106 62 0 170 0.00 13.71 0 13 0 0 1

00-01 48 28 0 137 0.00 24.46 0 10 0 0 1

01-02 22 16 0 112 0.00 35.00 0 9 0 0 1

02-03 9 12 0 80 0.00 33.33 0 6 0 0 1

03-04 4 9 0 63 0.00 35.00 0 4 0 0 1

Total 530 351 0 931 0.00 13.26 0 0 8

Saturday 30/05/2009 1000-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 30 30 0 46 0.00 7.67 0 1 0 1 0

11-12 39 32 0 67 0.00 10.47 0 3 0 0 1

12-13 42 31 0 79 0.00 12.74 0 3 0 0 1

13-14 55 36 0 71 0.00 9.86 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 97 60 0 63 0.00 5.25 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 148 66 0 81 0.00 6.14 0 2 0 1 0

16-17 108 56 0 160 0.00 14.29 0 8 0 0 1

17-18 245 104 0 105 0.00 5.05 0 2 0 1 0

Total 764 415 0 672 0.00 8.10 0 5 3

Friday 15/05/2009 2000-0400

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

20-21 149 76 0 121 0.00 7.96 0 5 0 0 1

21-22 179 110 0 156 0.00 7.09 0 11 0 0 1

22-23 311 156 0 177 0.00 5.67 0 7 0 0 1

23-00 384 194 0 171 0.00 4.41 0 8 0 0 1

00-01 425 221 0 168 0.00 3.80 0 12 0 0 1

01-02 388 201 0 184 0.00 4.58 0 13 0 0 1

02-03 294 147 0 166 0.00 5.65 0 7 0 0 1

03-04 267 138 0 166 0.00 6.01 0 5 0 0 1

Total 2397 1243 0 1309 0.00 5.27 0 0 8

Saturday 16/05/2009 0000-0400

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

00-01 425 221 0 168 0.00 3.80 0 12 0 0 1

01-02 388 201 0 184 0.00 4.58 0 13 0 0 1

02-03 294 147 0 166 0.00 5.65 0 7 0 0 1

03-04 267 138 0 166 0.00 6.01 0 5 0 0 1

Total 1374 707 0 684 0.00 4.84 0 0 4

Sunday 26/10/2008 1400-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

14-15 58 32 0 94 0.00 14.69 0 4 0 0 1

15-16 67 39 0 116 0.00 14.87 0 6 0 0 1

16-17 134 55 0 108 0.00 9.82 0 2 0 1 0

17-18 121 62 0 105 0.00 8.47 0 3 0 0 1

Total 380 188 0 423 0.00 0.00 0 1 3

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

96



St Peter's Place

Wednesday 22/04/2009 1000-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 12 14 0 52 0.00 18.57 0 3 0 0 1

11-12 10 17 0 52 0.00 15.29 0 2 0 1 0

12-13 16 20 0 44 0.00 11.00 0 1 0 1 0

13-14 17 18 0 42 0.00 11.67 0 2 0 1 0

14-15 15 14 0 23 0.00 8.21 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 19 15 1 8 0.26 2.67 1 0 0 1 0

16-17 20 16 0 34 0.00 10.63 0 2 0 1 0

17-18 21 20 6 14 1.43 3.50 3 0 1 0 0

Total 130 134 7 269 0.27 10.04 1 6 1

Wednesday 06/05/2009 1900-0100

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

19-20 9 11 0 40 0.00 18.18 0 2 0 1 0

20-21 14 20 0 37 0.00 9.25 0 1 0 1 0

21-22 21 21 0 39 0.00 9.29 0 2 0 1 0

22-23 20 18 0 42 0.00 11.67 0 1 0 1 0

23-00 34 32 0 28 0.00 4.38 0 0 0 1 0

00-01 13 13 0 44 0.00 16.92 0 3 0 0 1

01-02 2 8 0 42 0.00 26.25 0 3 0 0 1

02-03 4 6 0 33 0.00 27.50 0 2 0 1 0

Total 117 129 0 305 0.00 11.82 0 6 2

Saturday 09/05/2009 1000-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 14 10 0 23 0.00 11.50 0 0 0 1 0

11-12 15 11 4 11 1.33 5.00 3 0 0 0 0

12-13 8 8 0 20 0.00 12.50 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 8 6 0 26 0.00 21.67 0 2 0 1 0

14-15 9 8 0 25 0.00 15.63 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 8 10 0 21 0.00 10.50 0 1 0 1 0

16-17 11 13 0 22 0.00 8.46 0 1 0 1 0

17-18 15 16 0 27 0.00 8.44 0 2 0 1 0

Total 88 82 4 175 0.23 10.67 0 7 0

Saturday 25/04/2009 1900-0300

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

19-20 26 20 3 21 0.58 5.25 3 0 1 0 0

20-21 23 22 0 32 0.00 7.27 0 1 0 1 0

21-22 31 23 0 43 0.00 9.35 0 1 0 1 0

22-23 51 29 10 38 0.98 6.55 10 0 1 0 0

23-00 76 40 0 20 0.00 2.50 0 1 0 1 0

00-01 82 43 13 17 0.79 1.98 5 0 1 0 0

01-02 92 52 22 10 1.20 0.96 6 0 1 0 0

02-03 88 50 20 12 1.14 1.20 8 0 1 0 0

Total 469 279 68 193 0.72 3.46 5 3 0

Sunday 17/05/2009 1200-1600

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

12-13 9 6 0 9 0.00 7.50 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 3 2 2 14 3.33 35.00 1 0 0 1 0

14-15 19 13 2 10 0.53 3.85 2 0 0 1 0

15-16 16 10 0 10 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 47 31 4 43 0.43 6.94 0 4 0

Queen's Square

Wednesday 22/04/2009 1000-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 6 11 0 94 0.00 42.73 0 5 0 0 1

11-12 19 20 0 77 0.00 19.25 0 3 0 0 1

12-13 23 20 0 64 0.00 16.00 0 2 0 1 0

13-14 26 24 0 50 0.00 10.42 0 1 0 1 0

14-15 24 26 0 103 0.00 19.81 0 3 0 0 1

15-16 37 21 0 93 0.00 22.14 0 2 0 1 0

16-17 30 22 0 146 0.00 33.18 0 11 0 0 1

17-18 40 30 0 119 0.00 19.83 0 8 0 0 1

Total 205 174 0 746 0.00 21.44 0 3 5

Monday 27/04/2009 2100-0300

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

21-22 11 8 0 47 0.00 29.38 0 0 0 1 0

22-23 22 14 0 29 0.00 10.36 0 1 0 1 0

23-00 11 9 0 38 0.00 21.11 0 1 0 1 0

00-01 0 2 0 34 0.00 85.00 0 2 0 1 0

01-02 5 3 0 7 0.00 11.67 0 0 0 1 0

02-03 3 5 0 8 0.00 8.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 52 41 0 163 0.00 19.88 0 6 0

Saturday 20/12/2008 1000-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market Conditions

97



Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 15 14 0 43 0.00 15.36 0 1 0 1 0

11-12 34 20 0 37 0.00 9.25 0 1 0 1 0

12-13 22 12 0 92 0.00 38.33 0 6 0 0 1

13-14 33 20 0 40 0.00 10.00 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 42 21 0 91 0.00 21.67 0 3 0 0 1

15-16 25 13 0 72 0.00 27.69 0 9 0 0 1

16-17 84 49 0 103 0.00 10.51 0 5 0 0 1

17-18 103 52 10 45 0.49 4.33 7 0 1 0 0

Total 358 201 10 523 0.14 13.01 1 3 4

SATURDAY 25/04/2009 1900-0000

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

19-20 29 19 0 61 0.00 16.05 0 2 0 1 0

20-21 24 18 0 42 0.00 11.67 0 0 0 1 0

21-22 16 10 0 66 0.00 33.00 0 2 0 1 0

22-23 34 19 0 65 0.00 17.11 0 2 0 1 0

23-00 50 26 1 32 0.10 6.15 1 0 0 1 0

00-01 100 48 60 0 3.00 0.00 8 0 1 0 0

01-02 115 55 95 0 4.13 0.00 16 0 1 0 0

02-03 120 55 112 3 4.67 0.27 20 0 1 0 0

Total 488 250 268 269 2.75 5.38 3 5 0

Sunday 07/06/2009 1400-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

14-15 29 18 0 77 0.00 21.39 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 58 27 0 107 0.00 19.81 0 7 0 0 1

16-17 67 38 5 57 0.37 7.50 2 0 0 1 0

17-18 47 35 24 31 2.55 4.43 8 0 1 0 0

Total 201 118 29 272 0.72 11.53 1 2 1

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

98



Norton Road

Tuesday 21/04/2009 1000-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 4 18 0 63 0.00 17.50 0 3 0 0 1

11-12 9 19 0 57 0.00 15.00 0 3 0 0 1

12-13 3 19 0 49 0.00 12.89 0 2 0 1 0

13-14 4 8 0 62 0.00 38.75 0 1 0 1 0

14-15 2 18 0 65 0.00 18.06 0 2 0 1 0

15-16 15 23 0 40 0.00 8.70 0 1 0 1 0

Total 37 105 0 336 0.00 16.00 0 4 2

Thursday 30/04/2009 1800-2200

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 10 25 0 34 0.00 6.80 0 1 0 1 0

19-20 18 20 0 37 0.00 9.25 0 1 0 1 0

20-21 6 16 0 70 0.00 21.88 0 4 0 0 1

21-22 8 11 0 57 0.00 25.91 0 3 0 0 1

Total 42 72 0 198 0.00 13.75 0 2 2

Friday 24/04/2009 1600-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

16-17 26 38 0 31 0.00 4.08 0 1 0 1 0

17-18 8 17 0 33 0.00 9.71 0 1 0 1 0

Total 34 55 0 64 0.00 5.82 0 2 0

Saturday 30/05/2009 1000-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 3 18 0 43 0.00 11.94 0 1 0 1 0

11-12 13 23 0 32 0.00 6.96 0 0 0 1 0

12-13 14 20 1 8 0.36 2.00 1 0 0 1 0

13-14 20 17 0 20 0.00 5.88 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 18 14 0 21 0.00 7.50 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 12 19 0 27 0.00 7.11 0 0 0 1 0

16-17 5 11 0 44 0.00 20.00 0 2 0 1 0

17-18 14 14 0 20 0.00 7.14 0 0 0 1 0

Total 99 136 1 215 0.05 7.90 0 8 0

Friday 24/04/2009 1800-2200

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 9 30 0 43 0.00 7.17 0 1 0 1 0

19-20 26 34 0 32 0.00 4.71 0 2 0 1 0

20-21 36 33 0 45 0.00 6.82 0 1 0 1 0

21-22 46 28 0 60 0.00 10.71 0 1 0 1 0

Total 117 125 0 180 0.00 7.20 0 4 0

Sunday 10/05/2009 1400-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

14-15 4 19 0 37 0.00 9.74 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 8 15 1 41 0.63 13.67 1 0 0 1 0

16-17 5 14 1 31 1.00 11.07 1 0 0 1 0

17-18 18 21 0 16 0.00 3.81 0 0 0 1 0

Total 35 69 2 125 0.29 9.06 0 4 0

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

99



Hove Railway

Tuesday 28/04/2009 1500-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

15-16 8 14 0 49 0.00 17.50 0 3 0 0 1

16-17 19 22 0 33 0.00 7.50 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 25 23 0 27 0.00 5.87 0 2 0 1 0

Total 52 59 0 109 0.00 9.24 0 2 1

Monday 27/04/2009 0700-1500

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

07-08 3 12 0 19 0.00 7.92 0 1 0 1 0

08-09 10 13 3 9 1.50 3.46 3 0 1 0 0

09-10 33 28 1 12 0.15 2.14 1 0 0 1 0

10-11 26 20 0 24 0.00 6.00 0 1 0 1 0

11-12 20 20 0 37 0.00 9.25 0 2 0 1 0

12-13 14 13 0 46 0.00 17.69 0 2 0 1 0

13-14 18 16 0 44 0.00 13.75 0 3 0 0 1

14-15 16 15 0 34 0.00 11.33 0 2 0 1 0

Total 140 137 4 225 0.14 8.21 1 6 1

Tuesday 28/04/2009 1800-2300

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 24 16 0 16 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

19-20 27 21 0 19 0.00 4.52 0 0 0 1 0

20-21 28 21 0 25 0.00 5.95 0 1 0 1 0

21-22 33 21 4 32 0.61 7.62 4 0 1 0 0

22-23 21 14 0 25 0.00 8.93 0 0 0 1 0

Total 133 93 4 117 0.15 6.29 1 4 0

Saturday 16/05/2009 1000-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 0 9 0 21 0.00 11.67 0 1 0 1 0

11-12 13 15 0 14 0.00 4.67 0 0 0 1 0

12-13 12 8 0 12 0.00 7.50 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 8 12 0 16 0.00 6.67 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 11 14 0 9 0.00 3.21 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 22 10 4 10 0.91 5.00 2 0 0 1 0

16-17 22 16 0 33 0.00 10.31 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 9 18 0 36 0.00 10.00 0 1 0 1 0

Total 97 102 4 151 0.21 7.40 0 8 0

Friday 24/04/2009 1800-0000

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 46 37 0 80 0.00 10.81 0 1 0 1 0

19-20 32 43 0 40 0.00 4.65 0 0 0 1 0

20-21 40 41 2 29 0.25 3.54 2 0 0 1 0

21-22 28 32 0 61 0.00 9.53 0 3 0 0 1

22-23 19 33 0 83 0.00 12.58 0 1 0 1 0

Total 165 186 2 293 0.06 7.88 0 4 1

Sunday 10/05/2009 1400-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

14-15 10 10 0 25 0.00 12.50 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 8 10 0 25 0.00 12.50 0 1 0 1 0

16-17 8 8 0 21 0.00 13.13 0 1 0 1 0

17-18 10 10 0 25 0.00 12.50 0 1 0 1 0

Total 36 38 0 96 0.00 12.63 0 4 0

Brunswick Place

Tuesday 05/05/2009 1000-1600

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 8 13 0 16 0.00 6.15 0 1 0 1 0

11-12 4 15 0 27 0.00 9.00 0 0 0 1 0

12-13 6 13 0 27 0.00 10.38 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 5 13 1 27 1.00 10.38 1 0 0 1 0

14-15 1 7 0 17 0.00 12.14 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 1 5 0 8 0.00 8.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 25 66 1 122 0.20 9.24 0 6 0

Wednesday 29/04/2009 1900-0100

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

19-20 15 14 0 10 0.00 3.57 0 0 0 1 0

20-21 17 12 0 21 0.00 8.75 0 1 0 1 0

21-22 16 10 0 21 0.00 10.50 0 1 0 1 0

22-23 20 16 0 8 0.00 2.50 0 0 0 1 0

23-00 23 15 3 14 0.65 4.67 3 0 1 0 0

00-01 15 12 2 10 0.67 4.17 2 0 0 1 0

Total 106 79 5 84 0.24 5.32 1 5 0

Service Quality Queue Extremes Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

100



Saturday 09/05/2009 1200-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

12-13 8 18 0 23 0.00 6.39 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 10 12 0 10 0.00 4.17 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 7 11 1 2 0.71 0.91 1 0 0 1 0

15-16 15 13 3 22 1.00 8.46 2 0 0 1 0

16-17 7 12 0 16 0.00 6.67 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 7 9 0 4 0.00 2.22 0 0 0 1 0

Total 54 75 4 77 0.37 5.13 0 6 0

Saturday 25/04/2009 1900-0100

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

19-20 10 10 0 54 0.00 27.00 0 4 0 0 1

20-21 13 13 0 55 0.00 21.15 0 4 0 0 1

21-22 12 12 0 57 0.00 23.75 0 4 0 0 1

22-23 13 16 0 51 0.00 15.94 0 4 0 0 1

23-00 9 9 0 52 0.00 28.89 0 4 0 0 1

00-01 7 7 0 41 0.00 29.29 0 3 0 0 1

Total 64 67 0 310 0.00 23.13 0 0 6

Sunday 26/04/2009 1400-1800

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Hour Passengers Cabs

Passenger 

Queue Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

14-15 14 12 3 10 1.07 4.17 3 0 1 0 0

15-16 14 16 1 12 0.36 3.75 1 0 0 1 0

16-17 10 13 0 21 0.00 8.08 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 15 12 0 14 0.00 5.83 0 0 0 1 0

Total 53 53 4 57 5.38 5.38 1 3 0

Church Road

Friday 01/05/2009 1800-2300

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 11 13 0 17 0.00 6.54 0 0 0 1 0

19-20 13 11 0 17 0.00 7.73 0 1 0 1 0

20-21 20 17 0 19 0.00 5.59 0 1 0 1 0

21-22 13 11 0 20 0.00 9.09 0 1 0 1 0

22-23 11 12 0 16 0.00 6.67 0 1 0 1 0

Total 68 64 0 89 0.00 6.95 0 5 0

Tuesday 05/05/2009 1000-1600

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 3 6 0 22 0.00 18.33 0 1 0 1 0

11-12 2 6 0 19 0.00 15.83 0 0 0 1 0

12-13 2 7 1 13 2.50 9.29 1 0 0 1 0

13-14 2 2 0 4 0.00 10.00 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 0 5 0 10 0.00 10.00 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 2 5 0 10 0.00 10.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 11 31 1 78 0.45 12.58 0 6 0

Wednesday 06/05/2009 1800-2300

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 2 6 0 7 0.00 5.83 0 0 0 1 0

19-20 5 7 1 5 1.00 3.57 1 0 0 1 0

20-21 2 4 2 5 5.00 6.25 2 0 0 1 0

21-22 2 2 0 8 0.00 20.00 0 0 0 1 0

22-23 6 6 0 6 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 17 25 3 31 0.88 6.20 0 5 0

Saturday 25/04/2009 1200-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

12-13 4 7 0 1 0.00 0.71 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 5 6 0 16 0.00 13.33 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 1 6 0 7 0.00 5.83 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 5 8 2 12 2.00 7.50 2 0 0 1 0

16-17 0 4 0 4 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 0 3 0 7 0.00 11.67 0 0 0 1 0

Total 15 34 2 47 0.67 6.91 0 6 0

Sunday 17/05/2009 1200-1600

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

101



Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

12-13 1 1 0 2 0.00 10.00 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 5 5 0 1 0.00 1.00 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 1 5 0 12 0.00 12.00 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 0 5 0 6 0.00 6.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 7 16 0 21 0.00 6.56 0 4 0

West Street

Thursday 18/12/2008 2300-0300

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

23-00 24 20 0 105 0.00 26.25 0 5 0 0 1

00-01 52 39 0 126 0.00 16.15 0 8 0 0 1

01-02 89 53 0 152 0.00 14.34 0 9 0 0 1

02-03 85 51 0 177 0.00 17.35 0 10 0 0 1

03-04 42 26 0 97 0.00 18.65 0 7 0 0 1

Total 292 189 0 657 0.00 17.38 0 0 5

Saturday 16/05/2009 2300-0400

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

23-00 147 65 84 15 2.86 1.15 31 0 1 0 0

00-01 201 97 72 27 1.79 1.39 17 0 1 0 0

01-02 307 131 403 5 6.56 0.19 55 0 1 0 0

02-03 316 134 585 0 9.26 0.00 73 0 1 0 0

03-04 286 120 211 46 3.69 1.92 76 0 1 0 0

Total 1257 547 1355 93 5.39 0.85 5 0 0

Goldstone Villas

Monday 27/04/2009 1000-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 4 15 0 41 0.00 13.67 0 2 0 1 0

11-12 8 18 0 28 0.00 7.78 0 0 0 1 0

12-13 5 13 0 28 0.00 10.77 0 1 0 1 0

13-14 4 9 0 36 0.00 20.00 0 1 0 1 0

14-15 16 22 0 26 0.00 5.91 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 2 11 0 17 0.00 7.73 0 0 0 1 0

16-17 0 6 0 8 0.00 6.67 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 1 4 0 1 0.00 1.25 0 0 0 1 0

Total 40 98 0 185 0.00 9.44 0 8 0

Saturday 25/04/2009 1000-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 6 12 0 17 0.00 7.08 0 0 0 1 0

11-12 10 13 1 23 0.50 8.85 0 0 0 1 0

12-13 12 17 2 15 0.83 4.41 2 0 0 1 0

13-14 10 16 0 26 0.00 8.13 0 2 0 1 0

14-15 11 13 0 25 0.00 9.62 0 1 0 1 0

15-16 9 12 0 20 0.00 8.33 0 1 0 1 0

16-17 8 10 0 18 0.00 9.00 0 1 0 1 0

17-18 13 13 0 15 0.00 5.77 0 0 0 1 0

Total 79 106 3 159 0.19 7.50 0 8 0

Sunday 17/05/2009 1400-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

14-15 8 14 0 14 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 1 6 0 11 0.00 9.17 0 0 0 1 0

16-17 0 2 0 2 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 0 5 0 3 0.00 3.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 9 27 0 30 0.00 5.56 0 4 0

Paston Place

Tuesday 28/04/2009 1000-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 20 23 0 83 0.00 18.04 0 5 0 0 1

11-12 11 21 0 81 0.00 19.29 0 5 0 0 1

12-13 9 21 0 74 0.00 17.62 0 5 0 0 1

13-14 14 19 0 73 0.00 19.21 0 5 0 0 1

14-15 12 16 0 72 0.00 22.50 0 5 0 0 1

15-16 16 22 0 49 0.00 11.14 0 1 0 1 0

Total 82 122 0 432 0.00 17.70 0 1 5

Thursday 30/04/2009 1600-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

16-17 36 34 0 34 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 18 22 0 30 0.00 6.82 0 1 0 1 0

Total 54 56 0 64 0.00 5.71 0 2 0

Thursday 30/04/2009 1800-2000

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

102



Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 11 23 0 55 0.00 11.96 0 4 0 0 1

19-20 5 18 0 51 0.00 14.17 0 3 0 0 1

20-21 10 15 0 50 0.00 16.67 0 3 0 0 1

Total 26 56 0 156 0.00 13.93 0 0 3

Saturday 16/05/2009 1300-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

13-14 2 6 0 7 0.00 5.83 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 1 16 0 43 0.00 13.44 0 2 0 1 0

15-16 9 10 1 22 0.56 11.00 1 0 0 1 0

16-17 3 12 0 21 0.00 8.75 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 5 12 2 18 2.00 7.50 2 0 0 1 0

Total 20 56 3 111 0.75 9.91 0 5 0

Saturday 16/05/2009 1800-2100

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 6 18 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 1 0

19-20 14 18 1 23 0.36 6.39 1 0 0 1 0

20-21 4 23 0 36 0.00 7.83 0 0 0 1 0

Total 24 59 1 59 0.21 5.00 0 3 0

Sunday 26/04/2009 1400-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

14-15 0 10 0 10 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 2 8 0 16 0.00 10.00 0 0 0 1 0

16-17 3 10 1 23 1.67 11.50 1 0 0 1 0

17-18 0 9 0 12 0.00 6.67 0 0 0 1 0

Total 5 37 1 61 1.00 8.24 0 4 0

Elm Grove

Wednesday 06/05/2009 1000-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

10-11 2 5 0 23 0.00 23.00 0 1 0 1 0

11-12 1 5 1 15 5.00 15.00 0 0 0 1 0

12-13 1 3 0 16 0.00 26.67 0 0 0 1 0

13-14 1 4 0 5 0.00 6.25 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 0 4 1 6 0.00 7.50 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 0 2 0 3 0.00 7.50 0 0 0 1 0

16-17 0 1 6 0 0.00 0.00 2 0 0 1 0

17-18 2 2 4 8 10.00 20.00 2 0 0 1 0

Total 7 26 12 76 8.57 14.62 0 8 0

Thursday 30/04/2009 1800-2100

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 0 2 0 4 0.00 10.00 0 0 0 1 0

19-20 0 1 0 7 0.00 35.00 0 0 0 1 0

20-21 0 4 0 4 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 0 7 0 15 0.00 10.71 0 3 0

Saturday 06/06/2009 1300-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

13-14 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 1 0

14-15 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 0 0 0 4 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 1 0

16-17 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 0 1 0 3 0.00 15.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 0 1 0 7 0.00 35.00 0 5 0

Saturday 06/06/2009 1800-2100

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

18-19 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 1 0

19-20 0 2 0 2 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

20-21 0 2 0 7 0.00 17.50 0 0 0 1 0

Total 0 4 0 9 0.00 11.25 0 3 0

Sunday 26/04/2009 1400-1800

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

14-15 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 1 0

15-16 0 5 0 6 0.00 6.00 0 0 0 1 0

16-17 0 2 0 2 0.00 5.00 0 0 0 1 0

17-18 0 0 0 2 0.00 0.00 0 0 0 1 0

Total 0 7 0 10 0.00 7.14 0 4 0

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market ConditionsRank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

103



Thursday 23/04/2009 2200-0400

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

22-23 4 9 0 14 0.00 7.78 0 0 0 1 0

23-00 25 15 3 11 0.60 3.67 3 0 1 0 0

00-01 37 27 0 54 0.00 10.00 0 1 0 1 0

01-02 56 31 0 106 0.00 17.10 0 7 0 0 1

02-03 190 84 0 102 0.00 6.07 0 5 0 0 1

03-04 147 74 0 150 0.00 10.14 0 6 0 0 1

Total 459 240 3 437 0.03 9.10 1 2 3

Friday 29/05/2009 2100-0300

Hour Passengers Cabs
Passenger 

Queue
Cab Queue

Average 

Passenger 

Delay

Average 

Cab Delay

Maximum 

Passenger 

Queue

Minimum 

Cab Queue

Excess 

Demand
Equilibrium

Excess 

Supply

22-23 21 13 0 5 0.00 1.92 0 0 0 1 0

23-00 34 16 0 11 0.00 3.44 0 0 0 1 0

00-01 66 33 4 14 0.30 2.12 2 0 0 1 0

01-02 122 63 0 55 0.00 4.37 0 3 0 0 1

02-03 145 66 25 11 0.86 0.83 10 0 1 0 0

03-04 285 113 22 72 0.39 3.19 22 0 1 0 0

Total 673 304 51 168 0.38 2.76 2 3 1

Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes Market Conditions

Rank Throughput Queue 'Snap-Shot' Totals Service Quality Queue Extremes

104



Halcrow Group Limited 

Arndale House  Otley Road  Headingley  Leeds  LS6 2UL 

Tel +44 (0)113 220 8220  Fax +44 (0)113 274 2924 

www.halcrow.com 

Technical note 

��������
��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	

�����	
	
��� ���	������	����	

����� ��� ��	��������	���
��	!��� ��	 ��
� �"#�$����	

������� #
��
	��
��	

	

	 	

�

� �������	�
���

��� "��	%��%���	�&	����	"������
 	'���	��	��	%������	���	���� ��	�&	
	%�� ��	
�������	���
��	������
���	

��	�
 ���(	��	���
 &	�&	��������	
��	��
�	����	������ )			

��� �	%�� ��	
�������	�����
��(	���
��	(
�	��������	(���	���	
��	�&	��  ������	��&���
����	���
�����	

�%������	��	���	�
*�	�
����	��	��������	
��	��
�)	+�	%
����� 
�,	���	���
��	
  �(��	
�	
���������	

�&	& 
���(�,	�� �%����	
��	�
��	�� 
��,	���	�
���&
�����	(���	�� 
��,	
��	�����
 	���	��&���
����)		

��� +�	���� �	��	�����	��
�	 ��	 ���	�
� ��	��
�	 &�  �(	���	���
 �	��	���	
 (
��	
��	�%	��	���	�
��	


�����)	"���	��	���	��	���	�&	�(�	��
����)	-����,	���	
  	���%�������	(���	��.�����	��	
��(��	
  	

.��������/	
��	������,	����	���%�������	&
� ��	��	
��(��	����	.��������	��
�	(���	
����)	

� 
���������
�
�����
�������
������
���	�
���

��� ����	0��	�����
��(�	(���	�
�����	���	��	1���	
��	1� �	����)	"��	
��	
��	������	�
�% ��	
��	

��
��	��	"
� �	2	�� �()	"��	�
�% �	�&	0��	�����
��(�	%��
����	
	������	�
���	&��	
���������)	

��� "��	
��	
��	������	�
�% ��	
��	���(�	��	"
� �	2	
 ���	(���	���	
���
 	����3���	&������)�

���	
��������

�����������	�����	
���������
���
������
�������

������
��
��

�
���������
� ����
������
�
�
�������

���������� �������� ���������� ��������

245�0	 26�	 �7)6	 2�6	 0�)�	

�8340	 �20	 0�)6	 ��8	 02)4	

489	 �7	 2�)0	 ��	 26)�	

���
�� ���� ������ �� � ������

:
 �	 �0�	 06)�	 ���	 07)�	

-��
 �	 �4�	 8�)�	 �4�	 8�)7	

���
�� ���� ������ �� � ������

105



"������
 	����	 �
��	�	

���;���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	 '���	��� ��	��������	���
��	!��� ��	

	

��� ��	�
�	��	����	��	"
� �	2,	���	���
��	%��
����	
	� ����	�����	��%������
����	�&	243�0	��
�	� ��	


��	489	��
�	� ��	
��	
	� ����	�
����%������
����	�&	�8340	��
�	� ��)		

��  "��	���%�������	(���	
����	��	��
�	�����	��������	��
���)	"��	���� ��	
��	���% 
���	��	"
� �	�	

�� �()	

���	
�����!���������������

� ���������� ��������

-�  3����	<�% ����	 277	 �4)�	

�
��3����	<�% ����	 4�	 2�)6	

����% ����	 �2	 4)�	

�������=��%� 	 6�	 26)2	

!������	 64	 27)8	

�����(�&�=����
��	 26	 �)7	

>����	 �6	 8)7	

���
�� ��!� ������

��" !��%�������	(���	
����	��	�%���&�	�����	���������)	"��	���� ��	
��	���(�	��	"
� �	�)	�

���	
��� ��#
���
����

� ���������� ��������

����
����	!�������	 ��6	 4�)2	

?������	 6�	 24)0	

"������	 �7	 8)8	

���
������	�������	 7�	 28)�	

���
�� �""� ������

�

� �����	���
��
	������������
��������
�

��� !��%�������	(���	�
��	
����	�&	����	�
�	�
��	
	;������	��	�
*�	��	��������	
��	��
�	(�����	���	

 
��	�����	������)	"��	���
��	&����	��
�	4�)�@	�
�	����	
	�
*�	(�����	����	%�����)	"��	���� ��	
��	

���% 
���	��	"
� �	0)	

106



"������
 	����	 �
��	�	

���;���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	 '���	��� ��	��������	���
��	!��� ��	

	

���	
� � ��$��
��������
�������������%������&
�������&�

�����&�'�

��#$���$�� ���������� ��������

A��	 �2�	 4�)�	

'�	 26�	 �7)2	

���
�� �� � ������

��� !��%�������	(��	�
�	�����	
	�
*�	��	���	 
��	�����	������	(���	
����	&������	.��������	
����	

�����	 �*%�������)	 ����	 �7)7@	 �&	 ���%�
����	 ��
���	 ��
�	 ����	 �����	 �����	 �
*�	 
�	 
	 �
��)	 "��	

�
;�����	�������	(���	
����
��	��	�� �%����	B02)�@C	(���	�2)�@	�&	���%�
����	���
�����	
	�
*�	��	

��3������	& 
���(��)	"
� �	8	��
�
 �	���	%
�����	�&	�
*�	����)�

���	
�"���(
�&��������%��$��
�����)���������

��#$���$�� ���������� ��������

!
��	 227	 �7)7	

- 
���(�	 44	 �2)�	

"� �%����	 2�7	 02)�	

���
��  ��� ������

��� !��%�������	(���	
����	(�
�	��%�	�&	
���� �	����	�����)		"��	����	������	��%�	�&	
���� �	����	

(
�	
	%��%���	��� �	�
�	B80)�@C	(���	00)2@	������	
	�
 ���	�
�)�

���	
�*���+
&��	
����
�����	���������

%��#������$�� ���������� ��������

���%���	��� �	�
�	 247	 80)�	

�
 ���	�
�	 2�0	 00)2	

>����	 �	 2)�	

���
��  ��� ������

	

��  !��%�������	(���	
����	�&	����	(���	�
���&���	(���	���	����	�
���	
��	���	%���%�����	�&	���	

�
*��	
���

 	��(�
��	����	���
����	��)	"��	�
;�����	�&	%��% �	(���	�
���&���	(���	�����	 
��	�
*�	

;������	B��)�@C)	"
� �	7	���(�	���	�
;�����	�&	%��% �	(���	�
���&���	(���	���	���
���	��	��������	


��	��
�)		"��	

��
��	(
�����	����	��	4	�������,	(���	����	(
�����	
�	 ���	
�	08	�������	&��	
	

�
*�)		

�

�

107



"������
 	����	 �
��	0	

���;���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	 '���	��� ��	��������	���
��	!��� ��	

	

�

���	
�,� ������������������&��
	������	���������

� ���������� ��������

A��		 �60	 ��)�	

'�	 �0	 7)6	

���
��  �"� ������

�

�������������������� 
���

��" "�	%��
���	�
������	�&	��%%������	���
��	��	���	�
���	�&	
	&������	�&	�����&��
��	%
����	�����	

���
��,	���%�������	(���	
����	��	������&�	(������	��	���	����	�
�	��
��	�%	(
�����	&��	
	�
*�	
�	


	�
��,	��	���	������,	��	��	�� �%����	��	��������	
��	��
�	��	���	 
��	�����	������)	"��	���� ��	


��	����
�����	��	"
� �	�)	

���	
�-� �����
��������
�����
����&��
�����%������
�&������&��
�����&
�	�����&�

�����&��

&�'� ���	

���������� �������� ���������� ��������

D�
��	�%	
�	
	�
��	 �2	 4)�	 08�	 ��)7	

D�
��	�%	& 
���(�	 8�	 2�)7	 0�4	 6�)�	

D�
��	�%	�� �%����	 02	 6)0	 00�	 �2)4	

D�
��	�%	�
��	=	& 
���(�	 48	 2�)�	 0�8	 64)7	

��* ����	4)�@	�
�	��
��	�%	(
�����	&��	
	�
*�	
�	
	�
��,	(���	2�)7@	�

���	��
��	�%	
�
	& 
���(�	


��	6)0@	
�
	�� �%����)	����	2�)�@	�
�	��
��	�%	(
�����	&��	
	�
*�	
�	
	�
��	��	��	& 
���(�	��	

���	  
��	 �����	 ������)	 "���	 ��	 ���	 �����&��
��	 %
����	 �����	 ���
��	 &�����	 ����	 ��	 �
 �� 
��	

(������	�����	��	�����&��
��	�����	���
��	��	��������	E	��
�)	

��, !��%�������	(���	
����	(����	
��
	�&	��������	
��	��
�	����	(���	��	���	 
��	����	����	�

�	
�%	(
�����	&��	
	�
*�)	"��	����	������	
��
�	(���/	

• ��������	������	

• #�(��	!�
�	

• #�����	!�
�	

��. !��%�������	(���	
����	(�
�	��%�	�&	
���� �	����	��.�����	���	 
��	����	����	�

�	�%	(
�����)	

����	60)�@	�&	�����	(��	
��(����	��
���	��
�	��	���	���	�
����/	
��	
���� �	(�� �	�

�	����	


������� �,	(�� ��	7)2@	��
���	��
�	����	��.�����	
	
���� �	��
�	��� �	&��	����	��
�	0	%
��������,	


��	8)7@	��
���	��
�	����	��.�����	
	(��� ��
��	
������� �	
���� �)	

108



"������
 	����	 �
��	8	

���;���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	 '���	��� ��	��������	���
��	!��� ��	

	

! 
���
	���������������

 �� !��%�������	(���	
����	�&	����	�������	���	�
*�	���
����	��	���	��������	
��	��
�	
��
	��� �	��	

��%��
��)		"��	���%�����	�����
��	��
�	���	�
;�����	�&	���%�������	B80)8@C	�������	��
�	�
*�	

���
����	��	��������	
��	��
�	��� �	��	��%��
��)	"��	���� ��	
��	���(�	��	"
� �	2�)	

���	
��/���0��	����%���
����
���
�������
��

� ���������� ��������

A��	 �44	 80)8	

'�	 ���	 08)8	

���
�� �""� ������

 �� "����	(��	����������	��
�	�
*�	���
����	������	��%��
�����	(���	
����	��(	����	��� �	��	

��%��
��)	"
� �	22	���������	��
�	47)7@	�&	���%�������	��
���	��
�	�
*��	��	��������	
��	��
�	

��� �	��	��%��
��	�&	����	(���	�
��	���
%��)	����	24)�@	�&	���%�������	(�� �	 ���	��	���	

����	�
���	
��	27)�@	(�� �	 ���	��	���	����	
���� ��)	-��	�����	��
�	��
���	�����,	���	����	

������	(
�	�
*�	���
����	��	��������	
��	��
�	��� �	��	��%��
��	��	��	%��
���	����	
���� ��	

��
�	�
�	&��	����	��
�	0	%
��������)	

���	
������$������	����%���
����
���
�������
��1��	���	
��
�����
�2�

	 -��.�����	 �������	

:���	�&	����	 04	 27)�	

:���	!
���	 08	 24)�	

��
���	"
*��	 ��	 2�)�	

������	?���� ��	 2�	 0)�	

������	���
���	 0�	 24)�	

���
%��	 26�	 47)7	

:���	���
� ��	������	?���� ��	 ��	 6)�	

>����	 ��	 6)4	

� (

����)�(����#���

"�� !��%�������	(���	
����	(������	����	&� �	�
&�	(���	�����	�
*��	��	��������	
��	��
�)	"��	

�
;�����	�&	���%�������	&� �	�
&�	�����	�
*��	������	���	�
�	B�7)4@C,	��(�
��	����	20)8@	��
���	

��
�	����	&� �	���
&�	�����	�
*��	
�	�����	��	��������	
��	��
�)�

�

�

�

109



"������
 	����	 �
��	4	

���;���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	 '���	��� ��	��������	���
��	!��� ��	

	

����	
������3
��
������������
����&
������
���%������4��
&��������$��
�

	��#�������	
�� ����#����	

���������� �������� ���������� ��������

A��	 076	 �7)4	 026	 68)8	

'�	 2�	 �)0	 72	 20)8	

���
�� ���� ������ �"�� ������

"�� !��%�������	(��	���	���	&�� 	�
&�	������	���	�
�	��	
�	�����	(���	
����	(�
�	������	��	��	����	

��	 ��%��
�	 �
&���	 
��	 ��������	 (���	 �����	 �
*��	 ��	 ��������	 
��	 ��
�)	 ����	 4�)8@	 �&	

���%�������	��
���	��
�	����	(�� �	&�� 	�
&��	(���	(����	���
���	(�� ��	�7)6@	�&	���%�����	

��
���	��
�	��"?	��	 �
*��	(�� �	 ��%��
�	�
&���	(���	�����	�
*��	��	��������	
��	��
�)	"��	

���� ��	
��	���(�	��	�
� �	2�)	

���	
������������
�
����������
��������
��������&
������
���%������4��
&��������$��
�1��	���	
��
�����
�2�

� ���������� ��������

��"?	��	�
*��	 ��	 �7)6	

��"?	��	�
���	 6	 22)2	

:���	"
*�	:
���
  �	
�	�
���	 4	 6)�	

:���	"
*��	 2	 2)0	

$����	���
���	 08	 4�)8	

:���	����
��	��	 �������	���
���	 6	 22)2	

>����	 �	 �)6	

" ���
����������

*�� !��%�������	(���	
����	(������	����	(�� �	��	(�  ���	&��	
	��
  	�����
���	��	��	
����	��	�����	

&
���	��	�����	��	&���	�
*�	�
���
 �)	����	46)0@	�&	���%�������	�
��	��
�	����	(�� �	���	��	

(�  ���	��	%
�	
	�����
���	��	&���	�
���
 �/	�� �	24)�@	�&	���%�������	��% ���	��
�	����	(�� ��F�	

����	
��	���	���
�����	20)7@	��
���	��
�	����	��	���	���()	"��	���� ��	
��	���
� ��	��	"
� �	20)	

���	
�� �5�3���������&��

�������������&�	��

� ���������� ��������

A��		 6�	 24)�	

'�	 ��2	 46)0	

���F�	���(	 72	 20)7	

���
�� �"�� ������

110



"������
 	����	 �
��	7	

���;���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	 '���	��� ��	��������	���
��	!��� ��	

	

�

# $���
	��%��������

,�� !��%�������	(���	
����	(������	����	(���	
(
��	��
�	��������	
��	��
�	������ 	

 ����	���	������	�&	�
�����	�
���
���	
�	8��)	>� �	22)0@	�&	�����	(��	
��(����	

(���	
(
��	�&	����	 ����)	

	

"
� �	28	5	$����	���	
(
��	�&	���	 ����G	

�

& $��
	����

.�� "��	%�� ��	(���	
����	(������	����	(�� �	���	������
(�	B%����
��C	�&	����	(���	

����������	��	��������	
��	��
�)	"��	���� ��	
��	���
� ��	��	"
� �	24)	����	00)2@	�&	

���%�������	��
���	��
�	����	(�� �	���	%����
��)	

���	
��*�5�6��	��������
��
������'�

.�� "����	(��	��
���	����	(�� �	���	%����
��	(���	
����	��(	�&���	����	�����	����	

(�� �	���	����)	"��	���� ��	
��	���
� ��	��	"
� �	24)	����	�6)�@	�&	���%�������	

��
���	��
�	����	(�� �	���	%����
��	�(���	
	��
�)		

���	
��*�5�$������
�����	��������
��
������'�

� ���������� ��������

A��		 84	 22)0	

'�	 0�7	 66)4	

���
�� �� � ������

� ���������� ��������

A��		 �24	 00)2	

'�	 24�	 �0)8	

���F�	���(	 2�8	 �2)0	

���
�� ���� ������

� ���������� ��������

>���	
	��
�	 08	 �2)2	

"(���	
	��
�	 4�	 �6)�	

"����	�����	
	��
�	 ��	 2�)�	

�%	��	&�
�	����	
	��
�	 �8	 22)7	

�%	��	���	�����	
	��
�	 ��	 2�)6	

:���	�&���	 �6	 27)6	

���
�� !� � ������

111



"������
 	����	 �
��	6	

���;���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	 '���	��� ��	��������	���
��	!��� ��	

	

.�� "����	(��	��
���	��
�	����	(�� �	���	���	%����
��	(���	
����	(��)	"��	����	

������	
��(���	(���	��
�	����	(���	���	� �(,	���	�*%����
�	
��	���	�
�������)	

>�����	�
��	��
�	����	��	���	���	�
*��	�&���	
��(
�,	��	��
�	����	;���	(�� �	���	(
��	

��	���	%����
��)	

112



Halcrow Group Limited 

Arndale House  Otley Road  Headingley  Leeds  LS6 2UL 

Tel +44 (0)113 220 8220  Fax +44 (0)113 274 2924 

www.halcrow.com 

Technical note 

��������
��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	

�����	
	
��� ���	������	����	

����� �������
����	�������
�	 ���	 ��
� ��!�"����	

�������  ����	�
��
��
�	

	

	 	

�

��� �������������

#���������	������	$�	���	��%
������	&��	��
��%���	��
��	��
�	�������
����	������	$�	������
���	

'���	���	&����'���(	

• 
��	�����	'������	��	���	�
����(	

• ��������	
��	%
�������	)���������	���
$���*	����%�(	

• ����%�	'����	��%������	�����	%
��������	'���	�%���
�	�����(	

• ���	+�����(	

• ���
�	��������	����%�	����	
�	���%��
��	��	
������	
���
������(	
��	

• 
	'���	�
���	�&	��
��%���	��
���������	����	
�	�
��,$��,��
��	�%��
����	
��	��
��%���	

�
�
����-	

	

��� 	�������������
�����

�	������	�&	&����	����%�	'���	����	��	.���	����	'���	
	�
���	�&	��
���������	��	���
�	�����	
��'�	

���
�����	���	�
/�	
��	%��

��	����	���
���	
�����	��������	0	��
�-	��%
�
��	��������	'���	

���
�����	'���	���	&����'���1	

	

• �
�����	�
���
��	��
��	��%������
��
��(	

• +��

��	����	��
��	��%������
��
��(			

• �
/�	�%��
����(	

• ���
$�����	��%������
��
��	
��	����
�	���
����(	
��	

• +�����	
��	���������	�
&���	+
��������%-	

	

���	��������	�����
��	
��	���
����	$���'-	

	

�����	
���

���	��
��	�

���	�
�����	�
���
��	��%������
��
��	&���	��
�	��������	
��	��
�	��	'���	��%%����	'���	�
/��2	�
��	


�	�����	
��	���	�������	�����	�����	��	$�	'������	'���-	���	�
�����	�
���
��	��
��	&���	��
�	

�����	
��	3�����	�&	�
������	�
��	
�	�����	
��	�����	
��	��	%
�������	3�����-	����	&���	��
�	���	

!��������	���	�
�	&�
������	���	%�
�-	

113



�������
�	����	 +
��	�	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

5�	 ��	 &���	 ��
�	 �����	 
��	 ������	'������
��	 
������$��	 
�������	 ��	��������	0	��
�	��'�
��	




��
$�����	 �
�	$�	 �������	
�	 ������	 �����
��	 ����	
�	 ����	 ���������	 ���	���$��	�&	'������
��	


������$��	
�������	&��	�����
�	����-	

���������	��	���	�
�����	��
��2	
�������	����	��	��������
��	��	�����
�	�
���-	���	�
�����	

�
���
��	��
��	��
���	��
�	����	
��	���	���������	'���	�
���	
��	�
���	
'
�-	5�	��	
���%���	��
�	

�����	
��	����	���
�����	'����	�
���	
��	���	$����	����	$��	����	
��	$����	����
��	&��	�����	

��
����	
��	���	$����	��%�
���-	6
���	��	 �'	6�
�2	 ����	������	
��	��	.
���	������	�

�	

$���	 �
���	
'
�	
��	���	 ��%�
���	
��	 ���	�
��	$�	���	7��	���%	�����	
��	 ���	�
��	��	���	

��
&����	
��	
���	�����	����
�	�&	$����	����
��-	���	�
��	��	 �'	6�
�	
��	���	�
��	$�	���	7��	

���%	�����	'���	�����	
�	$����	%
������
���	$���	
��	���	�
�����	��
��	
��	��������	
�
����	���	

����

�	�&	���	�
��	��	���	��
&����-		

���	��
��	��
���	��
�	�����	'
�	
	����	&��	��'	�
���	$�	���	�������	�����	
��	���	8����9�	�����2	


��	
������	�
��	��
�	���	�
��	��
����2	$��
���	�����	��	��	�
��	$��'���	���	��
����	
��	8����9�	

�3�
��-	5�	��	&���	��
�	�����������	�
���	'����	���	$�	&�
��$��2	
�	��	'����	�
���	
��������	���	��	

���	��
�	�
����-	�����	
��	����	���
�����	'����	�
���	
��	���	�����
���	����	$��
���	�&	�����	

���
����2	&��	�/
�%��	���	$
��	�&	���	��
����	��	���	����	�&���	$��
���	%
��������	����	��	����	

&���	���	�����-	

5�	'
�	
���	�����	��
�	���	�&	���	�
/�	&����	�
�	4���	������	
	��'	�����
��	'���	���	��
����2	%
����	

:;<�	��	���	���	��
����	�
��-	

��	�����	���
���	�����
���	

���	"���	������	
�	�����	��	�&���	����$��	'���	%
��������	�����	���	

��&������	�&	
������	3����	4��%���2	�%������	&���	
��	�����	��	�
/��2	
���=����
�	$��

����	
��	&
��=

�������-	������	��	�
/�	���
���	�&���	��	����%�����	���	��	���	����	�
���	��	��%���	���������	

��
����	���	����	�&	&
���-	

���	�
�����	��
��	&���	��
�	�

���	�
���
��	��	�
���	��	
	����	���
-	�����	'
�	
	%����	&�����	

$�	 ���	 ���
����	 �
/�	 >����	 
��	 ���	 %�����-	 ����	 &����	 ��
�	 %
��������	 ��	 ������	 ��	 ���	

�
���
��-	6
���	��
�	�

�	$���	�����	
�	�������	�
���
��	��	
	>���
�	
��	�
����
�	�����	
��	

"���	������2	?
��	������2	8����9�	�3�
��2	
��	
�	���	��
����	
��	7��	���%	�����-	5�	��	&���	��
�	

�
���
��	
��	������	&��	���
��	�
&���	
�	�
���
��	'����	���%	%��
���	���
��	
$���	
��	3����	

4��%���	
��	���
��	@������	%������9	'����	���%-	5�	'
�	���������	��
�	���������	��%%���	7&&�����	

�����	$�	����	
�	�
���
��-	

5�	��	&���	��
�	���	��
��	�&	�
������	�
�	��%��
��	�
��	���	��
��	
�	���	��
��
���	�

�	��%��
��-	

��'�
��2	��	��	&���	��
�	���	
��	������	��	$���	�
�����	�
���
���	
��	+��

��	����	
�������	������	

$�	��
��'��-	5�	'
�	���������	��
�	���	
��	�����	������	$�	��
����	��	��
��	��
��	&��	�
�����	

�
���
���	
��	<�	��
��	&��	+��

��	����	
�������	
��	'������
��	
������$��	�
�����	
�������-	5�	

��	&���	��
�	�����	������	
���	$�	�/��%�����	&��	%��%���	$����	�
$�-		

"���	���
���	��	��
�����2	���	��%������
��
�	&���	��
�	������%����
�	��
�����	��	��������
��	$��
���	

�/%�������	��	����	��%���
��(	��'�
��	��	������	$�	
	��3��������	&��	��'	���
���-	����	&���	��
�	

114



�������
�	����	 +
��	�	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

&����	
��	��
�����	������	$�	�&&����2	
��	
	��������	���
����	������	'����	'
�	&�����	��	���	%
��	

&��	���
���	������	$�	������
���-		

���	��
��	�&	�
�����	�
���
��	&
���	
��	���
����	
�	
$���	�����-	���	��
��	
%%��
��	���	�������	


���
���	��	���	���	%������	&��	
�	�����
��	��	&
���-	5�	'
�	�����������	��
�	���	����
�	�����	�
��&&�	

�
�	���&���	%
��������	
��	��	�����	'���	$�����	�&	�����	'���	����	�'�	�
��&&�-			���	�
�����	

��%������
��
�	��
���	��
�	���	%������	��	���������	
�����	:�A2���	��%������	��	���	
������-	

	

�
����	���
	��
��	�

5�	�����
��	��	���	
��'�	�&	���	�
�����	��
��	��%������
��
��	���	%��

��	����	��%������
��
��	&���	

��
�	���	�����	��	%�
���	������	$�	����
��-	5����
�2	���	%��

��	����	��
��	&���	��
�	�����	������	$�	

3�
����	������������	�
����	��
�	3�
�����	������������-	���	��%������
��
��	��	&���	��
�	���	'
�����	

����	�������
	��	��������	0	��
�	
��	
���%�
$��-	

���	��%������
��
��	��
���	��
�	���	��
��	'
����	��	
��	
	�
/�	�
���
�	����	��	&
���2	$��	���	

�����������	��4�����	���	���
-	����	�����	�
���	��	"���	������2	?
��	������	
��	���%	������	
�	

$����	����	��
�	'����	��3����	�
���
��2	
��	��%���
���	������	>���
�	
��	�
����
�	������2	&���	

<�%�	��	A
�	���	��/�	�������-	+���
%�	�����	�����	$�	�	�
���
��	��	�
��	�&	���	�����	�
���2	

�����	
	��������	��������	&���-	������	
	�����
���	����	���������9	&
���	������	���%	&���	���	

�
���
��	
��	��	'����	����	����	<=�%	%��	����	����	��

��-	

5�	��	&���	��
�	�����	
��	���	������	�
�����	�
���
���(	��'�
��	���
��	��	���������	$����	���	

���	��	���	������	��������	����
��-	���	�
�����	��
��	�
�	���	��&&����2	$��	���	�����	����	��
��	

�
�	
��	
�������	��'	���$��	���&�	�����
���-	��'�
��2	��	��	
���	&���	��
�	���	�
/�	��
��	��	��������	


��	��
�	'���	���	��&&��	&���	���	���������	
�	����	
�	����'����	���	��	�������	������	���	

������	������	
��	���	�
���	�������	%�%��
����-		

5�	��	&���	��
�	�����	
��	���	������	'������
��	
������$��	
�������-	���	


��
$�����	%��$����	
��	

�
��	 '����	 
�	 ����	 ���
���	 �

�	 $���	 ���'�	 ��	 ��&���	 ��	 �
��	 '������
��	 %
��������2	

��%���
���	
�	���	��
����-		

���	%��

��	����	��
��	&���	��
�	
������	��
��
���	
��	
���%�
$��	��'�
��	��	'����	$�	����	��	

��%��
�	����2	$�	�

���	�'�	�����	%��	��
�-	����	&���	��
�	���	��%�	�&	
������	��
�	��	
���'��	��	


���%�
$��-	

���	 ��%������
��
��	 &���	 ��
�	 �����	 ��	 
	 $��	 %��$���	'���	 ���
��	 3�
����	 
��	 ��
��
���	 �

�	

���%%��	�����	���	�
��	�����	��	���B-	5�	'
�	
���	&���	��
�	�
����
�����	&
���	�
�	�����
���	��	

$���	�
�����	�
���
��	
��	+��

��	����	���
���2	'����	��������	���
���	
��	���	���'�����	�&	���	


��
	�
�	'�������-	5�	'
�	&���	��
�	
	��?�	������	$�	
����	
�	��'	���
���	����-	5�	'
�	&���	��
�	

���	���'�����	����	������	$�	�
����	&��	��'	���
���	
�	����	�
�	����	���	����	��	�����	�
�������	

 

��
����	������-	5�	'
�	&���	��
�	�&	�����	��	
	���%�
���	�
��	
�
����	
	���
��2	����	������	$�	

��$4�����	��	
�������
�	�����-	

115



�������
�	����	 +
��	;	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

���	%��

��	����	��
��	&���	��
�	���������	��	���	���'	���	%��������	�&	����	'
��	��	���%�
��	


$���	���	���
���	
�	����	'���	�����
���	����	���	�%��
���	
��	���	���	�������-	�����	������	$�	

����	��&���
����	


��
$��	��	���	���%�
���	%��������-	5�	'
�	�����������	��
�	�&	���%�
����	
��	

�
��2	���	�������	��	��
�����
��-	

���	%��

��	����	��
��	&���	��
�	�
���	��
�	
��	�����
���	����	����	��	$�	������2	��	�����
��	��	���	

&�������	�&	���	�
�����	��
��-	����	&���	��
�	���	!��������	��
�	
�	���	�������	
��	����2	$��	���	

����'
��	��
�	�&���	�
��	
'
�	�
���	��	��%�
��	�
���	'������	�������
����	'���	���	��
��-	����	

&���	�����	������	$�	
	4����	�
��	��
��'	'���	���	!��������	��
�	
��	���	����'
��	��
�-	���	

%��

��	����	��
��	&���	 ��
�	
	�
��	
�	 ���	C
���
	�����	$�	$���&���
�2	��'�
��	���	 �
��	�'���	

'����	�$4���	��	��-	

���	 ��%������
��
��	��
���	 ��
�	 ���	 ��
��	'����	���	 �
��	�%	
��	 �
/�$��	�%�����	
�	 ���	$��	

���
����	��	��������	
��	��
�	
��	����-	

	

�������	
���
��

�
/�	�%��
����	��	���	'
��	���	�����	��	%�
���	��	$�	����
��-	5�	'
�	��
���	���	&�
�	%�
���	��
�	

'���	 ������	 ����	 ��
�	 �
�	 $���	 �
���	 �%	 
��	 ����	 
��	 4�����	 �%��
����-	 ����	 &���	 ��
�	 ���	

�
�
���	���'��	%�����	������	$�	%
����	������	���	���������-	����	
���	&���	�����	��	
	�
��	�&	

�
��	�%
��	��	��	%�
���	������	$�	������	�����	����	��	�����
��-	

���	�%��
����	&���	��
�	�����	
��	����	��
�	������	
�������	
�	���	������2	
�	
��	
��
�	
��	
��	

�����	�&	 ���	�
�	
��	��
����-	�����	
��	 ��
&&��	�
�
������	%��$����	��
����	�
$�	 &���	 ��	

��&&�����	��	�
��	
�����	��	����	�
���	
�	����
��	�����	�&	�
�	�
����	��
�	�����	$����	����&&������	


�������-	6�
����	&��	����	
��	�
��	��	�������(	����������	
�	����
��	�����	�&	�
�2	�
4��	��
�	

'����	
��	$��	���%�	
��	���%	�&&�	$�������	
�����	��	���	��
����-		

���	�
/�	�%��
����	'����	����	��	���	
	�
��	��	��������	6�
�	�&	���	��
�	'
�	�
��	���='
�	
�	

$����	&��3������	���	���	��
�-	�
/�	�%��
����	
��	���	�
��	��
����	
��	��	&

���	�&	
	:�	��
���	&��	


�����	 ��	 ���	 $
��	 �&	 ���	 ��
����	 ��'�
��2	 ���	����'
��	 ��
�	�

�	 ���	 ���%�����	 ��	 ���	

%��%��
�	
�	�&	���-	

���	�
��	�����	��
���	��
�	�����	'
�	��	�����	���
��	��	��������	
��	��
�2	���	���	�������	

������	����	%�
���-	���	 �
��	 ��%���	'
�	����	 ��	 4����&�	�/��
	'������
��	
������$��	 ��������	


�������	�����	'
�	��	�����	���
��-	7%��
����	���	$���	%��

��	����	
�������	
��	�
�����	

�
���
���	
��	����	�&	���	����	���������	��	���	�
��	'����	��%�	�&	
������	����	�����
�2	$��	�&	
�	


������$��	
������	��	��3������	���	�%��
���	�
�	����	������	
�	
������$��	�
�����	�
���
��	��	

%��

��	����	
������	��%������	��	'�
�	��	


��
$��-		���	�%��
����	��
���	��
�	���
���	&���	
	

%
������
�	�
/�	&���	���	��������	
�	�/��
	:A	�&	����	�

�	��	��	���	�&	
�	
��
	��
�	����	
��	��	��	

��
��	
	'������
��	&
��-		

7%��
����	&���	��
�	�����	
��	������	'������
��	
������$��	
�������	
�	���	A	%�
���	��
�	
��	

������	�
���	��
�	
��	��3�����	��	$�	'������
��	
������$��-	+��

��	����	
�������	��
�	�
�	�
���	

�
��	&���	%
��������	
��	
���	��3�����	��	$�	'������
��	
������$��-	

116



�������
�	����	 +
��	A	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

7%��
����	&���	��
�	���
���	
��	3����	�
&�2	
�	����	
��	������'���	
��	�����	��	���	����	����$��	��	

��������	
��	��
�-	

5�	 ��	&���	��
�	
������	3�
����	�
�	�����
���	������	������	��
��-	7%��
����	'����	����	��	���	
	


��$
�	����	���
�����	������2	�����
�	��	���	��
�����	&��	!�����	�
/�	���
���-	7%��
����	
���	&���	��
�	

���	�������9�	�����	����	��	$���&���
�	��	���	��
��2	
��	����	'����	����	��	���	
	&���
�	���	%��	��	

%�
��-	

"���	���
���	��	�
���2	�%��
����	&���	��
�	�����	��	
	�
��	�&	�
��	�%
��2	��%���
���	
�	���	���%	

������	�
��	
��	���	&
��	��
�	�
���	�

�	$���	����
��	����	
�	���	�
��	��	 ����	������	�
��	


���	��	���	�
��
��	�
��	�&	�
��	�%
��	��	��������	0	��
�-	5�	��	&���	��
�	�
���	
��	���	
�'
��	��	���	

����	
%%��%��
��	���
����-		

7%��
����	�

�	������&���	�����	�
��	�
���	��
�	
��	��%��
$��	&��	
���	����
�	$��

����-	�����	
��	

���	�
���	��	"���	������2	?
��	������	
��	
�	���	7��	���%	�����-	5�	��	&���	��
�	���	�
���
�	���
�	'
�	

�������&��2	
��	�%��
����	'����	 ����	 ��	���	 ��	 ��	�%��
����	
�
��	��	
	������
�2	>���
�	
��	

�
����
�	�����-	��'�
��2	����	&���	��
�	���	��
��	������	���	�

�	��	����	���	'����	����	
��	

���$�	������	������$���	���	
����	'���	���	%�����-	

�

�

�

�

���������
��	�
	�	������	��������������	
���	��

�'�	&����	����%�	'���	����	��	�������	'���	���
$�����	��%������
��
��	
��	����
�	���
����-	���	

&�������	&���	$���	��������	
��	����
�����	����-		

���	��%������
��
�	&��	���
$�����	����%�	��
���	��
�	�����	��	
�	�����	������	��	$���	'������
��	


������$��	
�������-	5�	��	����������	'������
��	
������$��	
�������	����	��	$�	����%������	
��	

���9�	
�'
��	���	
	�������-	����	����	��	'���	&���	���	�
��	
��	@������	%���9	4�$�-	������	����	

����	 $��'���	 �D1<�	 E	 ��1��	 
��	 <;1��	 E	 <A1;A	 ��	'
�	 &���	 ��
�	 ��	 '
�	 �������$��	 �
��2	 
��	

���������	��%����$��2	��	������	
	$������	
�	���	
�������	'���	$����	����	&��	������	����-	

7����	�����	��
�	
��	��&&�����	��	���	
	�
/�	'���	�
����
�	
��	����
�	��������	
�	�
��	���
���	

'���	�

�	'�����	�
��	���	�����	$�&���-	!
���	��	��	���	�
�����	'���	�
����	�
/��	
��	��3������	$�	

�����	��

������	��	����%�	&��	������	���	'
�	
���	�����	
�	
	��&&�����	%�����	��	������	
	$������	

�
��	���	%����-	���%
����	����	��	%
�	���
���	:A	%��	4�$	��	�
��	��	'������
��	4�$�2	'����	��	���	

������	
�	'������
��	
������$��	
�������	
��	�/%����
�	��	���-	"������
��	�����	'���	���%	�����	

�
/�	���
����	�&	��	��	���	��&&�����	��	$���	
��	'���	�
��	�����	
��
��������	�����
�-	

���	%��$����	'���	


��
$�����	'���	����	������	'���	��

������	&���	����	
��	�

���	��	$���	

�
��	���	%����-	��	%������	'���	������	��	%��=$���	���������	
��	�����
���	����	��	����	$
��	<A	

�������	$�&���	����	����	��	��

�	
�	���	�
/�	���%
����	
��	��
��	����	'����	
�������	'���	$�	��	

�����	
��
	
�	���	����-	����	�
�	����	������	��	����	$����	����	�����	��	'���	����	����	��	��

�	

��
�	 �����	
��	��	
�������	 ��	 ���	
��
-	 5�	�
�	$�	 ���	�
��	��
�	 �����	
��	
������$��	
�������	

'������	��
�	�
�	$��	���	���%
��9�	����	�
���	'�����	
	����
��	�
����-	��	����	���
���	'���	&��	

117



�������
�	����	 +
��	B	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

�
/�	���%
����	��	��	���	%��������	��	�
��	
�	����
���
�	���
��9�	���$��	��	�����	��	�
��	����	��	

$���	����	��������-	

����	��%������
��
��	&���	��
�	�
��
��	�����	
��	������	
�������	
��	�����	��	��	����	&��	����	


�������-	���	 �
���	 ��	 ���	����	������	 ����	 ��	�

�	%�����	�&	'������
��	
������$��	�
�����	

�
���
���-	5�	'
�	���������	��
�	���	�/������	����	4���	����	��	$�	��	�
���	��������	��	����	�
�	$�	

$�����	����	�
����-	�����	��	
���	
	����	��	������	����	'���	
�	�����	
��	
���	�%��
��	�������	

�&	���	����	������-	

5�	 '
�	 &���	 ��
�	 �����	 '
�	 
	 �����
�	 �
��	 �&	 
��3�
��	 ��&���
����	 ��	 �
/�	 ���
����-	 �'�	

��%������
��
��	'����	�
�	�����	�'�	
�������	���������	��
�	����	���	���	&���	����	'���	'���	

��&�����	
��	'����	&���	��	�
��	��	$���	
	�
/�-	>��	�����	��
�	���	�
/��	�����
���	����	&���	��
�	

�����	'
�	��	'
�	�&	���'���	'������	��	���	'���	���	����	�����	'���	$�	
	�
/�	��	�%��
����	'����	

'���	
�������
��	���-	�����	 ��	��	 ��&���
����	��	'����	�
/�	���%
����	�

�	'�
�	��%��	�&	


�������	'������	&��	����	
�	
��	���	����	
��	����	�
����	������
����	
$���	'������	��	���	���	

'���	$�	
$��	��	������
��	
	%
������
�	4������	
�	
	%
������
�	����-	5�	'����	
���	$�	��%���
��	&��	


��	��&���
����	%��
����	��	���	$�	������	'�$=$
���	
�	�����	'���	�
��	%��%��	'��	���	���	

�

�	
�����	 ��	 ��&���
����	%��������	 ��	����	'
�-	����	�&	 ���	���
$�����	 ��%������
��
��	&���	

����&�����	
��	'���	����������	��	���'	���	&����'���1	

• "�
�	��
�����	��	���
���	�

�	��	������
��	��	�����	��	3�
��&�	&��	�����	�������F	

• "������	�
/�	���
���	
�	%
��	�&	�����	�������	
��������	
��	�����
����	��	��	������	����F	

"���	���
���	��	
������	3�
����2	��%������
��
��	&���	��
�	���	�
�����	�
���
���	��	��������	
��	

��
�	����	���	�&	���	$���	��	���	�������-		�����	'���	��	%��$����	�
����	'���	���
���	��	���	

���
�������	��	�%���%	�&	
�������-	���	����	 ������	�
����	'���	 ���
���	 ��	
�������	'���	 ���	

%�����
�	�%���&��
�����	�&	����	�&	����1	

• ��
�����	E	�����	�
����	���$���	'���	�
����	��
���	'���	���%��	���	
$��	��	&��	��	
	

��
��
��	�
�����	�
���
��	

• ��
�%�	E	5&	
	��
��	�
�	���=���&���	'�����,&�
���	���2	��	��	���	
$��	��	$�	
��
����	��	

���	
������	'���	���
%�	��	�����	����
�����	
��	��	����	�
��	���	���
���	'����	���	$�	

����	��	�
��	'������
��	%
��������	
�	�����	�����
���	��	���	

���-	

• 6
�%�	E	+��$����	'���	&����	'���	�
�%�	'���	���	���	������	%�
��	�-�-	�'�	��
���	


��	���	
%%��%��
��	�&	
	��
��9�	'�����	
��	���	������	
�	���	&����	
��	$
��-	

5�	��	&���	��
�	���
���9	
'
������	�&	���
$�������	��	���	���
�(	&��	�/
�%��	��$�����	��%
����	%��%��	


��	���	���%��	'���	����
��-	���
��	
�������	'
�	&���	��	$�	
	���������	��	�����	�
/��	
�	
	���$��	

�&	�����	
��������	�
�	�
�	$
�	�/%��������	��	���	%
��	�
����	���	��	���
��	�����
���-	���	�
��	

&�����
����	'
�	��
�	�����	
��	����	�&	������	�
%
$��	
��	���%&��	���
���	'���	����	
�������	$��	��	��	

���	 %����$��	 ��	 $���	 %
������
�	 ���
���	 '���	 ���	 '
�	 ���	 ������	 '����	 
�	 %������-	 ��
��
�	

���
�����	'���	�����	'���	���	
������	'����	������	�%	
&���	$������	'
�	���	
%%��%��
��	��	���	

���
��	'
�	���	�3��%%��	��	�
��	����	$��
���	�&	���,���	�'�	�
%
$�������-	7����	���
�����	'����	

����
���
��	�

�	�
�	%��$����	���
�����	�
/�	���
���	'���	�����	
�1	

118



�������
�	����	 +
��	G	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

• ���
���	��
�����	�����	$�&���	'������
��	����	�
�	$���	��
���	��	��	���	�&	���	�
/�	

• ���
���	
���
���	��	
������	����	��
��	��	�

�	$����'��	
��	����	��	���	���'	��'	��	���	

���	�
�%2	���%�	���	

• ���
���	���	�������
�����	���	����	��	���	���	�&	���	�
/�	&��	$����	��	
���
���	��%
����	

����
���
��	��	���	����	���'	����	�

�	
���
��	

• ���
���	�����
���	$����	��'������	��	���%	���2	������	��	��
���	���	�/��
	��	���	���%�
����	

����	�
�����	

• ���
���	���
���	�&&	'���	����	���	���	����	�
�	
	�����	���	

• ���
���	���	$����	
$��	��	�
��	
	�����	���	$��
���	�&	
����
	)����	������	$�	���
$������	
�	

���	$������	��
��*	

• ���
���	���	���'���	���	�%���&��
�����	�&	�����	�'�	&����	
�������	'���	
����	
�	���	����	�&	

$������	

• ���
���	���	$����	
$��	��	���%	
	'������
��	����	�%	���	�
�%	���	��	
	$
�	$
��-	

5�	�����	�&	����
�	���
����	�����
���	&���$
��	��	���
��	%��&���
���	��	�����
���	%�����
�-	5�	��	&���	

��
�	���
��	����������	��	����	
��	���	����	���	%��$����	
��	'���	��'	���
���-		

"���	���
��	��	��
�����2	��%������
��
��	&���	��
�	��	������	$�	�%�
���	
��	��&������	��
�����	��	

������	
&���	�$�
�����	���
���	�/%�������-	!
'�	
��	��
�����	
��	��	��
�����	��
��
���	������	

$�	�%�
���	��	&��	��	'���	��'	��
��
���	
�	������
��-	5�	��	&���	��
�	���
���	&��	���	����
����
�	

��
��%���	&����	������	�

�	���	 H8	���
��	3�
��&��
����-	��
�����	������	$�	��
��	��	��'	��	���	

'������
��	 
������$��	 
�������	'���	 ����	 
��	 $�����	 ��'	 
��	'���	 ����	
��	 ������-	>���	

��
�����	�����	$�	�&&����	'���	@��
��	��	#
��9-	��	��������	��	
	�������	��'�2	���	��%������
��
��	&���	

�

���	
	����	'������
��	
������$��	���
���	'����	$�	$���&���
�	��	���	��'�	
��	���	�������2	


�	��	'���	
���
��	����	%��%��-		

6�%������
��
��	��
��	��
�	���	�������	��
�	:BA	'����	�&	�
/�	
�������	�&	
	$��	%
��	��	���	�
���	

�%-	��'�
��2	����	����	���	��	
���	&
�	��	���%
�����	��	�����	
��
�-	5�	��	���	��������	&��	
	

4������	��	��	��������	��	����	$��'���	:<A	
��	:��2	��%������	��	'����	���	����
���
�	��
��2	��	

���	:BA	
	��
�	
������	��	����	
�	������	���%���
����-	��	���	
��	$����	��	��������	
��	��
�	
��	


������$��	$�	'������
��2	$��	����	
��2	 ��	'
�	���	����	
�	&
��	��
�	����	����
���
��	�
�	��	

�
���&���	�����	$��	%
����	��	�����	��	���	���	�
/�	
�������	
��	��
�	�����	�'�	�����������	������	

���	$�	����
���	�/�����
�-		

5�	'
�	
���	���������	��
�	�����	'
�	�������������	$��'���	&
���	��
����	
��	��
�	��	'
�	��
���	


�'
��	���
%��	��	���	
	���
�	���%
��	
��	���	������	4������	&���	
	�
��	��	��������,��
�	

'����	
�'
��	$�	����	�/%����
�-	

+����$��	���������	%��	&��'
��	$�	���	��%������
��
��	��	
������	���	������	�����������	��������1	

• ���
��	��&������	��
�����	��	������	��	����	��'	��	��
�	'���	%��%��	'���	��$�����	

��%
�������	
��	��������
��	
��	�%�
���	

• ��
����	��	���	$������	������	

• ����'���	%��=$������	�&	
������$��	
�������	

119



�������
�	����	 +
��	D	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

• ��������	��
��
������	3����������	
�	���	����	�&	$������	��	

���	���&�����	

• C���	
�������	������	$�	��
��	
�	���%���
����	 &��	���	 �
����	�%	
	$��	%
��2	��	&
���	

������	$�	�
��	���
%��-	

	

�����	�

�	��%������
��
�	&���	���	%�����	����	%
��	��	���	�������
����-	���	%�����	��%������
��
�	�
��	��
�	

��������	0	��
�	��	���
��	$�	
���	����	%�$���	��
��%���	
��	�����	��	
	����	��%%��	�&	�
/��-	5�	

'
�	������&���	��
�	�����	�
�	$�	
�	�����	�&	����������	
�	���	�
��	��
����	�
��	'���	���	�
��	��	

&���-	5�	'
�	
���	�����	��
�	�����	
��	���	�
��	�
/�	%������	��	��������	0	��
�-		

�����	 ���	7��	���%	 �
��	'
�	 ����
��	 �
/��	�

�	$���	%
�����	��	 ���	�
���
��'
�	�
�����	

����������	
��	�
&���	������-	���	��%������
��
�	&���	��
�	���	�
��	������	$�	������
���-		

�����	�

�	
���	$���	�����������	�&	
	��'	�
��	��	8�����	6�
�	�%%�����	���	���	�
����-	����	

'����	$�	����	
�	
	&�����	�
��	��	���	�
��	��
����	
��	���%	
������	���	����������	
��	�
&���	

������	'����	�&&���	����	
��
-	

	

��� ����������������
�����

5�	
�������	��	���	&
��	��	&
��	�������
����	������
���	
	���$��	�&	��
���������	'���	����
����	

$�	������-	����	��	����	
������	���	�&�	����������	'���	&��&�����	
��	
��	����

��	���
���
�����	
��	

$�����	'���	%��
����	'���	
�	�%%��������	��	�������-	��%���	�&	
��	���	��%����	
��	��������	��	

�%%����/	;-	

5�	
�����
���	'���	����
���	������	$�	���	�&�	���	&����'���	��
���������	'���	����
����1	

• ��������	
��	��
�	����	�������(	

• +�����(	

• �������	
��	��������(	

• ��
���
$��	���
���
�����(	

• ���
$�����	���
���
�����(	

• ��������	6�%������
��
��(	

• !�������	+�������(	
��	

• ������-	

	

���	��������	�����
��	
��	��������	$���'-	

� ��	���	�!�"�����������

�	��%������
��
�	&���	���	�����/	��
&	������
����	���%�����	��	���	������	�&	'������	�������
����-	

5�	'
�	&���	��
�	���	
��3�
��	�&	$���	�
�����	�
���
���	
��	%��

��	����	
�������	��	
��3�
��	


�����	
��	�����	�&	���	�
�	
��	
�����	
��	
��
�	��	��������	
��	��
�-	

120



�������
�	����	 +
��	�	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

"���	 ���
��	 ��	 ���	 ��
��	�&	 ���	��
��	���	��%������
��
�	&���	 ��
�	 ���	3�
����	
��	��%�	�&	 ���	


�������	
��	@��9-	5�	'
�	���������	�%��	��
�	���
���	
��	�&���	
�����	&��	%
�����	&���	��
�	

&��
���	$�&���	����	���	����	���	�
$	��	��&�����	��	�
��	����-	���
���	�
�	
���	$�	�����
�	�&	

������
�����	
��	
��	�
����	������	������(	��	'
�	&���	��
�	
�������
�	��
�����	'����	$�	$���&���
�	

'���	���
��	��	
��
	���'�����-	

���	��%������
��
�	���	���	&���	��
�	
��	
�������
�	�
���	
��	��3�����	��	��������	
��	��
�	
��	

��	��%��
������	
��	������	
�	�/������	�
���-	

5�	'
�	&���	��
�	
�������
�	'������
��	
������$��	
�������	
��	������	��	��������	
��	��
�	
�	

�����	
�	���	��
&	������
����	&���	��	
���	��&&�����	��	
�����	���(	'���	%��	$������	'������
��	


������$��	
�������	�����	�

�	��	'
��	
%%��/��
����	;A	�������-	���	��%������
��
�	'����	
���	

����	��	���	
�	��%��
�����	��	�
/��	��	�
��	����	����	
������$��	��	��
&	%��%��	
�	����	
��	

�&���	��
$��	��	��������
��	'���	���	���
��-	

���	&
��	���������	��	��������	
��	��
�	'
�	����������	����	
�	
��	�����	
��	��	'
�	&���	��
�	�����	

��	��&&������	
�
��������	�&	$���	%��

��	����	
��	�
�����	�
���
��	���
����-	

�	�������	'
�	�
��	
$���	����	���
���	���
���	���	&
��	
��	�����	�������	���	������2	�
����	

���	��%������
��
�	&���	���
&�-	����	'����	
���	����	��	���	�
���
��	
�	�
���	��	�
��	����	&���	

�
&��	'�����	'
�����	
�	�
���-	

>��
���2	���	��%������
��
�	&���	��
�	�
/��	���%������	�����	��%��	�&	%�$���	��
��%���	��	��������	


��	��
�	
��	��
�	����	
��	�&���	$�����	��
�	$����-	

�#���
	������$� ����	���	%���
 ����
�����
��

�	��%������
��
�	&���	���	�I+�	��
��%���	���%�����	��	���	'������	�������
����-	5�	'
�	&���	��
�	

���	��%%��	�&	
�������	��	�����
���	
��3�
��2	��'�
��	'���	���	'�
����	��	$
�	�
/��	
��	�&���	

�
��2	�
��	������	����	�

�	$���	%��	$�����-	5�	'
�	�������	��
�	���
���	���	
��	&��	��	�/��
	4�$�	

$�&���	���	������	4�������-	

"���	���
��	��	���	��
��	�&	���	��
��2	���	��%������
��
�	���������	��
�	�
��
��	���	�
�����	

�
���
��	 ��
��	 ��	 ��������	 
��	 ��
�	 ��	 ��
���
$��	 '���	 ���
����-	 ���	 �
��	 
��	 �
����	

��������
$��	 
�	 �
/��-	 ���	 �
4�����	 �&	 ���
���	 
��	 &�������	 
��	 %�����(	 ����	 �

�	 ����	

���
�������%�	'���	���	��������	
��	
�����	����	&
�	$�����	�����	����2	'����	��	���
����	�
�	

$�����	
	%��$���	�&	����	$�����	���	�����-	

���	��%������
��
�	���	���	&���	��
�	
�������
�	'������
��	
������$��	
�������	
��	������-	7�	���	

����
����	�����
��	'������
��	 �
/��	
��	$�����	 ��	��%���$��	
��	�
��	
��	
����
���	&��	 ���	

������	 ��
�-	��'�
��	 �&	 
�	 
�������
�	'������
��	
������$��	
������	 ��	������	 ���	�I+�	 ��	

��3�����	��	����	�%	���	����	$�&���	���	
������	��	������	��	���������	��'	�
��	
�������	'���	$�	




��
$��-	����	������	�
�	��
�	��	%��%��	$����	�
��	&��	
%%���������	$��	�����
���	�����	
��	

������	�
/��-		

�����	
��	�
��	��&&�����	��%��	�&	'������
��	
��	'���	���
��	��	���	��%�	�&	�
/�	
������2	��	'����	

$�	
����
���	��%����$��	��	��
��	
��	���
$�������2	�
��	%��%��	'������	
	������
$��	���
$�����	�
����	

121



�������
�	����	 +
��	<�	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	


�����	����	�&	���	
�������-	�����	��	
	%
������
�	%��$���	'���	%�'����	'������
���	
�	����	
��	

�&���	��

�	
��	����	
�������	�
�	���	$�	
$��	��	�
��	����-	

5�	'
�	����������	��
�	���	��
��	
��	���������	�&	���	&
���	��	3����	�/%����
�	��	���%
�����	��	

�����	
��
�-	�����
���	&��	$���	����
����	
��	����
�	�
��	
��	���	��	
	%��=������
���	�����
��(	

��'�
��	���	�
�����	&
��	�
��	����	�

�	
�	�&&���	��	�����
��	%�����-	

"���	���
��	��	%�$������2	�����	
%%�
��	��	$�	%�����	�&	
�
��������	&��	

�����	���%
����	��'�
��	

��	��	���	��
���	����

��	��	����
�	�
��	
��	��
��%���	$�������-	

���	 ��%������
��
�	 ���������	 ��
�	 ����	'����	 ����	 ��	 ���	 �
/�	�
���
��	
�	 �
���	
��	
���	

�������	��	'����	$�	�&	$���&��	&��	����	��	�
���	���	�%��	������	��	���
���	��	$��
�&	�&	���	%�$���	


�2	��	���
����2	��	�
�	$���	���������	��
�	��3�
��&���	���
���	�

�	$���	���
���	�
�����	�
$�	


�������	���	��%������
��
�	�
�	����	��	�
������	�&	����-	�	+5 	������	�����	���%	%��
���	����2	


�������	��	�����	�
����	$�	
$����-	

5�	'
�	&���	��
�	�
/��	���%������	�����	��%��	�&	%�$���	��
��%���	��	��������	
��	��
�	��
���
$��	

'���-	����	�
/��	
��	$����	�

�	��
��	��'
���	�����
���	���$���	�&	
������$��	
�������-	 ��	

�
������	��
��	��	
	������	$��	�����	
��	��
��	���	����	�
/�	���
����	��	
��	&���	���	�
��'
�	

��
�����2	���	�
��
��	��
��%���	��
��
��	
��	
�����	��	��
���
$��	

� ��	�������	�

�	��%������
��
�	&���	���	�����/	+�����	���%�����	��	���	������	�&	'������	�������
����-	5�	'
�	

��
���	��
�	 ���	�
/�	�
��	�������	���	7��	���%	�����	�
�	$���	����	���	��	���	'�������	�&	���	

%

�����-	 5�	 ��	 ��'	
���	�
�������	
�	 �
/��	
��	3������	�%	��	 ���	 ������	 �
��	�&	 ���	��
�	

�
���
��	'
�-	���	����
����	��	�/
���$
���	$�	�
/��	����	�����	�=�����	��	���	��
�-	

���	��%������
��
�	���������	��
�	���	$���	'
�	��	�
��	����	����	%��$���	'����	$�	��	�

�	

��������	 5�������	 ���������	 )�5�*	 ��
����	 �
/�	 �
���
��	 
�	 ���	 �
���-	 ��'�
��2	 ��	 '
�	


����'������	��
�	&��
�����	����	'����	$�	
�	�����-	

��&& ���
�'��	�

�	��%������
��
�	&���	���������	�
��	%��
����	��������	��	���	%��
�����	��	�
/�	�
���	��	

��������	
��	��
�-	

5�	'
�	&���	��
�	���	������	��	�
/��	��	��������	
��	���&�����	
�	����	
��	���	'���	���	�
/�	��	���	

���������	��
�����	
	��������2	����	��	���
������	�&	'������	����	
��	��	���	'
�	��	%���	�%	
	

%
�������	��	���-	5�	�����	
��
�2	���	�����	��	��	�&	���	
������	��	


��
$��	&��	����	'����	��	'�
�	

�
��	%��%��	
�����	��	��������-	

���	��%������
��
�	��
���	��
�	����	��	$�������	
�	�����	
�	���	�
�	'��������	�
��	%��%��	���	

&��	�
/��	'����	����	
��	����	������	
'
�	&���-	���	�����	������	����	���	%�$���	���������	
$���	

���	�
/�2	����	'
��	��	���'	'������	��	���	��	��	


��
$��	&��	����2	���	�&	��	��	�
����	�����-	���	

��%������
��
�	'����	����	��	���	���	��
����	�&	���	������	��
����	��	��������	��	���	�
��	
�	

�����	%�
���	��	

���	���&�����-	

122



�������
�	����	 +
��	<<	

+��4���	��������	
��	��
�	�
�����	�
���
��	�����	���
��	�����	  ���	�������
����	�������
�	 ���	

	

� �� 
	�����(����&
��	��
�&	��)�'
��#�����������	����
��� �����

�	��%������
��
�	&���	���	�������	
��	?������	��%
������	
�	��������	
��	��
�	����	�������	

���%�����	��	���	�������
����-	5�	'
�	&���	��
�	���	��%%��	�&	�
�����	�
���
���	��	
��3�
��	
�����	

���	����	
�	
��	�����2	
�������	����	�&&���	�����	$�	�
��	��	����%���	����������	��	���	��
����	�
/�	

�
��-	

���	��%������
��
�	'
�	��
'
��	��
�	�����	
��	%��

��	����	
�������	��	��������	
��	��
�-	

5�	'
�	&���	��
�	���	�
4�����	�&	
�������	
��	��	����	���������2	
�������	'���	���
��	��	
	��������	�&	


�������	��	��	3�������
$��	��'	����	%
����	�����	C7�-	���	��%������
��
�	���������	��
�	���
��	


��������	�
�	

��	$��	�����
���	

����	���
���
����	'���	����	
�	����	����	'
��	��	�������	��'	

��$$���	���	�������	��-	���	��%������
��
�	�
�	
���	'��������	���
���	�����	�������	���	������2	

�������	��	�����	
�������	
��	�
�����	��	�����	��$���	%�����-	

���	��%������
��
�	���������	��
�	�
��	���
���	����	��	�
�������	�

��
����	�������	
��	�&���	

�
��	
	������	�����	��	$�	��
'
��	�&	���	�����	�&	��
&&��	��	���	����-	5�	��	���
�	��	���	'����	���
���	

�

�	$���	��	���	��
��	������-	

"���	���
��	��	�
���2	��	'
�	&���	��
�	�����	�����	$�	����	��	J��%��'�	
��	$�����	����%������	��	

�
���	��	������-	

���	��%������
��
�	��
���	��
�	&
���	
��	��&�������	���	����2	���	��%������
��
�	�
�	���%�
����	��	

��
��
�	���
�����	��
�	���
���	��
��	���	�����	$�&���	����	%���	���	�%-	����	
���	
��	
	&��	&��	

�
�����	
	�
/�	
�	����	��
��	����	
�	@%��	$�����9	
�������	���	
��	��
$��	��	&�
�	����	��'�-	

5�	'
�	&���	 ��
�	 �����	 ��	��&&������	%�$������	
$���	 �
/�	����
��	���$���	$��	���	
$���	���	�
��	

���
�����-	

���	��%������
��
�	�
�	��
��	&���	���
&�	'�����	�����	�
/��	��	��������	
��	��
�	$��	�����
���	

'����	���	'
��	
�	
	�
��	�
��	
�	�����2	��%���
���	��	���	��'�	������	
��
�-	

�

123



124



Halcrow Group Limited 

Arndale House  Otley Road  Headingley  Leeds  LS6 2UL 

Tel +44 (0)113 220 8220  Fax +44 (0)113 274 2924 

www.halcrow.com 

Appendix 5 

�

�������� ��������	
	���
	�����
�	�������
	�
����	����
�	����	 	
��� ����	���
	����	

����� ����
	����
�	�
�������	���
	 ��
� �� �!����	

������� "���	#�$���%��	 	 	

	

� �������	�
����

��� &	'�(���	���	'�����
	���
	����
	%���
�	$�%	�
%���
�	$���	��
	���	�)	����
�����	

��)��������	 ���	 ��
$%	 )���	 (���	 ����
%*	 +�	 '���������	 ��
	 %���
�	 ����$
�	 ��	

�%%
%%�
��	�)	�'
��������	�%%�
%	���	��
$%	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
�	��	

%�''�
�
��	��
	����	�(%
�������%,	�%	$
��	�%	���
����	
�)���
�
��	���	��%�(�����	

�%%�
%*		

� 
���������
�
�����
����

��� ��
	%���
�	$�%	�������
�	�������	�	%
�)	���'�
����	-�
%��������
*	��
%
	$
�
	

%
��	��	�,.��	���
�%
�	�����
�	���	'�����
	���
	����
�%	���	�'
�����%	��	��������	


	���
*		&	�����	�)	��/	-�
%��������
	)���%	$
�
	���'�
�
�	���	�
����
�,	������	�	

�
%'��%
	���
	�)	������	0.1,	�	��'����	����
	)��	���%	��'
	�)	%���
�*	+�	%�����	(
	

���
�	����	���	���	�����%	%��	��	��
	�����	���(
�	�)	�
%'���
��%	'
�	����
	����'	�%	

%��
	�
%'���
��%	)���
�	��	��%$
�	���	-�
%����%*	

� ��������������
������������

��� ��
	�
%'��%
%	'�����
�	���
	(

�	��%����
���
�	��	�	�����
�	�������
	���	

'�����
	���
	����
	(�%�%	�%	%��$�	��	��(�
	2*0	(
��$*		�

�
��������� ��������������
�������
���������������������
�����

� �������� �� ��������

�����
�	�������
	����
	 2./	 3/*2	

4�����
	���
	����
	 0��	 �2*3	

���
�� !"#� �""�"�

��� ��
	%���
�	�%�
�	�
%'���
��%	��$	����	��
�	���	(

�	������
�	$���	
���
�	��
	

�����
�	�������
	��	'�����
	���
	����
	��	��������	
	���
*	��(�
	2*�	(
��$	%��$%	

��
	�
%'��%
%*	

125



�
������$� ����������	��
�%����
�������������&�'��'�(����%������)
���� *��%'
���)%�����
���

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���5
��%	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

�	6	�	 03	 7*7	 0�	 0�*�	

�	6	�	 27	 .*.	 0.	 0�*�	

�	6	0�	 3.	 ��*2	 2�	 ��*�	

0�	6	0�	 �.	 0�*0	 �2	 0�*�	

0�	6	��	 7�	 0�*3	 07	 00*/	

8�
�	��		 07�	 2.*3	 �2	 0�*�	

���
�� �-!� �""�"� �$"� �""�"�

�

��� ��(�
	2*�	�������
%	����	//*�1	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	���
	(

�	

������
�	��	��
	��������	
	���
	��9�	����
	)��	���
	����	0�	�
��%	�%	���
	

��*�1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
*	

��� ��(�
	2*2	�������
%	��
	'��'������	�)	��
	����
	$��	%�(%���(
	��	�	�����	�������*	

��
	��:�����	 �)	 '�����
	 ���
	 �
%'���
��%	 ;��*31<	 %�(%���(
	 ��	 �	 �����	 �������	

���'��
�	��	3�*�1	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%*	

�
�������� �����������	�� ���������%������
��
�%���%���%�.�

� )
���� ���
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���

� �������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	 ��.	 3�*�	 0�0	 ��*3	

��	 �/	 �3*0	 .	 3*2	

���
�� �!/� �""�"� �"0� �""�"�

��� #
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	��	
%�����
	��
	������	�)	��
��	'�%%
��
�	)��
%	)��	�	

$

�*		��
	�
%���%	��
	�����
��
�	��	��(�
	2*7*	

�
������/� �����������'��
,��1�%,%���
��
����,����
����

� )
���� �+
��%
,�� ��%'
���)%���

	 2�
��3� 2%��3� 2
4�3� 2�
��3� 2%��3� 2
4�3�

#���	 7/*7	 �	 0��	 �	 �	 �	

=�����$�	 07*�	 �	 ��	 �	 �	 �	

#����	�������	 2.*0	 �	 0��	 �0*2	 �	 0��	

8��
�	�
�
'���
	(������	 �*�	 �	 2�	 7*0	 �	 0��	

��������	!���		 0*�	 �	 ��	 7*/	 �	 0��	

126



��� ��
	��
���
	'��'������	�)	����	$���	)��	�����
�	�������
%	�������%	)��	7/*71	

'
�	$

�*	��
	��
���
	'
��
����
	�)	)�����$�	$���	)��	�����
�	�������
%	

�������%	)��	07*�1	�)	��
	��'����	$

�%	)��
%,	$���	�����	�������	$���	

����������	)��	2.*01*	

��� #����	�������	$���	�������%	)��	�	����	'��'������	�)	'�����
	���
	����
�>%	

$������	$

�	��	��	��
���
	�)	�0*21	$���	�
�
'���
	(������	����������	)��	

��	��
���
	�)	7*01	���	��������	$���	7*/1*	

� ��
�
���

��� #
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	$���	��'
	�)	�
����
	��
�	����
	��%�	)�
-�
����*	��
	

��:�����	 �)	 �����
�	 �������
	 ����
�%	 ;37*�1<	 ���	 ��
	��:�����	 �)	 '�����
	 ���
	

����
�%	;.7*�1<	����
	�	������	���*	8���	0.*.1	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	

����
	�	'��'�%
	(����	��(*	

�
����/��� ����������	��
�%����
�������������&�'��'�(����%������)
���� *��%'
���)%�����
���

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

������	���	 �3�	 37*�	 �.	 .7*�	

4��'�%
	�����	��(	 30	 0.*.	 �	 0*3	

?���(�%@4
�'�
	�����
�	;!�

������	���
%%�(�
<	 �/	 /*�	 3	 /*�	

?���(�%@4
�'�
	�����
�	;���A!�

������	���
%%�(�
<	 0	 �*2	 �	 3*.	

���
�� �55� �""�"� ��#� �""�"�

��� #
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	��
	��
���
	���(
�	�)	����%	��
�	$���
�	��	�	

��'����	$

�*		�����
�	�������
	����
�%	�
��
�	��	$���	��	��
���
	:�%�	��
�	�	

����%	�
%%	�	$

�	����	4�����
	���
	����
�%*		�����
�	����
	�
%'���
��%	

$���
�	��	��
���
	)��	7/*�	����%	'
�	$

�	���'��
�	��	7.*7	����%	'
�	$

�	

)��	'�����
	���
	����
�%*			

��� #
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	��	%���
	��$	����	����%	��
�	$���
�	��	��))
�
��	

���
%	�)	���	������	�	��'����	$

�*	=����
	7*0	�����
��%	��
	��
���
	����%	

$���
�	������	��
	������
	'
����	;�/B��A0.B��<	)��	
���	���	�)	��
	$

�*	8�	

��
���
,	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	$���	)��	�	%������	���(
�	�)	����%	������	

��
	������
	��	��
	'�����
	���
	����
�%*	+�	%��$%	����	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	

$���	�
%%	����%	������	��
	$

����	������
,	$���%�	��
	'�����
	���
	����
	$���	

�
%%	����%	��	�	$

�
��	������
*	&�����������,	(���	����
%	$���	���
	������	

��
	$

�	������
%	����	��
	$

�
��%*	

127



�%,����/���� �'��
,���
 �%(���������������

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun

HC PHV

	

��� =����
	7*�	%��$%	��
	��
���
	���(
�	�)	����%	$���
�	������	��
	


�
����@�����	'
����	;0.B��A�/B��<*	������	��
	�����	���
	'
����	��
	�����
�	

�������
	����
	$���,	��	��
���
,	���
	����%	����	��
	'�����
	���
	����
�%*	+�	

��%�	%��$%	����	(���	����
%	$���	���
	����%	��	�	=�����	���	��������	�����	

���'��
�	$���	���
�	�����%	������	��
	$

�*	�

�%,����/�$�� �'��
,���%,����%(���������������

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun

HC PHV

	

��� ��
	����
	$
�
	�%�
�	$�
��
�	��
	 ��
�%���	&��	���2	���	���	��	
))
��	��	��
�*	

��
	 �
%���%	 ��
	 %��$�	(
��$	 ��	��(�
	7*�*	���
	7�*/1	�)	�����
�	 �������
	

�
%'���
��%	%���
�	����	��	���	���	��	
))
��	��	��
�	���'��
�	$���	2�*31	�)	

'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%*			

128



�
����/�$�� �����������)
������6%����%�,�����


������ ��.�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	 0.�	 7�*/	 2�	 2�*3	

��	 0.�	 ��*7	 3�	 /�*2	

���
�� �#5� �""�"� ��/� �""�"�

��� ���%
	$��	�
'��
�	����	��	���	���	��	
))
��	��	��
��	��'����	$������	$

�	$
�
	

��
�	�%�
�	��	$���	$��	��	���	�))
��
�	��
�*		

�
����/��� �����������7

������
�����$""��6%����%�,�����;2���%�������������8	

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

!���	���
�	��	��
	
�
����	 003	 /7*2	 0.	 �0*7	

!���	)��	����
�	����%	 00�	 /0*�	 �0	 /�*�	

8��
�	 ��	 0�*0	 /	 03*0	

��� ���
	/7*21	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	%���
�	����	��
�	$���	���
�	��	��
	


�
����	���'��
�	$���	�0*71	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%*	���
	/0*�1	�)	��
	

�����
�	�������
	�
%'��%
%	���	/�*�1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
%	�
%'��%
%	

%������	����	��
�	��$	$���	)��	����
�	����%*		

��	 ���%
	$��	%���
�	C���
�>	
9'����
�	����	$���	�%	���
	%'�
��	���	��
�	��
	�7��	

'
����	���	����
�%	��
	$������	
����
�	��	��
	�������%*	

��
 #
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	��	%���
	��
	���(
�	�)	���
%	��
�	�����	��%�(�
�	

'�%%
��
�%	��	�	$

���	(�%�%*	��(�
	7*7	%��$%	��
	�
%���%*		���
	��*�1	�)	

�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	���	�3*71	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	$
�
	

��'������	���
	���
��	��	�����	(
�$

�	��
	���	)��
	��%�(�
�	'
�%��%	'
�	$

�*	

�
����/�/� ������������������� ��
���
��������
�	%�
�������������

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

�
�
�	 .7	 ��*�	 �2	 ��*�	

0	��	�	 ���	 ��*�	 //	 �3*7	

�	��	0�	 77	 00*.	 ��	 03*7	

0�	��	��	 0�	 �*0	 �	 7*2	

?��
	����	��	 7	 0*0	 0	 �*�	

���
�� �5�� �""�"� ��!� �""�"�

129



�

� 
����������
�	��
���

��� #
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	$�
��
�	��
�	���	(

�	������
�	(�	�	'�%%
��
�	��	

��
	��%�	�
��*		��(�
	�*0	�
����%	��
	�
%���%*	

�
����!��� ������������������� ��
�
��
�����%��%�������
��� �
��9(���%�������������8�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

4��%������	������
�	 23	 0�*�	 .	 /*�	

D
�(����	������
�	 0�7	 70*/	 �/	 ��*7	

���	������
�	 �0�	 �3*2	 ./	 37*0	

�

��� ���
	0�*�1	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	���	/*�1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
	

���
	(

�	'��%������	������
�	$�����	 ��
	 ��%�	 �$
��
	�����%,	$���	70*/1	���	

��*71	(
���	�
�(����	������
�*	

��� ���%
	$��	���	(

�	������
�	$
�
	�%�
�	��	�
%���(
	��
	�����
��*	��
	��:�����	

�)	�
%'��%
%	�
���
�	��	������%	(�	'�%%
��
�%	���
�	��
	��)��
��
	�)	�������	��	

����%,	$���	����	��%'��
%	���������	��
�	���
�	$�
��
�	��	�
������	��	)��
%	��	

'�%%
��
�%	 ���	 ������	 
�����	 ���
�,	 ���	 %
�
���	 �
%'���
��%	 �
%���(
�	

�����
��%	�
������	��	������	�(�%
*		

��� ��
	����
	$
�
	�%�
�	�)	��
�	)
��	%�)
	$���%�	$������	�%	�	��9�	����
�	��	��������	
	

���
,	��
	�
%���%	�)	$����	��
	%��$�	(
��$	��	��(�
	�*�*	�

�
����!�$� �����������	�� ���
�����

����%��������%�,�
��
��
4%�	�%'���%����%,�����:�)�'�.�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%,	���	�)	��
	���
	 02/	 2/*�	 ��	 77*.	

���
	�)	��
	���
	 ��/	 ��*.	 /0	 ��*/	

���
	�)	��
	���
	 0/	 7*�	 2	 �*/	

���
�� �5-� �""�"� ��#� �""�"�

��� ���
	 ��*.1	 �)	 �����
�	 �������
	 �
%'���
��%	 ���	 ��*/1	 �)	 '�����
	 ���
	

�
%'���
��%	%���
�	 ����	 ��
�	 )
��	 %�)
	%��
	�)	 ��
	 ���
,	$���	7*�1	���	�*/1	

%������	����	��
�	)
��	%�)
	���
	�)	��
	���
*	

��� ���%
	�
%'���
��%	$��	����>�	)

�	%�)
	���	�)	��
	���
	$�
�
	�%�
�	��	
9'����	

$��*	��
	��:�����	�)	�
%'��%
%	$
�
	��	�
������	��	(
���	������
�	(�	'�%%
��
�%	

$���%�	����	�
%'���
��%	���
�	�	����	�)	'����
	%�''���*	

130



��� ��
	����
	$
�
	��
�	�%�
�	$�
�	��
�	)
��	��%�)
	$������	��	��������	
	���
*	

��
	�
%���%	��
	������
�	(
��$	��	��(�
	�*2*	

�
����!��� ����������;������� ���
�������

������%�,�%����%,�����:�)�'�.��

92���%�������������8�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

������
	 ��	 0�*3	 7	 �*/	

�����	���
	 ��2	 37*/	 77	 /�*�	

+�	�
�����	��
�%	 07�	 �0*�	 7�	 ��*�	

��	 ��
	��:�����	�)	(���	��
	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	;37*/1<	���	'�����
	���
	

�
%'���
��%	 ;/�*�1<	 %���
�	 ����	 ��
�	 )
��	 ��%�)
	 $���%�	 $������	 ��	 �����	 ��	

��������	
	���
*	���
	��*�1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
	%���
�	����	��
�	)
��	��%�)
	

��	�
�����	��
�%	�)	��������	
	���
,	�%	���	�0*�1	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
*		

��
 ��
	��
�%	����	$
�
	��%�	��������	%���
%�
�	�%	(
���	��%�)
	$
�
	!���
��$�	

���	?���
%���(
*	

���� #
%'���
��%	 $
�
	 ��
�	 �%�
�	 $���	 �����	 (
	 ���
	 ��	 ��'���
	 %�)
��	 $�
�	

$������	�%	�	��9�	����
�	��	��������	
	���
*	��
	�
%���%	��
	%��$�	��	��(�
	�*7	

(
��$*	

�
����!�/� ����������;�
�������������������%(���'���

�� �%����%,�����:�)�'�.��

92���%�������������8�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

��9�	?��%����%	��	����%	 0��	 �/*7	 ��	 �2*�	

���D	��	��(%	 ��2	 /�*�	 //	 3�*�	

���D	��	����%	 0�0	 �/*3	 0�	 �0*.	

8��
�	 2�	 �*�	 0�	 03*�	

���� ��
	 ��:�����	 �)	 ��
	 '�����
	 ���
	 ����
	 ;3�*�1<	 )
��	 ����	 ���D	 ��	 ��(%	 $����	

��'���
	%�)
��	��	��������	
	���
,	�%	���	/�*�1	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
*	

���
	�/*71	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	)
��	����	��9�	���%����%	��	����%	

$����	��'���
	%�)
��,	$���	�/*31	(
���	�)	��
	�'�����	����	���D	��	����%	$����	

��'���
	%�)
��*	

���� ��
	��:�����	�)	�
%'���
��%	$��	���
	C���
�>	�%	��
��	��%$
�	%���
�	����	���
	

%�''���	)���	��
	'����
	$����	��'���
	%�)
��	���	%
������*	

131



�  ��!��

��� ?
�(
�%	�)	(���	����
%	$
�
	�%�
�	$�
��
�	��
�	(
��
�
	��
�
	�%	%�))���
��	����	

%'��
	��	��������	
	���
*	&%	%��$�	��	��(�
	/*0,	..*31	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	

�
%'���
��%	 %���
�	 ����	 ��
�
	 $�%	 ��%�))���
��	 ����	 %'��
	 )��	 �����
�%,	 ��	

���'���%��	��	/2*�1	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%*	

�
����#��� �����������<�

%�%�����
�����
���
'
%�
����
����
���� ���������%����%,�����:�)�'�.�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	 72	 00*2	 2�	 2/*�	

��	 22�	 ..*3	 /0	 /2*�	

���
�� �-$� �""�"� 0#� �""�"�

��� ��
	����
	$
�
	�%�
�	$�
��
�	��
�
	$
�
	���	��
�%	$�
�
	�	�
$	����	%�����	(
	

�����
�*		��(�
	/*�	%��$%	����	3�*31	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	%���
	

����	 ��
�
	��
	��
�%	 ��	��������	
	���
	$�
�
	 ��
�
	%�����	(
	�
$	�����
�	

�������
	����%*	+�	������%�	��
	��:�����	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	;/�*71<	%���	

����	��
�
	%�����	(
	��	�
$	����%*	

�
����#�$	 									����������
� �
��
�����������������������������
���� ��
���.	

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	 �/.	 3�*3	 2/	 2�*/	

��	 ./	 �7*2	 ��	 /�*7	

���
�� �!/� �""�"� 0�� �""�"�

��� 8)	���%
	����	%���
�	����	��
�
	%�����	(
	�
$	����%,	 ��
	��%�	������	��
�%	

�
-�
%�
�	$
�
	E�

�%	#���@��������	�������	���	F���%	#���@8��	���'	���
�*	

��� +�	�
%'��%
	��	��
	-�
%����	�%����	$�
��
�	��
�
	��
	���	����%	��	��������	
	

���
	����	%�����	(
	����
�	��	���
	���
	%'��
%,	.0*21	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	

����
	)
��	���%	$�%	�
�
%%���,	���'��
�	$���	�3*21	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
*	"�%�	

���

�,	 ��������	 �������@E�

�%	 #���	 ���	 F���%	 #���@8��	 ���'	 ���
�	 $
�
	

%���
%�
�	(�	����	�
%'���
��%	�%	�

����	��	(
	�
����
�
�	��	���
	%'��
%	

'�����
�*	

�
����#��� ������������
����%����%,�����:�)�'����
���������������,�������
'��(������
����

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	
���	 .0*2	 �0	 �3*2	

132



��	 /.	 0.*3	 2.	 7�*3	

���
�� �#�� �""�"� -0� �""�"�

��� ��
	����
	$
�
	��
�	�%�
�	$�
��
�	���	����%	%�����	(
	�
���
�*	��
	

��:�����	�)	(���	�����
�	�������
	���	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	;��*21	���	

..*�1	�
%'
����
��<	%���
�	����	��	����%	��	��������	
	���
	�

�
�	��	(
	

�
���
�*	8)	���%
	�
%'���
��%	����	���	%���
	����	����%	�

�
�	��	(
	

�
���
�,	��
	��%�	������	$
�
	���)���	#���,	4�������	#���	���	G''
�	

����
*	

�
����#�/� ����������	��
� ��
����%����%,�����:�)�'���������������(�'��.�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	 �3	 3*3	 0�	 00*�	

��	 2��	 ��*2	 33	 ..*�	

���
�� �!$� �""�"� -5� �""�"�

" #�$
	���%���
�
����

��� ?
�(
�%	 �)	 (���	 ����
%	$
�
	 �%�
�	 �(���	 ��
��	 %���%)������	$���	 ��
	 ����
��	

�
����
	��
	���������%	��	��������	
	���
*		��(�
	3*0	%��$%	��
	�
%���%	�)	��
	

%���%)������	 $���	 ��
	 '�����
	 ���
	 �
����
	 ���
��
	 ���������%	 ���	 ��(�
	 3*�	

�����
��%	 ��
	 �
%���%	 ��	 �
������	 ��	 ��
	 �����
�	 �������
	 �
����
	 ���
��
	

���������%	�
������	��	��
*	

	�
����5��� ���� ����
�%�
%����%�����������������%'
����%���'��%����
,������%�%���.�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

����%)�
�	 �32	 3.*�	 0��	 ..*�	

G�%���%)�
�	 3/	 �0*.	 07	 00*.	

���
�� �/0� �""�"� ��0� �""�"�

�

�
����5�$� ���� ����
�%�
%����%����������������
���� ��
��%
,��'��%����
,������%�%���.�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

����%)�
�	 202	 .0*�	 ��	 �2*0	

G�%���%)�
�	 /�	 0.*0	 3	 /*�	

���
�� �-$� �""�"� �"$� �""�"�

133



��� ��(�
	 3*0	 ���������%	 ����	 ��
	 ��:�����	 �)	 (���	 �����
�	 �������
	 �
%'���
��%	

;3.*�1<	 ���	 '�����
	 ���
	 �
%'���
��%	 ;..*�1<	 ��
	 %���%)�
�	 $���	 ��
	 ����
��	

�
����
	��
	���������%	)��	'�����
	���
	�
����
%*	

��� ���%
	�
%'���
��%	$��	�

�
�	��
	�
����
	��
	���������%	��	(
	��%���%)������	

'�����
�	��
	)����$���	�
�%��%B	

• �
�����
�����
�������������
���
�����������

• ��������� ����������
���������!���������"�

• #�
�������������
���
�����
�������
��� ���

��� ��(�
	3*�	���������%	����	��
	��:�����	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	;.0*�1<	

���	�2*01	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	��
	%���%)�
�	$���	��
	�����
�	�������
	

�
����
	��
	���������%*	

��� ���%
	�
%'���
��%	$��	�

�
�	��
	���������%	��	(
	��%���%)������	'�����
�	

��
	)����$���	�
�%��%B	

• �
�����
��$�#����!�#�����������
���������������������

• #�
�����������������
���
��������������"�

• %��&
���������������������

�����
�����������������

& '�����

	�� ?
�(
�%	�)	(���	����
%	$
�
	�%�
�	)��	��
��	�'�����%	�
�������	��
	����
��	�
�
�	

�)	�����
�	�������
	)��
%*	��(�
	.*0	�������
%	��
	�
%'��%
%*	

�
����-��� 1�%�%�������
�%�,����)
���� �+
��%
,���
�����

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

���	����	 0�	 �*�	 0�	 .*3	

���	��$	 .3	 �2*�	 0�	 0/*�	

&(���	�����	 �/�	 /�*0	 37	 /7*7	

���
@��	�'�����	 00	 �*�	 0�	 0�*7	

���
�� �50� �""�"� ��!� �""�"�

	

	�� ��
	 ��:�����	 �)	 �����
�	 �������
	 �
%'���
��%	 ;/�*01<	 ���%��
�
�	 �����
�	

�������
	)��
%	��	(
	C�(���	�����>	���'��
�	$���	/7*71	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%*		

134



( )��
�
���


�� ����	����
%	$
�
	�%�
�	�)	��
�	)
��	����	��9�	����
�%	�
�
��
	
�����	��������	(
)��
	

(
���	�����
�	�	��9�	����
�%	���
��
*	��
	��:�����	�)	(���	��
	�����
�	�������
	���	

'�����
	 ���
	 ����
%	 ;//*01	 ���	 3�*�1	 �
%'
����
��<	 $
�
	 �)	 ��
	 �'�����	 ����	

��������	$�%	��%�))���
��*	

�
����0���� ����������	�� ���
������%'��������%'����

%�%������
%�%�,.��

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	 0��	 22*�	 2�	 �3*0	

��	 �77	 //*0	 ./	 3�*�	

���
�� �#0� �""�"� ��-� �""�


�� ���%
	�
%'���
��%	$��	%���
�	 ����	 ��
�	���	���	 �����	��
�	�
�
��
�	%�))���
��	

��������	$
�
	��
�	�%�
�	$���	��������	��
�	$����	���
	��	%

	�))
�
�	��	����
�%*	

��
	�
%���%	��
	%��$�	��	��(�
	�*�	(
��$*	

�
����0�$� �����������1�%�%�������
���������
%�%�,�92���%������������8�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

��"�@�DE	 7�	 00*�	 0/	 0.*�	

"����%�	 ������
	 ��7	 /�*/	 .�	 ��*0	

��%�(�����	&$��
�
%%	 0��	 �3*�	 2�	 2/*�	

F��$�
��
	�
%�	 03�	 ��*�	 /�	 /�*3	

��%���
�	���
	 0/0	 7�*�	 /.	 3/*7	

�������	&(�����	�
%�	 0/.	 7/*�	 �7	 /�*3	

8��
�	 27	 �*�	 /	 /*3	


�� ��
	��:�����	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	;��*01<	)
��	����	"����%�	�������
	�%	

��
	��%�	��'������	��������	��
�	$����	���
	��	%

	�))
�
�	��	����
�%	�%	���	/�*/1	

�)	 '�����
	 ���
	 �
%'���
��%*	 ��
	 �
9�	��%�	 '�'����	 ��������	 �
-�
%�%	 $
�
	 �	

���$�
��
	�
%�,	��%���
�	���
	���	�	�������	�(�����	�
%�*	


�� 8)	���%
	����	%���
�	���
�	��������,	��
	��%�	������	%���
%����%	$
�
	���
%	�)	

��
	����
,	
��-�
��
	��$���%	���
�%	���	�	���
	���'�
�
�%��
	���$�
��
	�
%�*	


�� #
%'���
��%	$
�
	 ��
�	�%�
�	$�
��
�	 ��
	 ��������	%�����	(
	���'��%���	��	

���������*	8)	���%
	$��	��%$
�
�	���%	-�
%����,	%��
	�.*.1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	

����
	%���	����	��
	��������	%�����	(
	���'��%���	�%	���	�/*/1	�)	��
	�����
�	

�������
	����
*	��
	�
%���%	��
	%��$�	��	��(�
	�*2*		

135



�
����0��� �����������<��������%����
%�%�,������(������ ����'�����
� .�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

���'��%���	 ��3	 �/*/	 .2	 �.*.	

D��������	 .	 2*7	 0	 0*�	

���
�� $�!� �""�"� -/� �""�"�

�* )�+
�,��!���
��-�
�$����.�/����

���� ?
�(
�%	�)	(���	����
%	$
�
	�%�
�	�)	��
�	$
�
	�$��
	����	��������	
	���
	����	

�������	
�)���
%	�	���
�����	 �����	�)	��2	��	 ��
	���(
�	�)	�����
�	�������
	

�
����
	���
��
%	��	��
	����*	��
	�
%���%	��
	������
�	��	��(�
	0�*0*	

�
�����"��� ;���� ���
�
�����
��������%��
���(��%�
���%(%�����������(�����
��
���� �

�
��%
,��'��%�����%�������%����%,�����:�)�'�.�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	 ���	 33*�	 33	 /�*2	

��	 .�	 ��*�	 70	 27*3	

���
�� �55� �""�"� ��-� �""�"�

���� ��
	��:�����	�)	��
	�
%'���
��%	$
�
	�$��
	�(���	��
	���
�����	�����,	$���	33*�1	

�)	��
	�����
�	�
%'���
��%	���	/�*21	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	��%$
����	

'�%����
��*	

���� ?
�(
�%	�)	(���	����
%	$
�
	�%�
�	$�
��
�	��
�	���%��
�	��
�
	��
	%�))���
��	

�����
�	�������
%	��	�

�	��
	����
��	�
�
�	�)	�
����	��	��������	
	���
*	

��(�
	0�*�	�������
%	��
	�
%'��%
%*	

�
�����"�$� ����������	�� �������%������������������

%�%�����
���� ��
��%
,������(��������

����������'����
���(
���%����%,�����:�)�'�.���

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%,	��
�
	��
	���	����	 �.2	 37*�	 �2	 7/*0	

5
%,	��
�
	��
	%�))���
��	 30	 0.*3	 �/	 ��*/	

��,	���	������	���	'
����%	�)	��
	���	 0.	 7*3	 ��	 0�*0	

��	8'�����	 �	 0*2	 3	 /*0	

���>�	F��$	 2	 �*.	 3	 /*0	

���
�� �-"� �""�"� ��!� �""�"�

136



���� &���%�	���

	-����
�%	�)	�
%'���
��%	)���	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	;37*�1<	

���%��
�	��
�
	��	(
	���	����	�����
�	�������
%	��	�

�	��
	�
����,	���'��
�	

��	7/*01	�)	 '�����
	���
	����
�%*	0.*31	�)	�����
�	 �������
	 �
%'���
��%	���	

��*/1	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	)

�	����	��
�
	��
	%�))���
��	��9�%*	

���� ���%
	#
%'���
��%	$��	%���
�	����	��
�
	$
�
	��%�))���
��	�����
�	�������
%	

��	�

�	�
����	$
�
	�%�
�	$�
�	���
	�����
�	�������
%	$
�
	�
-���
�	��	

��������	
	���
,	��(�
	0�*2	%��$%	��
	�
%���%*	

�
�����"��� ���������;����
���(�����
���� ��
��%
,�������%���.�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

������	��
	������
	 �	 �*�	 0	 7*.	

������	��
	
�
����@�����	 00	 /.*.	 02	 /0*�	

&��	���	���	�����	 �	 20*�	 3	 22*2	

���
�� �#� �""�"� $�� �""�"�

���� ��
	��:�����	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	;/0*�1<	���	�����
�	�������
	

�
%'���
��%	;/.*.1<	%���
�	����	���
	$
�
	�
-���
�	������	��
	
�
����@�����*	

���� &��	�
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	��	%���
	��$	����	�����
�	�������
%	��
�
	%�����	

(
	��	��
	)�

�	��	��������	
	���
*	��
	�
%���%	��
	�
����
�	��	��(�
	0�*7*	�

�
�����"�/� ���������1�%�%������&��
��)
���� �+
��%
,��������<%=��

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

G��
�	��2	 �02	 32*�	 27	 ��*3	

��2	 ��	 0.*.	 0�	 0/*7	

8�
�	��2	 �7	 .*�	 03	 �3*�	

���
�� $0$� �""�"� #�� �""�"�

���	 8)	���%
	����
�%	$��	�
%'���
�,	32*�1	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	���	��*31	

�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	)
��	����	��
	)�

�	%�H
	%�����	(
	�
%%	����	��
	'�
%
��	

���(
�,	$���	.*�1	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	���	�3*�1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	

����
	(
��
����	����	��
	)�

�	%��
	%�����	(
	����
�	����	��
	'�
%
��	���(
�*	

���
 ��
	��
���
	%�H
	�)	�����
�	�������
	)�

�	���%��
�
�	)��	��������	
	���
	

$�%	7.7	)��	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	���'��
�	$���	�0�	���
�	(�	��
	'�����
	

���
	����
*�

137



����� &��	 �
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	��	%���
	�)	��
�	�������	����	��������	
	���
	����	

�������	%�����	�
���
	��
	���
�����	�����	��	��
	���(
�	�)	�����
�	�������
	

�
����
	���
��
%*	��
	�
%'��%
%	��
	�
����
�	��	��(�
	0�*�*�

�
�����"�!� 1�%�%��������(�'%�,�+�������6%(%�������(�����
�)
���� �6%�������

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

5
%	 27	 �*0	 27	 2�*0	

��	 2�3	 .3*�	 //	 �.*7	

��	�'�����	 07	 2*3	 02	 00*�	

���
�� �5!� �""�"� ���� �""�"�

����� ��
	��:�����	�)	�
%'���
��%	)���	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	;.3*�1<	)
��	����	

��
	���
�����	�����	%�����	���	(
	�
���
�,	��	���'���%��	��	�.*71	�)	'�����
	

���
	�
%'���
��%*	���
	�*0	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	$�%�	)��	��
	�����	

��	(
	�
���
�,	�%	��	2�*01	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
*		

����� D�
$%	$
�
	%�����	�
�������	��
	���
��	��'���	��	�	%
��
%	�)	)�����%	�)	��������	


	���
	����	�������	$
�
	��	�
���
	��
	
9�%����	�����	��	�����
�	�������
	

���
��
%*	��
	)������%	��
	%������%
�	(
��$	���	'�
%
��
�	��	��(�
	0�*/*		

����
%����	

����� ���
	.�*31	�)	�
%'���
��%	)���	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	)
��	����
%����	

$����	����
�%
,	���'��
�	$���	7/*�1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
	$��	)
��	���%	

$����	(
	��
	��%
*		

=��
%	

����� ���
	�2*.1	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	���%��
�
�	����	��
�
	$����	(
	

��	����
�%
	��	)��
%	)����$���	�
A�
%��������,	���'��
�	$���	0.*�1	�)	��
	

'�����
	���
	����
*	

4�%%
��
�	!������	���
%	

����� ��
	��:�����	�)	�
%'���
��%	)���	(���	����
%	(
��
�
�	����	'�%%
��
�	$������	

���
%	��	����%,	$�
�	)����
�	��	$�
�	(���
�	(�	�
�
'���
,	$����	�
��
�%
	��	

���	(
	�))
��
�*			

D
����
	E������	

����� ��
	��:�����	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	(
��
�
	����	�����
�	�������
	

���	'�����
	���
	�
����
	-������	$����	�
��
�%
,	$�
�
�%	��
	��:�����	�)	'�����
	

���
	�
%'���
��%	(
��
�
	����	��
�
	$����	(
	��	
))
��*			

"))
����
�
%%	�)	"�)���
�
��	

138



����� !���	�
����	��	
))
����
�
%%	�)	
�)���
�
��,	/3*71	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	

����
	$
�
	�)	��
	�'�����	����	�
������	
9�%����	���
��
	�
%��������%	$����	

�
%���	��	�	�
��
�%
,	$���	7�*/1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
	(
���	�)	��
	%��
	

�'�����*			

+��
���	4�����	)��	���
	

����	 +�	�
��%	�)	���
���	'�����	)��	���
	(�	'�����
	���
	�
����
%,	�7*31	�)	��
	�����
�	

�������
	����
	$
�
	�)	��
	�'�����	����	�	�����
	��	���
��
	�
%��������	

���������%	$����	����
�%
	���%	��������,	���'��
�	��	����	2�*�1	�)	'�����
	���
	

����
�%*	���
	��*01	�)	��
	�����
�	�������
	����
	)
��	����	���
���	'�����	)��	

���
	(�	�����
�%
�	�
����
%	$����	����
�%
	���'��
�	$���	23*31	�)	��
	'�����
	

���
	����
*	

8�
�	#������	

����
 ����	��
	�����
�	�������
	���	'�����
	���
	����
	)
��	��
�	�������	$����	

����
�%
,	$���	�	�
%'��%
	���
	�)	.�*�1	���	/�*31	�
%'
����
��*		

��%���
�	����%)������	

����� 0�1	�)	�����
�	�������
	����
�%	$
�
	�)	��
	�'�����	����	��%���
�	%���%)������	

$����	����
�%
	�%	�	�
%���	�)	��
	�
�����	�)	��
	���
��
	�����,	���'��
�	��	

27*�1	�)	��
	'�����
	���
	����
*	

�
�����"�#� 1�%�%�������
�%�,��������&(�
����
�	�>�����%��%���

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���
	

+���
�%
	 ��	

"))
��	

�
��
�%
	 +���
�%
	 ��	

"))
��	

�
��
�%
	

���))��	����
%����	 .�*3	 0�*/	 0*/	 7/*�	 72*7	 0�*7	

=��
%	 �2*.	 �0*2	 �7*�	 0.*�	 /7*�	 03*�	

4�%%
��
�	$������	���
%	��	����%	 /*�	 37*.	 0�*�	 2*.	 70*�	 �7*3	

4�%%
��
�	$������	���
	$�
�	

)�����$�	

�*�	 30*0	 �2*/	 7*/	 2�*7	 �/*�	

4�%%
��
�	$������	���
	(�	�
�
'���
	 02*3	 /�*�	 03*�	 �*�	 ��*�	 2�*�	

�����
�	�������
	�
����
	-������	 /*0	 �3*.	 //*0	 7*3	 �3*�	 2.*2	

4�����
	���
	�
����
	-������	 �*.	 2�*0	 /7*�	 .*2	 �.*3	 22*�	

"))
����
�
%%	�)	
�)���
�
��	 �*0	 �2*�	 /3*7	 .*�	 ��*�	 7�*/	

+��
���	'�����	)��	���
	6	'�����
	���
	 �7*3	 �/*0	 0�*�	 2�*�	 2.*�	 2�*�	

+��
���	'�����	)��	���
	6	�����
�%
�	 ��*0	 20*�	 02*7	 23*3	 2�*/	 ��*/	

8�
�	�������		 .�*�	 /*.	 7*0	 /�*3	 ��*�	 .*2	

��%���
�	%���%)������	 0�*�	 7�*�	 7�*�	 27*�	 70*2	 �2*�	

139



����� &��	�
%'���
��%	$
�
	�%�
�	��
��	�
%'��%
	��	?)$����
�����������$�0��!����

���������$��	����������1������$�	!����	���
����'�	��
	�
%���%	��	��(�
	0�*3	

%��$	����	.7*�1	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'���
��%	%�������	���

	��	���

	$���	

��
	%���
�
��	����	 ��
�
	 �%	���	
�����	$���	��	%�''���	 ��
	����
��	���(
�	�)	

�����
�	�������
%	�%	��	�3*�1	�)	'�����
	���
	����
*	

�
�����"�5� 1�%�%����
@�?������%����������,��������������������������������(�����
�

�
���� ��
��%
,��A�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

��������	��%���

		 0�	 �*�	 07	 02*2	

��%���

	 0�	 2*2	 00	 0�*�	

�
���
�	���

	���	��%���

	 �7	 /*/	 ��	 0�*�	

&��

	 ..	 �7*�	 �7	 ��*�	

��������	���

	 ��2	 /�*�	 2/	 27*2	

���
�� �##� �""�"� �"!� �""�"�

����� ���
	�)	��
	��%�	������	�
%'��%
%	��	��
	%���
�
��	$
�
B	

• (��)��!������� �����*����+�����&��
����
����
����,
���

• -

����!���.������&�����������"�

• /��)�����������
����.�������
������������

����� ��
	%���
�	��
�	�%�
�	�'�����%	�)	��
	)����$���	%���
�
��I	2 ����
����$���
�
��

����$�����1������$�	!����	���
�����
��-�
�$����.�/����0�����1����
���$��

��1�
	�1������	
���0�
�
����
����������!�34	��
	�
%���%	��	��(�
	0�*.	%��$%	

����	 37*71	 �)	 �����
�	 �������
	 ����
�%	 %�������	 ��%���

�	 ��	 ��%���

�	 ����	

�
������	��
	�����	��	��
	���(
�	�)	�����
�	�������
%	��	��������	
	���
	$����	

(
�
)��	��
	'�(���	(�	�
������	$������	���
%	��	����%	���'��
�	��	7.*/1	�)	4�����
	

���
	�
%'���
��%*		

�
�����"�-� �����������1�%�%����
@�?��(�'%�,������%(%�����������(�����
��
���� ��
��%
,���%��

��%,�����:�)�'������������
%����������%��� ������%�,��
%�%�,��%(���
��

�
���A�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

��������	��%���

		 0�2	 �7*.	 2�	 �.*/	

��%���

	 /�	 0�*/	 �0	 ��*�	

�
���
�	���

	���	��%���

	 �3	 3*3	 00	 0�*�	

140



&��

	 ��	 .*�	 ��	 0�*�	

��������	���

	 27	 �*3	 �2	 �0*�	

���
�� �!$� �""�"� �"!� �""�"�

����� ���
	�)	��
	��%�	������	�
%'��%
%	��	��
	%���
�
��	$
�
B	

• /��)��������+�!�������
����.��������

• ����
������
��
����*���
�+����������)���

����� ��
	%���
�	��
�	�%�
�	�'�����%	�)	��
	)����$���	%���
�
��I	2)$�����������	
���

	
�	������	���
��-�
�$����.�/�����$�����!���$��������
�������$�������
	���

�
�
��������
��34	��
	�
%���%	��	��(�
	0�*�	%��$	����	3�*.1	�)	�����
�	�������
	

����
	���

	��	%�������	���

	����	��
�
	��
	%'
����	������%����
%	��	��������	
	

���
	����	���
	��
	�
�
�����	�)	��
	���
�����	�����	
%%
�����	���'��
�	��	72*�1	

�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%*		

�
�����"�0� 1�%�%����
@�?������
�������%
���%���(��
�����%����%,�����:�)�'����
��(
���

����������%����
�������(��%�
���%(%��������%
�A�

�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

��������	��%���

		 2/	 0�*�	 ��	 �.*3	

��%���

	 0/	 7*.	 00	 0�*�	

�
���
�	���

	���	��%���

	 �.	 .*�	 03	 0/*.	

&��

	 /0	 0.*7	 0/	 0�*.	

��������	���

	 0��	 �3*7	 �.	 �3*3	

���
�� ���� �""�"� �"�� �""�"�

����� ���
	�)	��
	��%�	������	�
%'��%
%	��	��
	%���
�
��	$
�
B	

• #���
�����������

• -
������������ 

��0�����!�
�����*��������"�

• -

����!���.���������!��

����� =������	��
	����
	$
�
	�%�
�	$���	
))
��	��
�	�������	��	$����	���
	��	��
�	�)	

��
	���������	�
���
�	��
	���
�����	�����*	��
	�
%���%	%��$	��	��(�
	0�*0�	����	

3�*01	�)	�����
�	�������
	�
%'��%
%	���
�	��
�	$����	$���	���
	����%	�)	��
	

���
�����	�����	�)	�����
�	�������
%	$�%	�
���
�*	+�	������%�	22*21	�)	'�����
	

���
	����
�%	%���	��
�	$����	���	�����
	�)	��
	�����	$�%	�
���
�,	���	7�*01	

%���	��
�	$����	$���	���
	����%*	���
	7�*31	�)	�����
�	�������
	

141



�
%'���
��%	$����	�
��
	��
	����
,	�%	$����	07*�1	�)	'�����
	���
	

�
%'���
��%*	���
	7�*01	�)	'�����
	���
	�
%'���
��%	$����	%$����	)���	

'�����
	���
	��	�����
�	�������
*	

����	 8)	���%
	�
%'���
��%	$��	%���
�	�����
�	
))
��	�
A�
%��������	$����	���
,	��
	

����	����
��	)��	�����
�	�������
	����
�%	$�%	)��������*	

�
�����"��"� 7

�������������
���%
�������(��%�
���%(%���
����(�'���92���%�������������8�

)
���� �+
��%
,����
��� ��%'
���)%�����
���	

�������� � �������� �������� � ��������

+	$����	�������
	�%	������	 73	 0�*2	 2.	 22*2	

+	$����	
9'
��	��	$���	���
	����%	 �/3	 3�*0	 �/	 7�*0	

+	$����	
9'
��	��	$���	)
$
�	����%	 /	 0*/	 �	 �*�	

+	$����	��-���
	�	�����
�	�������
	���
��
	 �7	 /*2	 2/	 20*/	

+	$����	��-���
	�����'�
	�����
�	�������
	

���
��
%	

07	 2*3	 /	 �*2	

+	$����	%$����	)���	�����
�	��	'�����
	���
	 0�	 2*0	 0	 �*�	

+	$����	%$����	)���	'�����
	���
	��	�����
�	 3	 0*.	 7.	 7�*0	

+	$����	�
��
	��
	����
	 0��	 7�*3	 03	 07*�	

8��
�	 27	 .*�	 7	 2*�	

�

142



 

 

Mick Hildreth 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dear Tim & Brighton and Hove City Councilors, 

On behalf of the large number of GMB members, working in Brighton & Hove as taxi and private hire 

proprietors, I write to you in relation to the recent taxi unmet demand survey (carried out on behalf of 

Brighton & Hove City Council by Halcrow), its subsequent findings, the recently held trade meeting, and 

the forthcoming committee meeting which will consider the findings of the survey. 

I would like to explain that in my role as the GMB PDB National (Provincial) Hackney Carriage & Private 

Hire Secretary; I have travelled the length and breadth of England and Wales supporting our 

membership. During this time I have witnessed this scenario of Councilors considering the findings of 

such reports many times, and I wish to make sure that every Councilor within our city is aware of the 

responsibility that lies upon their shoulders when considering the way forward in these turbulent 

economic times. 

Without going into too much of the history of legislation and government ‘best practice guidance’, in 

respect of the Taxi and Private hire industry, a short time line in chronological order is listed below: 

1985: Conservative Government Deregulate the Provincial Taxi Industry. 

1985: Lobbying on behalf of the Taxi Industry by Trade Unions resulted in an amendment being added 

to the above legislation, allowing local authorities to limit the number of taxis ‘if there is no significant 

unmet demand’, which resulted in this being considered done by conducting an un-met demand survey, 

which would allow local authorities to defend themselves should they be legally challenged. 

2003: Labour Government commission the Office of fair trading (OFT) to investigate the Taxi Industry. 

The result of their investigations stated that market forces should determine the number of Taxis that 

would operate in each licensing authority. 

2003: The Government Passenger Select Committee at the time were given the task of considering this 

report and found that the OFT report was statistically flawed and failed to provide any empirical 

evidence to support its findings in recommending the abolition of taxi restrictions, and it's view that 

fares would decrease should taxi restrictions end. The OFT replied to the committee rejecting those 

criticisms.  

Mick Hildreth 

Branch Secretary 

GMB P39 Southern Region Professional 

Taxi Drivers Branch 

5 Sheridan Terrace 

Hove  

East Sussex 

BN3 5AE 

 

15
th

 November 2009  

 

143



2003: Government Best Practice Guidance, issued by the Labour Government, stated that in their 

opinion entry into the taxi industry should not be restricted, and best practise should be to allow 

market forces to determine the number of taxis operating within each licensing authority. However, the 

report also stated that local authorities could still limit the number of taxis if it was their opinion that it 

was best to do so, as local government would be in the best position to judge that. 

Since this time further restrictions have been placed on local authorities to pressure them into 

complying with this government’s policy, and out of approximately 343 local authorities only 81 

continue to restrict the number of Taxi licenses.  

I would like to take this opportunity to inform you of recent developments in Bracknell Forest and 

Southend-on-Sea, where the GMB has a large number of members in each area. Both areas have 

recently taken the decision to re-limit the number taxi licenses.  

Bracknell Forest has limited for the first time and Southend-on-Sea has decided to continue to limit. The 

respected councils, both Conservative controlled, worked with the GMB and came to these decisions by 

accepting that their local taxi drivers were suffering due to the current economic climate.  

They accepted that it was their responsibility to support their taxi drivers by providing an economic 

working environment that would enable the drivers to provide a safe professional service to their local 

visitors and residents.  

The GMB Professional Drivers Section has thousands of members nationally, and the policy of our 

National Organising Committee, which represents these members, is that of opposing market forces in 

our industry. As a Trade Union we cannot support the policy of this government that leaves our 

members working in excess of 70 hours a week to support their families, because there are too many 

taxis for the level of work available, a policy that encourages drivers to work these hours regardless to 

the health & safety of both passengers and drivers. 

There are numerous cases around the country of drivers being involved in accidents due to working 

excessive hours, in Sheffield recently one driver sadly was involved in a fatal RTA after taking one more 

job after working for 14 hours.  This was the result of market forces. 

LIMATATION OF TAXI LICENCES IN BRIGHTON & HOVE 

In our local unmet demand survey it clearly states that at this moment in time there is no significant 

unmet demand for taxi services. Our membership therefore insists that our council continues to 

support the limitation of taxi licenses within Brighton & Hove, and continues to support the managed 

growth policy which has been in place for many years,  issuing 5 plates per year until the next un-met 

demand survey. The GMB would expect these licenses to have the same license conditions placed upon 

them as before, in as much that they must work on a taxi company to assist with the unmet demand for 

the service provision to wheelchair user. 

SERVICE PROVISION TO WHEELCHAIR USERS 

The GMB has great concerns regarding this issue, surveys in 2003, 2006 and this latest version all 

indicate that the service provision to wheelchair users is getting worse, instead of improving. Our 

membership is of the opinion that not only has the council let down these people but has failed in its 

moral duty of care to take steps to assist these people.  

144



It is also our members opinion that the responsibility to provide a service to wheelchair users lies with 

all sides of the trade, which include Hackney Carriage, Private Hire, and Taxi companies. The GMB 

would therefore like to suggest the following initiatives:  

1. 

1.      I recently wrote to our council asking what procedures were in place to ensure, on Health & Safety 

grounds, that training was provided to drivers of wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAVs). I asked this 

question as it is our member’s opinion that drivers of WAVs are reluctant to do a WAV job as they are 

either unsure, or have had no training in how to use the vehicle equipment. I was informed it was not 

the responsibility of our local Hackney Carriage Office.  

On behalf of our members I would like to suggest that this council takes responsibility to ensure that all 

drivers of WAVs are fully knowledgeable of how to use the equipment, action such as this would 

improve vastly the service to WAV users.  

I would also suggest on behalf of our members that a condition of license is placed upon a Hackney 

Carriage vehicle license which states that the proprietor is responsible for the training in the use of the 

wheelchair car equipment. Alternately the council could issue a separate drivers badge for WAV 

vehicles, and could insist that the driver concerned demonstrates the use of the equipment of the 

vehicle type he is driving. 

  

2.   The un-met demand for the service provision for wheelchair users is mainly via bookings with Taxi 

companies. Our members would like to suggest that initiatives are put into place to ensure that Taxi 

companies provide a service to wheelchair users, and these are our member’s suggestions. 

a.      Operator licenses have the following conditions placed upon them. By April 2010 all 

operators within Brighton & Hove must have 20% of their fleet wheelchair accessible. By 

April 2011 all operators must have 25% of their fleet wheelchair accessible. By April 2012 

30% of their fleet must be wheelchair accessible. 

3.    Currently there are some 500 private hire cars of which less than 10% are wheelchair accessible. The 

ratio of Private Hire cars being wheelchair accessible is the main problem with the provision of service 

to wheelchair users. Our membership therefore suggests that a condition be placed upon all new 

private hire vehicle licenses, being issued after April 1
st

 2010, requiring the vehicles to be wheelchair 

accessible.  This would allow the private hire fleet to provide a service with 450 saloon cars adequately 

catering for the ambient disabled, and put into place a system which will provide an improved service in 

the future for wheelchair users. 

4.   Other incentives to encourage drivers to acquire wheelchair cars could be to reduce the licensing fees 

for WAV vehicles by 75%, and pass the costs to saloon car vehicle fees. 

5.   The council could provide business receipt cards, out of the hackney carriage budget, for WAV drivers, 

and produce a directory of drivers contact details, of those drivers which volunteer, for disabled groups 

to distribute.  

6.   The council could provide free Private Hire operators licenses to individual Private Hire WAV proprietors 

to encourage them to provide a service directly to WAV users. 

145



 

CONCLUSION 

The Brighton and Hove GMB Taxi and Private Hire section are firmly of the view that something must be 

done to bring the level of service, offered to wheelchair bound customers, in line to the service offered 

to more able bodied customers. Wheelchair bound customers have had to suffer long waits and poor 

service for far too long. This must end. 

Our suggestions above are radical, but they are needed, and needed urgently. We believe our proposals 

share the burden between all sections of the taxi and private hire trade. The time has come to end this 

discrimination.  

 

Mick Hildreth 

Branch Secretary  

GMB P39 Southern Region Professional Taxi Drivers Branch 

Email: mick.hildreth@gmbpdb.org.uk 

Mob: 07814032002 

 

 

 

 

       

 

146



LICENSING COMMITTEE 

(NON LICENSING ACT 
2003 FUNCTIONS) 

Agenda Item 14 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

  

Subject: Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Trade Ethnicity 
Monitoring 

Date of Meeting: 26 November 2009 

Report of: Director of Environment 

Contact Officer: Name:  Martin Seymour Tel: 29-6659 

 E-mail: hco@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 To report the results of Ethnicity Monitoring of the Hackney Carriage/Private 

Hire Trade for 2008/09. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That Committee note the results of Ethnic Monitoring. 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 

3.1 All applications received by the Hackney Carriage Office for the licensing of 
vehicles and drivers are monitored for Ethnic background. The results of 
this monitoring are shown in appendix 1. 

 
3.2 Ethnic monitoring is undertaken to ensure that the waiting list is maintained 

and operated in a fair and transparent way as recommended by the Equality 
and Human Rights Commission. 

 
4. CONSULTATION: 
 
4.1 This matter has been discussed at the council’s hackney carriage and 

private hire consultation forum where all members of that forum are free to 
express their opinions. The forum members have delegated negotiations 
to selected representatives. Monitoring is carried out at the request of the 
forum who are satisfied with the results. 

147



5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:  
 
5.1      Financial Implications:  
  
 Revenue: The full cost of providing the ethnicity monitoring report is met from 

within the revenue budget for taxi licensing. 
  
 Capital: There are no capital cost implications.  
 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw           Date: 21/10/2009 
  
5.2 Legal Implications: 
 
 There are no direct legal implications. 
 
 Lawyer: Rebecca Sidell Date: 04/11/2009 
 
5.3 Equalities Implications: 
 
 In order to improve services to disabled groups all new drivers are required 

to attend equalities and disabilities awareness and customer care training. 
Drivers are also tested to ensure that they meet a basic standard of literacy.  

 
5.4 Sustainability Implications: 
 
 The role of the taxi trade is included in the Local Transport Plan, which 

identifies it as a key element in providing sustainable transport choices.  It 
creates important links in the transport network to other forms of sustainable 
transport providing a seamless connection.  It will contribute to three of the 
government’s four shared transport priorities – reducing congestion, 
improving air quality and accessibility.  Use of taxis for school transport, 
licensed vehicles using bus lanes, locating ranks at railway stations and the 
city coach station, approved use of liquid petroleum gas all contribute to 
reducing congestion and moving passengers quickly.   

  
5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
 Sufficient late night transport to reduce public place violent crime is 

recognised in the community safety, crime reduction and drugs strategy. 
The presence of CCTV can be an important means of deterring and 
detecting crime. 

 
5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
 The transport industry should be safe, profitable and be a positive 

experience for residents and visitors. 

148



 
5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
 Tourism needs to provide a warm welcome to visitors and the tourism 

strategy depends upon effective partnership with transport operators 
particularly to achieve safe late night dispersal for the night time economy.  

  
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1.  
 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms: 
 
1. None. 
 
 
Background Documents: 
 
1. None. 

149



150



LICENSING COMMITTEE 

(NON LICENSING ACT 
2003 FUNCTIONS) 

Agenda Item 15 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Street Trading Policy 

Date of Meeting: 26 November 2009 

Report of: Assistant Director Public Safety 

Contact Officer: Name:  Jean Cranford Tel: 29-2550 

 E-mail: jean.cranford@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 
1.1 Brighton & Hove City Council street trading policy was introduced on 2 April 1998 

and was an amalgamation of policies from Brighton Borough Council and Hove 
Borough Council adopted under the provisions of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

 
1.2 Brighton & Hove has streets in which street trading is prohibited, it has areas where 

consent is granted for street trading (e.g. East Street) and there are 5 pitches for 
street trading in the city centre.  The Seafront area including Grand Junction Road 
and Kings Road is designated a consent street but is outside the trading policy 
established by the Council and control of that area is the responsibility of the 
Seafront Office. 

 
1.3 Officers obtained permission to undertake consultation to review the entire city’s 

street trading designations and policy from committee on 27 November 2008 and 
this report shows the proposed final street trading policy which takes into account 
feedback received as part of the consultation process. 

 
1.4 Existing standard conditions have been modified to remove imprecise, 

unenforceable conditions and to assist small businesses which links to corporate 
priorities. 

 
1.5 Officers have received comments from a street trader who operates near Dorothy 

Stringer School and interested parties.  These comments are all appended.  It is 
felt, on balance, that there is no justification to interfere with this legitimate 
business. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
2.1 That the committee agrees the street trading policy as set out in appendix 1. 

 

151



 

 

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
  
  Current Process  
 
3.1 Officers in Environmental Health and Licensing issue permits for street trading (see 

3.2 – 3.4).  Any appeals against officer’s decisions are heard by the Licensing 
Committee (Non-Licensing Act 2003). 
 

3.2 There are currently 5 designated pitches for street trading in the city centre (Castle 
Street, Clarence Square, Dean Street, Crown Street and Marlborough Street).  All 
pitches are let and there is a waiting list for traders who would like to take over a 
pitch if one becomes vacant. 

 
3.3 A street market is held each Saturday in Upper Gardener Street between the hours 

of 07.00 and 17.00.  Occasional markets are held in Bartholomew Square and 
George Street Hove.  New Road and Black Lion Street in Brighton need to be 
authorised for street markets. 

 
3.4 Street artists and hot chestnut sellers are permitted to operate in East Street, Duke 

Street, Bartholomew Square and Market Street. 
 

3.5 There are designated areas (zone B) where traders can request a permit for street 
trading.  These are the residential areas outside the city centre. 

 
3.6 There are areas throughout the city in which street trading is prohibited.  These 

areas are generally main thoroughfares or areas in the city centre and run from the 
western boundary of Brighton & Hove in Vale Road, Portslade, along Portland 
Road, Sackville Road, Church Road, Western Road, Montpelier Road, Chatham 
Place, Viaduct Street, Upper Lewes Road, then southwards down Lewes Road, 
Albion Street and Grand Parade before heading East along Edward Street, Eastern 
Road and finishing in Arundel Road. 

 
3.7 A meeting was held with Brighton & Hove Albion Football Club regarding street 

trading in the streets surrounding the new Community Stadium at Falmer.  It was 
agreed that street trading will be prohibited within 1 mile of the Community 
Stadium, but excluding council owned public spaces, which would remain 
undesignated. 

 
3.8 There have been requests for occasional  markets from the business community in 

areas such as New Road, Jubilee Street and Black Lion Street. 
 
Commentary on street trading policy  

 
3.9 Historically, parks have remained undesignated to allow Leisure officers flexibility 

permitting outdoor events.  The Seafront has been a consent street managed on a 
day to day basis by Seafront officers.  Economic development members and 
officers are considering corporate market policies and officers are working to 
ensure corporate market policies and street trading policy work in harmony. 

152



 

 

 
3.10 For members assistance and as reported last time:- 

Street trading is selling articles on the street, including exposing or offering articles 
for sale.  It does not include provision of services, like henna tattooing, hair 
braiding, tarot reading etc. 

 
The following activities are not subject to street trading controls: 
 

• Pedlars, with a pedlar’s certificate issued by the Police under the Pedlars 
Act 1871.  These are itinerant traders. 

• Markets covered by enactment or order (ancient – none in Brighton & 
Hove) 

• Trunk road picnic areas (none in Brighton & Hove) 

• News vending 

• Trading at petrol filling station 

• Trading on the street adjoining a shop as part of the business of the shop 

• Selling things on a round like milk doorstep delivery 

• Objects on a highway licensed under highways legislation, like tables and 
chairs or A boards 

• Recreation or refreshment facilities licensed under highways legislation 

• Charitable street collections which are subject to separate permissions 
 

Controls only apply to the street or other public places. 
 
It is proposed to continue to permit Upper Gardner Street, city centre stalls, various 
specialist or occasional markets and seasonal activities like portrait painting and 
hot chestnut selling but to allow markets in some newly pedestrianised street. 

 
4. CONSULTATION: 
 
4.1 A full and measured consultation involved residents (via the council’s website), residents 

associations and Community Associations including the North Laine Community 
Association, businesses (including individual street traders) in Brighton & Hove, Police 
and Highway Authority, Economic Development and Regeneration regarding the 
corporate markets policy, Tourism, Events Office, Seafront Office (including Seafront 
Trader Association), Trading Standards, City Clean, Legal, Finance, Ward Councillors, 
City Centre and Hove Business Fora, Trader Associations including North Laine Traders 
Association, Upper Gardener Street Traders Association, Brighton & Hove Albion 
Football Club, Education Authority (Children’s Trust) and the governing body and head 
teacher of Dorothy Stringer High School. 

 

153



 

 

4.2 The Education Authority commented as follows: 

“You may be aware of a particular issue we have regarding street traders who 
operate outside schools, in particular some of our secondary schools.  There is an 
increasing drive towards healthy eating and we have made considerable efforts to 
improve the school meal offer to encourage pupils to eat more healthily.  In some 
instances this effort is being hampered because of the proximity of street traders 
running burger and ice cream vans very close to schools.  This inevitably 
encourages pupils to leave the school campus and purchase less healthy food 
options than for lunch rather than the healthier options that are available in the 
school dining facilities. 

This has been raised in the past with officers in the licensing department to see if 
there is anything that can be done to restrict the ability of these traders from 
operating in such proximity to schools.  Would it be possible as part of this review 
to consider introducing an ‘exclusion zone’ around the secondary schools in the city 
to help promote the benefits of healthy eating?”. 
 

4.3 An email response was received via Dorothy Stringer School from the Safer 
Schools Officer, East Area Neighbourhood Policing Team around issues relating to 
the same ice-cream seller as mentioned above, plus concerns around a new ice-
cream seller in the vicinity of Varndean School. 

 
4.4 Feedback was received from an existing street trader (ice cream van at Stringer) 

(letter attached).    
 
4.5 The regulation of street trading by consents covers infrequent, itinerant trading.  

There is no right of appeal against refusal and so it is vital that licensing authorities 
behave in a fair and reasonable manner.  An established street trader would have a 
reasonable expectation that his/her consent would continue.  Street trading consent 
regulations’ primary purpose is to prevent obstruction of the street or danger to 
persons using it, or nuisance or annoyance to people using the street or otherwise.  
The department promotes diet, health and local food issues including engagement 
with school children by its healthy awards scheme recently launched.  Using street 
trading regulations to promote healthy food, although appealing, may not be proper 
use of the regulatory controls. 

 
4.6 Another response was received from an existing street trader with a pitch in the city 

centre who is opposed to the issue of further pitches in the city centre.  He was also 
concerned that we are removing section C (permitting the sale of same goods 
within 100 metres).  There is no proposal to increase city centre pitches.  Limiting 
business may be an improper use of street trading controls which are designed to 
avoid danger, obstruction, nuisance and annoyance. 

 
4.7 Brighton and Hove Business Forum raised the matter of Jubilee Street but this is 

private land and therefore not subject to street trading controls. 
 

154



 

 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
 5.1 Financial Implications:  
 

Revenue: Street Trading fees are set at a level that officers reasonably believe will 
cover the costs of administering the service. Any costs associated with the Street 
Trading Policy will be met within existing Licensing budgets.  Fees are set as part of 
the annual Council budget setting process.   
 
Capital: There are no capital implications. 

  
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw  Date:  19/10/2009 
 
5.2 Legal Implications: 

 
Section 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 enables a 
district council in England and Wales to adopt a code for the regulation and control 
of street trading within its area.   
 

 Certain types of trading are excluded from the definition of street trading and these 
traders are not required to obtain a licence or consent to trade on a licence or a consent 
street.  Similarly, a trader falling within the exclusions may trade in a street designated as 
a prohibited street. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell    Date: 22/10/2009 

 
5.3 Equalities Implications: 
 

  Diversity is valued and strong, safe communities are vital to future prosperity.     
 
5.4 Sustainability Implications: 

 
 Some street trading supports recycling of goods.  Farmers markets may reduce 

“food miles". 
 
5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  
 Transparent, proportional street trading controls minimise danger of obstruction and 

nuisance. Street trading can be a source of stolen or counterfeit goods.   
 
5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
  
 Street trading is a crucial business and employment opportunity and unnecessary 

regulation might lead to legal challenge. 

 
5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 

155



 

 

 Street trading represents some traditional, historic heritage of the city.  Many characters 
and activities are interwoven into the city’s history. 

156



 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Brighton & Hove City Council Street Trading Policy. 
 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms: 
 
1. None. 
 
 
Background Documents: 
 
1. None. 

157



 

 
 

           

Item 15: APPENDIX 1 

STREET TRADING POLICY 

 

Consent Street Purpose 

Zone A  

City Centre Static consent sites 
(Dean Street, Marlborough Street, 
Castle Street, Crown Street, 
Western Road, Clarence Square) 

 

General trading 

Upper Gardner Street 

 

Saturday market 

Bartholomew Square, Dukes 
Street, Market Street 

 

Hot chestnut and other traditional 
Christmas trading activity 

Bartholomew Square, East Street, 
Dukes Street, Market Street 

 

Street artists who produce portraits 
on the street 

George Street Hove, Bartholomew 
Square, Black Lion Street, New 
Road and Jubilee Street 

 

Occasional markets including 
ethnic, farmers and crafts etc. 

Zone B  

Area outside city centre  Mobile and static traders, both as 
regular occupation and community 
events and markets 

 

 

 

 

158



 

Item 15: APPENDIX 2 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982:  

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR STREET TRADING 
 

A. The consent may not be transferred and the Trader shall not permit any person to 
exercise the consent in his/her absence unless that person is employed by the consent 
holder and is at least seventeen years of age.   The consent holder shall not employ 
more than two persons at any one time to exercise the consent in the absence of the 
holder and any contravention of the standard conditions forming part of the consent by 
these persons shall be deemed to have been committed by the consent holder. 

 
B. The Trader shall not stand or use any stall, barrow or basket or other receptacle or any 

mobile stall or vehicle in any street except such as are specified in the consent.  Such 
stall, barrow etc. shall be removed from the specified site at the end of each trading 
day for storage at a location that is not on the public highway.   

 
C. The Trader shall not sell, expose or offer for sale any articles on days or at times other 

than those specified in the consent. 
 

D. The Trader shall not place, store or sell, expose or offer for sale any article outside 
the trading area marked out at the specified site (with the exception of Upper 
Gardner Street). 

 
E. The Trader shall at all times whilst trading provide a suitable receptacle for rubbish 

and litter and remove the rubbish and litter from the site at the end of each days 
trading.  Such rubbish and litter is not to be placed in municipal litter bins.  In Upper 
Gardner Street in lieu of this condition being complied with the Council will offer a 
refuse collection service upon payment of an appropriate fee. 

 
F. The Trader shall operate in a manner which causes no nuisance to the Council or 

to the general public. 
 

G. The Trader shall at all times whilst trading wear in a prominent position an identity 
badge provided by the Council.  In addition, for town centre street trading 
consents, the consent, or copy thereof, shall be displayed on the stall/mobile 
vehicle. 

 
H. The Trader shall be insured against any claim in respect of third party liability whilst 

trading under a consent.  No consent will be issued until a current policy has been 
produced to the Director of Environmental Services and the Trader shall produce 
evidence of such insurance to an authorised officer of the Council within seven 
days of the officer's request. 

 
I. Where there is a potential ignition source present including cooking facilities, a 2kg 

dry powder extinguisher which complies with the standards set out in BS 5423:  
1987 must be provided. 

 
J. Where hot fat cooking facilities are provided a fire blanket should be provided and 

so positioned as to allow the blanket to be withdrawn easily and quickly. 

159



 

Item 15: APPENDIX 3 

 
Clarification 
 
 
Times of trading: 
 
Upper Gardner Street  7am – 5pm 
City Centre  8 am – 6pm 
Zone B   No times set 
 

• A waiting list will be administered where sites or types of street trading are 
oversubscribed.   

 

• There will be no transfer of consents, no joint consents, preference will be given 
to local residents and consents will be issued not exceeding 12 months. 

 

• Consent holders shall be fit and proper, the activity will cause no danger, 
obstruction, nuisance or annoyance to people in the vicinity and will leave 2m 
unobstructed footway. 

 

• Preference will be given to existing traders at existing sites at renewal. 
 

• Traders will ensure suitable refuse storage and remove refuse at the end of 
trading (with the exception of Upper Gardner Street). 

 

• Traders will wear identity badges issued by the Council. 
 

• Traders will take reasonable fire safety measures. 
 

• Consent will only be issued following receipt of appropriate fee.  Fees shall be 
payable quarterly. 

 

• If the site is temporarily unavailable, it will be relocated to a nearby site or 
suspended and a proportion of the fee remitted. 

 
 

160



 

 
 

161



 

 

 

162



 

 

 

 

163



 

 

 

164



 

 

 

165



 

 

 

166



 

 

 

167



 

 

 

 

168



 

 

 
 
 

169



 

 

From: Sue Middleton  

Sent: 06 October 2009 08:47 

To: 'jeancranford@brighton-hove.gov.uk' 

Subject: Food/Ice Cream Vans at the gates of Dorothy 

Stringer School 

 

Dear Jean 

 

 

I have been sent a copy of the email sent to you by PC 

Dave Walker. I am sorry Dave did not explain your role 

within the council but I am hoping you can help us. For a 

long time we have tried to find away of getting rid of 

the food van that parks in Stringer Way, at our back 

gate. I have listed below some of the issues : 

 

The van is at the back gate lunch and after school 

 

1.The van sells - sweets (full of sugar), cans of fizzy 

drinks ( full of sugar), hot dogs with tomato sauce, 

crisps.  

 

We do not sell any of these food items and with the 

canteen staff have continued to try and sell  healthy 

options. Also we are governed by the Governments ruling 

on school dinners etc. Whereas the van driver can sell 

sugar and e numbers etc. 

 

We also do not sell cans as if dropped on the field and 

cut up by the grass cutters, bits of mental are left in 

the grass and can cause injury. 

 

The van driver does, usually pick up near the van but 

that does not solve the problem of the fields. 

 

Pupils don't always understand when we say we don't sell 

cans are allow them in school as the van is right at our 

back gate. 

 

2. Parking - The van parks in a lay by where I have put 

no parking to help keep the back gate free for pupil 

crossing and to allow space for cars, larger vehicles to 

get the turn into the back entrance (deliveries, mini bus 

etc). He ignores this. Children hanging about the van, 

not looking etc is not a good idea in this area. Stringer 

Way is a road used by Stringer, the play group, swimming 

pool, cottages and gardens hut etc.      

 

Stringer Way is also a road that no one seems to take 

responsibility for ? But someone must ? 

 

3. Trouble at the van - pupils are allowed to cross 

Stringer Way and sit at the picnic tables, visit the 

170



 

 

school's butterfly haven or play football on the schools 

football pitch situated above the butterfly haven. 

 

If we "police" the van we are seen is agreeing with him 

being there. If we don't they is often trouble - either 

pushing in the queue, throwing cans at the driver. 

Occasionally when for some reason he has fallen out if 

pupils (usually senior boys) there is more trouble. We 

deal with the situation and now regularly have senior 

staff in the area.  

 

When he is not there, there is no trouble in this area.  

 

We also now have a van at the front gate selling ice 

creams at lunch and break. 

 

The van seems to have a " dirty" looking sink in the 

front. Is this enough ? Are the drivers CRB checked ? 

We feel that the schools on the Surrenden campus should 

be helped. A zone should be put around the campus and in 

fact all schools, banning vans from that area. 

 

We really do need your help and support. 

I look forward to hearing from you 

 

 

Sue Middleton 

Healthy Schools Co-ordinator and Assistant Head Teacher 

Tel : 852302 

 

  

 

 
 

171



172



LICENSING COMMITTEE 

(NON LICENSING ACT 
2003 FUNCTIONS) 

Agenda Item 16 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

  

Subject: Policing and Crime Bill – Sex Establishment 
Consultation 

Date of Meeting: 26 November 2009 

Report of: Director of Environment 

Contact Officer: Name:  Tim Nichols Tel: 29-2163      

 E-mail: tim.nichols@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 
1.1 On 5 February 2009, the committee were apprised of the Policing and Crime Bill 

relating to sex establishments including lap dancing clubs.  The Home Office is 
conducting a consultation on the draft proposals for transitional arrangements 
and responses must be received by the x date. 

 
1.2 The minutes of that discussion are appended (appendix A).   
 
1.3 The Home Office is consulting on transitional arrangements (appendix B). 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

  
2.1 That the committee responds to the questions in the consultation as follows: 

 
2.2 24. The new regime should apply to existing operators but the licensing authority 

is concerned that existing operators may have an expectation that their 
current business should not be criminalised. 

 
31. The timetable is appropriate. 
 
33. The proposed approach for existing operators is acceptable. 
 
39. Any conditions related to relevant entertainment should be passed to the 

new Sex Encounter Establishment licence. 
 
44. Current sex encounter provision created by local London legislation is 

inapplicable outside London. 
 
47. LLA does not apply in the city. 
 
50. There are no objections to the commencement dates. 

173



 
53. The impact assessment appears reasonable. 
 

2.3 That regulation of sex encounter establishments would continue to be 
supported by Licensing Committee.  

 
2.4 That Licensing Panels continue to be guided by the statement of licensing 

policy including the imposition of conditions applicable to lap dancing clubs 
in determining applications until overtaken by the Policing & Licensing Bill.  

 
2.5 That the Council would be recommended to adopt provisions relating to sex 

encounter venues, if the Policing and Crime Bill is enacted.  
 

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

  
3.1 The concerns raised by members in committee included: 

 

• Councillors welcomed the provisions of the new bill and it was a 
success for local authorities who were concerned on the proliferation of 
this type of establishment, which could not be controlled by the 
Licensing Act 2003. There was concern over the fact that it was not 
mandatory and that it did not cover venues such as pubs, where events 
may be organised intermittently or on a casual basis.  

 

• Conversely, it was accepted that there should be provision for adult 
entertainment for the continued economic health of the city and 
controlling the number and location of these establishments could 
detrimentally affect the tourist trade.  

 

• Greater control of establishments was generally welcomed but existing 
ones were already causing problems in city centre ward. Hen and stag 
party activities were unfortunately likely to be exempt from the 
provisions.  

 
 Initial concerns over the proliferation of sex establishments in the city had not 

been borne out over recent years, and as there was no longer a demand for 
Private Members Bill, the costs for investigation and implementation would be 
reduced.   

 
3.2 The documentation from the Minister for Crime Protection is appended (appendix 

2). 
 
3.3 The European Services Directive aims to break down barriers for cross 

border trade in services. It will make it easier for service providers, 
particularly small and medium sized enterprises, to set up or offer their 
services anywhere in the EEA. 

 
The Services Directive aims to ensure that any licence applications, 
authorisations or administrative procedures that must be followed in order to 

174



establish a business in a relevant service sector are transparent and keep 
any burden on the business to a minimum.  
 
This basic concept also applies to the fees charged by local councils for 
approving licence applications, authorisations or other administrative 
processes. 

 
4. CONSULTATION: 
 
4.1  The Council’s legal and finance officers have been consulted. 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
5.1 Financial Implications: 
  
 

The regulatory impact assessment is appended.  
 
Licensing fees set at a level that officers reasonably expect will cover the cost of 
service provision.  This will include administration and enforcement of the regime.  
The current sex establishment licensing fee is to be set by report elsewhere on 
agenda.  Finance officers creating a trading account for our current sex shops 
consider that it is: a) justified, b) set too high and should remain static until 
expenditure meets income.  The new sex encounter establishment licence would 
be part of the same regime as sex shops and it is recommended that the same 
fee is charged for sex shops and sex encounter establishments.  There are 
currently 4 sex shops licensed by the council and there are 3 licensed premises 
that provide relevant entertainment. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw Date: 16.10.09 
 
5.2 Legal Implications: 
  
 European Convention on Human Rights requires peaceful enjoyment of one's 

possessions and that includes licences etc and retrospective criminalization of 
acts, may have the same effect as protecting/grandfathering existing operators. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell  Date: 04.11.09 
 
5.3 Equalities Implications: 
  
 New powers would allow communities more influence on location of lap dancing 

clubs. 
 
5.4 Sustainability Implications: 
  
 None. 

175



5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  
 New powers would give local authorities scope to reject applications for lap 

dancing clubs. 
 
5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
  
 None. 
 
5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
 Effectiveness of regulation will need monitoring.  Proliferation of lap dancing 

clubs can affect the character of an area and concern local people.
 

176



 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
A. Minutes from Licensing Committee 5th February 2009. 
B. Home Office consultation document. 
 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms: 
 
1. None. 
 
 
Background Documents: 
 
1. None. 

 
 

177



Item 16: APPENDIX A 

 

EXTRACT MINUTES FROM THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
(NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) HELD ON 5 FEBRUARY 2009 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE (NON LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 

 

3.00PM 5 FEBRUARY 2009 

 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 

 

MINUTES 

 

Present: Councillors C Theobald (Chairman), Lepper (Deputy Chairman), Mrs Cobb, Fallon-
Khan, Fryer, Hamilton, Hyde, Kitcat, Marsh, Older, Pidgeon, Simson, Watkins and West 

 

Apologies: Councillors Harmer-Strange and Young 

 

PART ONE 

 

 

24. POLICING AND CRIME BILL 

 

24.1 The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing presented a report on the 
Policing and Crime Bill as it related to the Licensing Committee (Non Licensing 
Act 2003 Functions) and stated that since the Constitution had changed, work 
on examining this bill would now be conducted by the Licensing Committee.  

 

24.2 Councillor Lepper welcomed the provisions of the new bill and stated that it 
was a success for Local Authorities who were concerned about the 
proliferation of this type of establishment, which could not be controlled by the 
Licensing Act 2003. She noted concern over the fact that it was not mandatory 
however, and that it did not cover venues such as pubs, where events may be 
organised intermittently or on a casual basis. Councillor Lepper recognised 
that such venues would have to apply for, or already have provision for, 
dancing on their licence however. 

 

178



24.3 Councillor Cobb felt cautious about adopting provisions to control this type of 
establishment and noted that Westminster City Council was not intending to 
adopt the bill. She noted that Brighton and Hove already had a nudist beach 
and was a popular resort for hen and stag parties. She felt that provision for 
adult entertainment was necessary for the continued economic health of the 
city and believed that controlling the number and location of these 
establishments could detrimentally affect the tourist trade. 

 

24.4 Councillor Kitcat welcomed greater control of these establishments and noted 
that existing ones were already causing problems in his ward. He recognised 
the effects of the provisions in terms of the tourist trade, but noted that hen 
and stag party activities were exempt from the provisions. He asked whether a 
new working group would be formed to look into this issue further, and asked 
whether the funding that had been ring fenced to investigate the Private 
Members’ Bill would be used for the work on the Public Bill. 

 

24.5 The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing stated that the Licensing 
Committee would take on the work of the cross-party working group and would 
refer any recommendations as a result of that work to Council for adoption. 

 

The funding that was originally set aside for investigation and implementation 
of a Private Members Bill was not in the control of the Head of Environmental 
Health and Licensing and he stated that as the Bill was now public, any costs 
incurred could be absorbed into the relevant current budget of the Committee 
or the department. 

 

24.6 Councillor Hyde expressed concern over the Public Bill and felt that it was 
incomplete. The Head of Environmental Health and Licensing stated that it 
was too early to tell what provisions the final act would contain and noted it 
would be prudent to stay neutral for the time being. He noted that the 
department received very few complaints about existing sex establishments in 
the city and their licences could be reviewed in the usual way if they were 
creating problems for a local area. 

 

24.7 Councillor Simson stated that initial concerns over the proliferation of sex 
establishments in the city had not been borne out over recent years, and as 
the Bill was no longer a Private Members Bill the costs for investigation and 
implementation would be reduced. She felt that it was prudent therefore to use 
the original funding elsewhere. 

 

24.8 RESOLVED – that the Licensing Committee (Non Licensing Act 2003 
Functions) agrees the recommendations in the report. 

179



 

Item 16: APPENDIX B 

 

 
 

 

 Regulation of Lap Dancing Clubs  
 

 

 

Consultation on Transitional Arrangements 

 

180



 

Content  
 
Ministerial Forward  
 
Consultation Summary  
 
Introduction  
 
Section One – Background  
Policy Background  
The Policing and Crime Bill and the Local Government  
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982  
 
Section Two – Proposals for Regulations  
How will the 1982 Act apply to existing operators?  
Transitional Period  
New Operators  
Outstanding Applications  
Existing Conditions  
What does this mean for local people?  
Sex Encounter Establishments  
Hostess Bars  
Section 2 of the London Local Authorities Act 2004  
Timescales - Next Steps  
 
Impact Assessment  
 
Consultation  
Confidentiality & Disclaimer  
Complaints  
Government’s Code of Practice on Consultation  

181



 

Ministerial Forward  
 
 
In September 2008, the previous Home Secretary announced her intention to 
bring forward important reforms to empower communities in England and Wales 
by giving them a greater say about the location and number of lap dancing clubs 
and similar establishments in their local areas. To achieve this we have 
introduced measures in the Policing and Crime Bill to allow local authorities to 
regulate lap dancing clubs as sex establishments under Schedule 3 to the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 198 These important reforms will 
give local authorities the powers they have called for to allow them to respond 
more effectively to the views of local people, who have become increasingly 
concerned about the number of lap dancing clubs being established in their 
communities.  
 
The measures are still being scrutinised by Parliament, but as we prepare for the 
Bill passing into law, we need to consider what form the transitional 
arrangements will take to ensure we move smoothly from the current regime to 
the new one. These arrangements will be important as they will help ensure that 
local authorities, businesses, and, of course, the communities who will be 
affected by the new reforms will have time to prepare and adjust. We recognise 
the impact on business but have always been clear that this needs to be 
balanced against ensuring local people have sufficient voice in their 
communities. We hope that the proposals set out in this consultation document 
strike this balance and will help those that need to take appropriate steps to 
adapt to the new licensing regime.  
 
This, therefore, is an important consultation. It gives interested parties an 
opportunity to tell us how they will be affected by our proposals and, if necessary, 
allow us to take into account their concerns before bringing forward the 
transitional arrangements in secondary legislation.  
 
We hope you will take the opportunity to give us your views.  
 
 
 
 
ALAN CAMPBELL  
MINISTER FOR CRIME REDUCTION  

182



Consultation Summary  
Scope of the consultation  
 

Topic of this  consultation:  
 

Proposals for transitional arrangements 
for the provisions in the Policing and 
Crime Bill relating to the regulation of 
lap dancing clubs and similar venues.  

Scope of this consultation:  
 

This consultation seeks views on 
proposals relating to transitional 
arrangements. This is not a 
consultation on the decision to 
reclassify lap dancing clubs as sex 
establishments.  

Geographical scope:  England and Wales  

Impact assessment  
(IA):  

An updated impact assessment is 
included with this consultation.  

 
Basic Information  
 

To:  
 

• Local Authorities  

• Existing operators  

• New operators  

• Licensing practitioners  

• Local residents  

• Campaign Groups  

• Local Businesses  
Police  

Duration: 21th September to 14th December  

Enquiries and Responses  
 

Thomas Cottam  
4th Floor, Peel Building  
2 Marsham Street  
London  
SW1P 4DF  
SEVconsultation@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk 

Additional ways to become involved:  
 

As this consultation concerns a relatively 
small number of venues and deals with 
issues that are technical in nature, it will 
primarily be a written exercise.  

After the consultation:  
 

A summary of responses will be placed 
on the Home Office website.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

183



Background  
 

Getting to this stage:  
 

In Summer 2008 the Department of 
Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) held 
a consultation with local authorities 
regarding the regulation of lap dancing 
clubs. A majority of respondents felt 
that additional powers specific to lap 
dancing clubs were necessary.  
 
As part of the Policing and Crime Bill 
introduced in Parliament on the 19 
December 2008, the Government 
included provisions to reclassify lap 
dancing clubs and similar 
establishment as sex establishments 
under Schedule 3 to the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982.  
 

Previous engagement:  
 

In addition to the DCMS consultation 
with local authorities, the Home Office 
sent a letter in September 2008 to 
selected stakeholders seeking views 
on the proposal to bring lap dancing 
clubs under the regulation of the 1982 
Act. Over the last year Home Office 
officials also met with a number of 
interested groups and presented at 
events for licensing practitioners.  
 

 

184



Introduction  
 
1. This paper sets out the Government’s proposals for the implementation of the 
amendments to Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1982 (‘the 1982 Act’) made by the Policing and Crime Bill1.  
 
2. It explains the background to the policy and the proposed transitional 
arrangements that will be set out in secondary legislation, once the Bill has 
received Royal Assent.  
 
3. The proposals set out in Section Two relate to the implementation of clause 26 
of the Policing and Crime Bill which extends to England and Wales only.  
 
4. In summary the Government is proposing that:  
 

• Any operator – new or existing - who wishes to provide ‘relevant 
entertainment’ at the end of the transitional period will be required to apply 
for a sex establishment licence in the manner set out in Schedule 3 to the 
1982 Act.  

• Existing operators will be allowed to continue to provide ‘relevant 
entertainment’ under their existing permission without interruption for the 
duration of the transitional period or until their application for a sex 
establishment licence has been determined, whichever is the later.  

• The transitional period will start on the date Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act 
comes into force in that area (the 1st appointed date). It will last for 12 
months.  

• For 6 months following the 1st appointed date, applicants will be able to 
submit applications all of which will be considered together by the local 
authority.  

• Applications received after the first 6 months (the 2nd appointed date) will 
be considered after applications received before the 2nd appointed date 
have been determined  

• Licences granted for sex encounter venues will not take effect until the 
conclusion of the transitional period (the 3rd appointed date)  

• Where a London local authority has previously adopted the sex encounter 
establishment category introduced by the London Local Authorities 
(General Powers) Act 1986, this category will be replaced by the new sex 
encounter venue category upon the adoption of the provisions introduced 
by the Policing and Crime Bill by the local authority.  

 

5. We welcome your views on all the proposals and are particularly interested to 
hear your views on the specific questions asked throughout this consultation 
document. This is not a consultation on the Government’s decision to reclassify 
lap dancing clubs and similar venues as sex establishments.  
 
_____________________________________________________ 
1 http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2008-09/policingandcrime.html  

185



6. Please send your comments to:  
Thomas Cottam  
4th Floor, Peel Building  
2 Marsham Street  
London SW1P 4DF  
or  
SEVconsultation@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk  
 

7. You should also contact the consultation team should you require a copy of 
this consultation paper in any other format, e.g. Braille, Large Font, or Audio.  
 
8. This document is available on the Home Office website.  
 

Section One – Background  
9. This section outlines the background to the measures introduced by the 
Policing and Crime Bill and explains what the policy seeks to achieve.  
 
Policy Background  
10. The increase in the number of lap dancing clubs in recent years has become 
an issue of concern for many local communities. Estimates suggest that the 
number of venues has doubled since 2004 and there are now close to 300 
throughout the United Kingdom.2 Other estimates put the figure closer to 150.3 
Most lap dancing clubs are regulated under the Licensing Act 2003 (‘the 2003 
Act’), under which they hold a premises licence/club premises certificate to 
provide ‘regulated entertainment’. Under the 2003 Act, the objections of local 
people and businesses must be based on the four licensing objectives, namely: 
the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; prevention of public nuisance 
and the protection of children from harm. As a result, licensing authorities cannot 
consider the objections of local people and businesses that are based on matters 
outside the scope of these four objectives, such as whether a lap dancing clubs 
is appropriate given the character of an area.  
 
11. In June 2008 Gerry Sutcliffe, the Parliamentary Under Secretary of State at 
the Department of the Culture, Media and Sport, wrote to the chief executives of 
local authorities to clarify how they viewed the powers available to them under 
the 2003 Act and to seek their views on whether these, and other controls, were 
sufficient to address the concerns of local people and businesses. The majority 
of those who responded felt that additional legislation should be introduced to 
provide controls that are specific to lap dancing clubs and similar premises and 
suggested that Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act should be used for this purpose4. This 
approach was also supported by a wide range of stakeholders including the 
Local Government Association, the National Organisation of Residents 
Associations and the campaign groups Object and the Fawcett Society.  
 
2
 A Growing Tide, Object, April 2008:  

http://www.object.org.uk/files/A%20Growing%20Tide%20Report%202008.pdf 
3
 Figure provided by the Lap Dancing Association  

186



12. Alternative approaches that sought to make changes to the 2003 Act and 
utilise existing planning legislation were proposed by industry representatives 
who opposed the use of the 1982 Act. However, it was felt that such changes, 
especially those making use of planning legislation, would be overly complex and 
would not provide sufficient additional powers called for by many local authorities 
to regulate lap dancing clubs.  
 
13. Therefore the Government announced on the 2 December 2008 that they 
would introduce legislation to reclassify lap dancing clubs and other similar 
venues as ‘sex establishments’ under the 1982 Act5.  These provisions were 
included in the Policing and Crime Bill, which was introduced in Parliament on 
19th December 2008.  
 
The Policing and Crime Bill and the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982  
 
14. Clause 26 of the Policing and Crime Bill introduces a new category of sex 
establishment under Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act called a ‘sex encounter venue’. 
This new category covers venues that provide ‘relevant entertainment’. Relevant 
entertainment is defined as any live performance or display of nudity “which is of 
such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must be reasonably assumed to be 
provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member 
of the audience (whether by verbal or other means)”. Such venues will require a 
sex establishment licence. However, there is an exemption for premises which 
provide such entertainment infrequently (see new paragraph 2A(3)(b) to be 
inserted into Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act) and, even if premises do qualify as a 
sex encounter venue, the local authority still has the discretion to waive the 
requirement for a licence.  
 
15. In summary Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act will, in particular: .  

• allow local people to oppose an application for a sex establishment licence 
if they have legitimate concerns that a lap dancing club would be 
inappropriate given the character of an area because for example, if the 
area was primarily a residential area.  

• require licences to be renewed at least yearly, at which point local people 
will have the opportunity to raise objections with their local authority.  

• allow a local authority to reject a licence application if they believe that to 
grant a licence for a lap dancing club would be inappropriate given the 
character of a particular area.  

• allow a local authority to set a limit on the number of sex encounter 
venues that they think is appropriate for a particular area.  

 
 
4
http://www.culture.gov.uk/reference_library/foi_requests/5500.aspx  

5
 Announcement made in Fair Rules for Strong Communities, December 2008:  

http://www.number10.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/fair-rules-for-strong-communities.pdf 

187



• allow a local authority to impose a wider range of conditions on the 
licences of lap dancing clubs than they are currently able to under the 
2003 Act.  

 
Section Two – Proposals for Regulations  
 
16. To implement the measures introduced by Clause 26 of the Policing and 
Crime Bill there will need to be a transitional period to allow existing lap dancing 
clubs and other venues falling within the definition of a sex encounter venue time 
to comply with the new legislation. The transitional arrangements and the 
duration of the transitional period will be specified in secondary legislation made 
by the Secretary of State in England and Welsh Ministers in Wales.  
 
17. This section sets out the proposals for these transitional arrangements and 
forms the main part of this consultation. We would welcome comments on this 
section and in particular your comments on those areas where specific questions 
have been raised. How will the 1982 Act apply to existing operators?  
 
18. Representations have been made to the Government by industry 
representatives to exclude existing operators, who have explicit permission in 
their existing licences to provide ‘relevant entertainment’, from the new regime or 
at least to give them preferential treatment when their sex establishment licences 
fall to be determined for the first time. Such provisions, often referred to as 
‘grandfather rights’, were made when the 2003 Act and the Gambling Act 2005 
were introduced.  
 
19. After careful consideration, it is proposed that similar provisions should not be 
made for the purposes of the Policing and Crime Bill and that existing lap 
dancing clubs who wish to continue to provide ‘relevant entertainment’ should be 
required to apply for a new sex establishment licence in the manner set out in 
Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act, subject to the transitional arrangements set out 
below.  
 
20. Although the local authority will need to consider any rights an existing 
licence holder may have under Article 1, Protocol 1 of the European Convention 
on Human Rights when deciding an application, the Government is not proposing 
to give existing licence holders preferential treatment or indeed, exclude them 
from the provisions on the face of the Bill.  
 
21. It is acknowledged that as a result of this approach, some existing 
businesses may have to stop providing ‘relevant entertainment’ or, in a small 
number of cases, close. While we understand the concerns that have been 
expressed by the industry, we believe that to automatically grant existing lap 
dancing clubs a sex establishment licence would be contrary to the intent behind 
these reforms, which is to give local people greater say over the number and 
location of lap dancing clubs in their area.  

188



22. We are aware that in recent years there have been instances where lap 
dancing clubs have been granted licences despite significant local opposition. In 
many of these cases licensing authorities were unable to consider local 
opposition that fell outside the scope of the four licensing objectives.6 In some 
cases, the result has been that lap dancing clubs have opened, and continue to 
operate, against the wishes of local people. For this reason, the Government 
believes that local communities should be given the opportunity to have their say 
over how or whether existing venues operate in the future.  
 
23. We are mindful of the UK’s obligations under EU law. Paragraphs 28 and 29 
to Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act set out the provisions for dealing with existing sex 
shops and sex cinemas when these provisions were first commenced. Paragraph 
29(4) provided that when considering several applications for sex establishment 
licences, local authorities would have to give preference to existing operators. A 
similar approach was considered with regards to sex encounter venues. 
However, it was concluded that such provisions would now be unlikely to survive 
a legal challenge in respect of Article 43 EC or the Services Directive.  
 
24. What are your views on the proposal that the new regime should apply 
to existing operators and that the transitional provisions should not 
provide for them to be given preferential treatment when their application 
for a sex establishment licence comes to be determined?  
 
Transitional Period  
 
25. The transitional period is the time that existing operators will be given to 
comply with the new legislation.  
 
26. The transitional period will commence on the date the provisions in the 
Policing and Crime Bill come into force in the particular local authority area (‘the 
1st appointed date’). The Secretary of State then intends to specify a date 6 
months after the 1st appointed date which will be known as the ‘2nd appointed 
date’. The Government is proposing that between the 1st and 2nd appointed 
dates applicants, who can be either existing operators or new applicants, will be 
able to submit applications to be considered by the local authority. At the end of 
this period, local authorities will consider all applications received during this 
period and will not grant any application until they have done so.  
 
27. This approach would ensure that where local authorities have decided to set 
a limit on the number of premises that they consider appropriate for a particular 
locality, all applications submitted during this period will be considered before the 
local authority decides which applicants should be been granted a licence. 
Applications received after the 2nd appointed date will be considered individually 
by local authorities.  
 
6
A Growing Tide, Object, December 2008:  

http://www.object.org.uk/files/A%20Growing%20Tide%20Update%20Dec%202008.pdf  

189



28. On the 3rd appointed date, which it is proposed will be 6 months after the 2nd 
appointed date all venues in that local authority area, unless awaiting the 
determination of an outstanding application, will have to be compliant with the 
new legislation.  
 
29. The transitional period is the period between the 1st and 3rd appointed dates 
and is therefore currently intended to last for 12 months.  
 
30. Under these proposals existing venues would be able to continue to provide 
‘relevant entertainment’ under their existing premises licence or club certificate 
until the end of the transitional period, or until any application for a sex 
establishment licence submitted during the transitional period has been 
determined, whichever is the later. This will apply to all existing operators, 
irrespective of whether or not an application for sex establishment licence is 
submitted or whether or not such an application, if submitted, is granted.  
 
31. What are your views on the proposed time periods between the 1st, 2nd 
and 3rd appointed dates and do you believe that a transitional period of 12 
months in total is appropriate?  
 
32. For the purposes of these transitional arrangements, it is proposed that an 
‘existing operator’ is defined as a person operating any premises that on the 1st 
appointed day is authorised under an existing premises licence or club premises 
certificate, either explicitly or implicitly to provide entertainment that would be 
defined as ‘relevant entertainment’ under Clause 26 of the Policing and Crime 
Bill. Where licence holders are uncertain as to whether or not they are able to 
provide ‘relevant entertainment’ under their existing premises licence or club 
certificate they should contact the relevant local authority for guidance.  
 
33. Do you agree with the proposed approach for identifying existing 
operators?  
 
34. Annex 1 shows how the transitional arrangements for existing operators 
would work under these proposals.  
 
New Operators  
35. Where a premises without authorisation under an existing premises licence 
or club premises certificate, wishes to provide ‘relevant entertainment’ after the 
1st appointed date, it is proposed that they will be required to apply for a sex 
establishment licence following the process set out in Schedule 3 to the 1982 
Act, as amended by the Policing and Crime Bill. Under these proposals new 
operators will not be able to provide ‘relevant entertainment’ unless and until a 
sex establishment licence has been granted. Under these proposals new 
applications received before the 2nd appointed day would be considered at the 
same time as those applications from existing operators that are received by this 
date.  

190



Outstanding Applications  
36. It is proposed that premises which have made an application before the 1st 
appointed date under the 2003 Act for a premises licence or club premises 
certificate authorising the provision of relevant entertainment is treated as a new 
operator for the purpose of these arrangements where the application remains 
outstanding after the 1st appointed date. They will therefore have to submit an 
application for a sex establishment licence under Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act.  
 
Existing Conditions  
37. Where existing operators have sought explicit permission, when applying for 
a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 2003 Act to provide 
‘relevant entertainment’ as defined in clause 26 of the Policing and Crime Bill, it 
is likely that they will be subject to licence conditions that apply directly to the 
provision of that entertainment. For example, where a lap dancing club has 
explicit permission to provide nude entertainment, they may have licence 
conditions that prohibit physical contact between performers and customers.  
38. It is proposed that where such licence conditions are present on either an 
existing premises licence or clubs premises certificate, these conditions will be 
read as though they have been deleted from the premises licence or club 
premises certificate from the 3rd appointed day onwards. Where existing lap 
dancing clubs and similar venues are granted sex establishment licences for the 
provision of relevant entertainment, any conditions relating to the provision of that 
entertainment will be regulated by that licence alone.  
 
39. What are your views on the proposal for dealing with conditions on 
existing premises licences/clubs premises certificates that relate 
specifically to the provision ‘relevant entertainment’?  
 

What does this mean for local people?  
40. When an application is made to the local authority for a sex establishment 
licence, whether during the transitional period or after it, local people will have 
the opportunity to make representations to the local authority. It is important to 
note that these representations will be expected to address the provision of 
relevant entertainment and not activities that will continue to be authorised under 
the 2003 Act, such as the provision of alcohol and other forms of regulated 
entertainment.  
 
Sex Encounter Establishments  
41. The 1982 Act contains a category of sex establishment called a ‘sex 
encounter establishment’, which was introduced by the Greater London Council 
(General Powers) Act 1986. This category only applies in London where the 
relevant local authority has adopted the provisions. It only covers those venues 
that offer sexually explicit entertainment (such as peep shows) but are not 
licensed under the 2003 Act.  
 
42. The Government is proposing that the new category of sex encounter venue 
will replace the existing sex encounter establishment category upon a London 

191



Borough’s adoption of the new provisions. If a London Borough, that has 
previously adopted Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act as amended by the Greater 
London Council (General Powers) Act 1986, decides not to adopt Schedule 3 to 
the 1982 Act as amended by the Policing and Crime Bill, the existing sex 
encounter establishment regime will remain in force.  
 
43. Where a London Borough decides to adopt Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act as 
amended by the Policing and Crime Bill, secondary legislation will set out that 
where a sex encounter establishment licence has been previously granted it will 
be treated as though it were granted under the new sex encounter venue regime, 
retaining any conditions previously  
granted.  
 
44. What are your views on the proposals relating to the existing sex 
encounter establishment category? Also are you aware of any type of 
venue that currently requires a licence for a sex encounter establishment 
that would not require a licence for a sex encounter venue as defined in 
Clause 26 of the Policing and Crime Bill? Hostess Bars  
 
45. Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act also includes a category of sex establishment 
called ‘hostess bar’, which was introduced by the London Local Authorities Act 
2007 and therefore does not apply outside of London. We do not intend to make 
any changes to the hostess bar provisions. Section 2 of the London Local 
Authorities Act 2004  
 
46. Section 22 of the London Local Authorities Act 2004 (as amended by section 
72 of the London Local Authorities Act 2007), applies only in London and 
appears to be of uncertain extent. On one interpretation it could be seen as 
prohibiting anyone from soliciting people to attend a sex establishment if the 
impression is given that the activities are, in fact, licensed under the 2003 Act. 
Another interpretation is that it creates that offence and an offence of soliciting 
people to attend a sex establishment.  
 
47. Do you believe that section 22 of the London Local Authorities Act 2004 
should be amended in light of the amendments being made in the Policing 
and Crime Bill?  
 
Timescales – Next Steps  
48. The consultation closes on the 14th December 2009. Once responses have 
been reviewed a summary of the responses will be placed on the Home Office 
website. Subject to the Policing and Crime Bill receiving Royal Assent, the 
provisions on lap dancing are expected to be commenced in April 2010. 
However, the provisions will only take effect in any given area once the relevant 
local authority has passed a resolution to adopt them and appoints a day for the 
provisions to come in force in that area.  
 

192



49. Prior to the commencement of the provisions, the Home Office will write to 
every local authority in England and Wales to ensure that they are aware of when 
the provisions come into force and what it will mean for them. The Home Office 
will also issue a press release and information will be made available in advance 
on the Home Office website (www.homeoffice.gov.uk) about the commencement 
date.  
 
50. What are your views on the proposal to commence these provisions in 
April 2010?  
 
Impact Assessment  
51. As part of this consultation we have revised the Impact Assessment (IA) that 
was published when the Policing and Crime Bill was introduced in Parliament on 
the 18 December 2008.  
 
52. The revised IA attempts to estimate the potential cost to industry of these 
proposals. Due to the lack of information relating specifically to the sector this 
legislation will impact upon, the estimates in the IA should only be seen as 
indicative.  
 
53. Do you agree that the suggested costs and benefits set out in the 
Impact Assessment are a reasonable estimate of the potential costs and 
benefits? If not, can you provide evidence of what any likely costs and 
benefits should be?  
 
Consultation  
Confidentiality & Disclaimer  
54. The information you send us may be passed to colleagues within the Home 
Office, the Government or related agencies.  
 
55. Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal 
information, may be subject to publication or disclosure in accordance with the 
access to information regimes (these are primarily the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 [FOIA], the Data Protection Act 1998 [DPA] and the Environmental 
Information Regulations 2004).  
 
56. If you want other information that you provide to be treated as confidential, 
please be aware that, under the FOIA, there is a statutory Code of Practice with 
which public authorities must comply and which deals, amongst other things, with 
obligations of confidence.  
 
57. In view of this it would be helpful if you could explain to us why you regard 
the information you have provided as confidential. If we receive a request for 
disclosure of the information we will take full account of your explanation, but we 
cannot give an assurance that confidentiality can be maintained in all 

193



circumstances. An automatic confidentiality disclaimer generated by your IT 
system will not, of itself, be regarded as binding on the Department.  
 
58. The Department will process your personal data in accordance with the DPA 
and in the majority of circumstances this will mean that your personal data will 
not be disclosed to third parties.  
 
Complaints  
59. If you have a complaint or comment about the Home Office’s approach to 
consultation, you should contact the Home Office Consultation Co-ordinator, 
Nigel Lawrence. Please DO NOT send your response to this consultation to Nigel 
Lawrence. The Co-ordinator works to promote best practice standards set by the 
Government’s Code of Practice, advises policy teams on how to conduct 
consultations and investigates complaints made against the Home Office. He 
does not process your response to this consultation.  
 
60. The Co-ordinator can be emailed at:  
Nigel.Lawrence@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk or alternatively write to him at:  
Nigel Lawrence, Consultation Co-ordinator  
Home Office  
Performance and Delivery Unit  
3rd Floor Seacole  
2 Marsham Street  
London  
SW1P 4DF  
 

Government’s Code of Practice on Consultation  
The Consultation follows the Government’s Code of Practice on Consultation  
– the criteria for which are set out below:  
Criterion 1 – When to consult – Formal consultation should take place at a stage 
when there is scope to influence the policy outcome.  
Criterion 2 – Duration of consultation exercises – Consultations should normally 
last for at least 12 weeks with consideration given to longer timescales where 
feasible and sensible.  
Criterion 3 – Clarity of scope and impact – Consultation documents should be 
clear about the consultation process, what is being proposed, the scope to 
influence and the expected costs and benefits of the proposals.  
Criterion 4 – Accessibility of consultation exercises – Consultation exercises 
should be designed to be accessible to, and clearly targeted at, those people the 
exercise is intended to reach.  
Criterion 5 – The burden of consultation – Keeping the burden of consultation to 
a minimum is essential if consultations are to be effective and if consultees’ buy-
in to the process is to be obtained.  
Criterion 6 – Responsiveness of consultation exercises – Consultation responses 
should be analysed carefully and clear feedback should be provided to 
participants following the consultation.  

194



Criterion 7 – Capacity to consult – Officials running consultations should seek 
guidance in how to run an effective consultation exercise and share what they 
have learned from the experience.  
The full Code of Practice on Consultation is available at:  
http://www.berr.gov.uk/whatwedo/bre/consultation-guidance/page44420.html 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
© Crown Copyright 2009  
Produced by the Home Office. September 2009.  
ISBN: 978-1-84726-985-0  

195



 
 

Annexe 1 
 

 
 
 

 

 

196



Annexe 2 

 
 
 

Summary: Intervention & Options 

Department /Agency:  
Home Office 

Title:  
Impact Assessment of new measures to regulate 
lap-dancing clubs 

Stage: Final  Version: 2.0  Date: 7 September 2009  

Related Publications:  

Available to view or download at:  
http://www.  
Contact for enquiries: Thomas Cottam   Telephone: 020 7035 0453  
 

What is the problem under consideration? Why is government intervention 
necessary?  
Lap dancing premises are currently regulated under the Licensing Act 2003. 
However, under this legislation the powers available to local authorities to control 
the establishment of lap-dancing premises or impose condition on their licences 
are limited. Following a Department for Culture, Media and Sports consultation 
with local authorities a majority of those that responded felt that their current 
powers to regulate lap-dancing clubs were insufficient to address the concerns of 
local people and wanted Government to intervene. On 21 September 2008 the 
Home Secretary announced the Government's intention to address this issue.  
 

What are the policy objectives and the intended effects?  
To give local communities a stronger say over the establishment and location of 
lap-dancing clubs in their area and local authorities more power to reject 
applications for lap-dancing clubs or impose conditions on licences. To bring the 
licensing of lap-dancing clubs in line with other sex establishments such as sex 
shops and sex cinemas. To recognise that local people have legitimate concerns 
about where lap-dancing clubs are located.  
 

What policy options have been considered? Please justify any preferred option.  
Option 1 - Do Nothing, maintain the status quo  
Option 2 - Reclassify lap-dancing clubs as 'Sex Establishments' under the 1982 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act  
Option 2 is the preferred option as the existing 'Sex Establishment' legislation 
adequately covers lap-dancing and similar activities and the provision within the 
1982 Act gives a stronger say to local communities and more powers to local 
authorities.  
 

When will the policy be reviewed to establish the actual costs and benefits and 
the achievement of the desired effects? 
We will review the implementation of this policy and its impact on local authorities 
and industry on an ongoing basis.  

 

197



Ministerial Sign-off For final proposal/implementation stage Impact 
Assessments:  
 
I have read the Impact Assessment and I am satisfied that (a) it represents 
a fair and reasonable view of the expected costs, benefits and impact of the 
policy, and (b) the benefits justify the costs.  
Signed by the responsible Minister:  
..............................................................................................Date:  

 

Summary: Analysis & Evidence  
 

Policy Option: 2  
 

Description: Reclassify lap-dancing 
clubs as 'Sex Establishments' under 
the 1982 Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act  
 

 

ANNUAL COSTS  
 
One-off (Transition)                  Yrs  
 
£ 0 - 4.3million                            1 
 
Average Annual Cost  
(excluding one-off)  
 
 
 

Description and scale of key monetised 
costs by ‘main affected groups’ 10 year 
costs, 300 premises, low - high closure  
Private sector admin burden: £6m - 
£5.1m  
Private sector licensing fee: £16.4 - 
£14.2m  
Private sector closure/loss of 'relevant 
entertainment': £0-£4.3m  
Public Sector Licensing Regime: £16.4 
-£14.2m  
 

£ 3.3million  Total Cost (PV)  £ 33.5m - 33.2m  

 
 
 
 
 
C
O
S
T
S 

Other key non-monetised costs by ‘main affected groups’ Cost to local 
authority of implementing the new measures. 

 

ANNUAL BENEFITS  
 
One-off                                       Yrs  
 
£ 0                             1  
 
Average Annual Benefit 
(excluding one-off)  
 

Description and scale of key monetised 
benefits by ‘main affected groups’ 
Transfer to Local Authorities from 
Licence Fee applications: £16.4 - 
£14.2million  
 

£ 1.6 - 1.4million  Total Benefit (PV)  £ 14.1m - 12.3m  

 
 
 
 
 
B
E
N
E
F
I
T
S 

Other key non-monetised benefits by ‘main affected groups’ Gives local 
communities more power to control the number and location of lap dancing 
clubs in their area. . 

198



Key Assumptions/Sensitivities/Risks: Costs assume that all local authorities who 
have lap dancing clubs in their area will adopt the new measures and all existing 
premises apply for sex establishment licences.  
 

 

Price Base  
Year 2009  
 

Time Period  
Years 10  
 

Net Benefit Range (NPV)  
£ -19.4m to -20.9m  
 

NET BENEFIT (NPV 

Best estimate)  

£ -20m  

 

What is the geographic coverage of the policy/option?  England & Wales  

On what date will the policy be implemented?  TBC 

Which organisation(s) will enforce the policy?  Local Authorities  

What is the total annual cost of enforcement for these 
organisations?  

£  

Does enforcement comply with Hampton principles?  Yes 

Will implementation go beyond minimum EU 
requirements?  

No 

What is the value of the proposed offsetting measure per 
year?  

£ N/A  
 

What is the value of changes in greenhouse gas 
emissions?  

£ N/A  
 

Will the proposal have a significant impact on 
competition?  

Yes/No  
 

Annual cost (£-£) per 
organisation  
(excluding one-off)  

Micro Small Medium  
 

Large  
 

Are any of these organisations 
exempt?  

No  
 

No  
 

N/A  
 

N/A  
 

 

Impact on Admin Burdens Baseline (2005 Prices)              (Increase - Decrease) 
Increase of    £ 0.5 -0.43m     Decrease of       £ 0m      Net Impact £ 0.5 - 0.43m  
 Key:  Annual costs and benefits: Constant Prices  (Net) Present Value  

199



 

Evidence Base (for summary sheets) 

 
Background  
 
What is meant by Lap Dancing Club?  
For the purpose of these measures the term ‘lap dancing club’ is a broad term 
encompassing certain venues that provide entertainment with a sexual content. 
In addition to lap dancing, this may also include, but is not limited to, stripping, 
table dancing and pole dancing. The Policing and Crime Bill will classify such 
premises as sex encounter venues, which is defined as premises where “relevant 
entertainment is provided before a live audience for the financial gain of the 
organiser or the entertainer”. For the purpose of the legislation “relevant 
entertainment” is defined as any live performance or display of nudity, “which is 
of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must be reasonably assumed to 
be provided solely or principally for the purposes of sexually stimulating any 
member of an audience (whether by verbal of other means”. The Bill contains an 
exemption for premises where “relevant entertainment” is provided on an 
infrequent basis, defined as no more than 11 occasions in a 12 month period with 
a period of more than one month between each occasion.  
 
Number of establishments affected  
Currently, existing lap-dancing clubs will most likely be regulated under the 
Licensing Act 2003 and are therefore difficult to differentiate from other licensed 
premises and clubs. For this reason, the availability of accurate data on the 
number of premises that will be affected by this legislation is limited. Some 
estimates state that there are roughly 300 existing lap-dancing clubs. The Lap 
Dancing Association put the figure closer to 150.  
How many of these clubs are actually affected will not be known until the 
licensing regime begins operating. There is the potential for an impact on lap 
dancing clubs in localities where local authorities choose to adopt the power and 
where communities choose to oppose license applications and renewals. 
However, while the impact may directly affect a large proportion of lap dancing 
clubs, owing to the relatively small size of this part of the sector the overall 
impact on the entertainment/leisure and the economy as a whole is likely to be 
small.  
 
Location of Lap Dancing Clubs  
For the reasons explained above, it is difficult to be precise about the distribution 
of lap dancing clubs in England and Wales. However, research provided by the 
campaign group Object suggests that while there are concentrations of venues in 
large metropolitan areas, such as London, Birmingham and Leeds, as might be 
expected, there are also multiple venues located in smaller cities and an 
increasing trend towards venues opening in towns and suburban areas. This 
research identifies close to 300 “lap dancing establishments”, which are located 
in roughly one third of all local authorities.  

200



Rationale  
Lap dancing premises currently require a premises licence under section 1 of the 
2003 Licensing Act. No special provisions are made in the 2003 Act for lap-
dancing clubs. If an application is submitted to the licensing authority for a 
premises licence the authority must grant the licence subject to certain 
mandatory conditions, the only relevant ones for lap dancing clubs being those 
related to how and when alcohol is supplied. 
 
It is only if relevant representations are made by an interested party (e.g. 
residents or local businesses) or a responsible authority (e.g. the police or fire 
services in the area) that the authority can, following a hearing, impose other 
conditions or reject the application. Even then, it will only be able to do so where 
such a step is necessary to promote one of the four licensing objectives set out in 
the Act – preventing crime and disorder; public safety; prevention of public 
nuisance; the protection of children from harm.  
 
Premises licences are not subject to renewal and last until they are revoked, 
suspended, surrendered or the holder becomes mentally unstable, insolvent or 
dies (sections 26 to 28). They can be reviewed following representations by an 
interested party or a responsible authority but the authority will only consider 
representations relating to one or more of the four licensing objectives.  
 
As licensing authorities are unable to consider any objections on matters outside 
the scope of the four licensing objectives, the Government is aware that 
increasingly lap dancing club have been allowed to open despite widespread 
local opposition.1  
 
Therefore, following consultation with local authorities, the Government decided 
that local communities should be given more powers to control the number and 
location of lap dancing clubs in their area.  
 
Objectives  
To give local communities a stronger say over the establishment and location of 
lap-dancing clubs in their area and local authorities more power to reject 
applications for lap-dancing clubs or impose conditions on licences. To bring the 
licensing of lap-dancing clubs in line with other sex establishments such as sex 
shops and sex cinemas. To recognise that local people have legitimate concerns 
about where lap-dancing clubs are located. Under these provisions, local people 
will be able to object to an application for a lap-dancing club on the grounds that 
such an establishment would be inappropriate given the character of the area or, 
for instance, if located in a area that is primarily residential.  
 
 
 
1
A Growing Tide, Object, December 2008:  

http://www.object.org.uk/files/A%20Growing%20Tide%20Update%20Dec%202008.pdf 

201



Options  
Option 1 - Do Nothing, maintain the status quo.  
 
Option 2 - Reclassify lap-dancing clubs as 'Sex Establishments' under the 1982 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act. 
 
Option 2 is the preferred option - Placing lap-dancing clubs under the category of 
'Sex Establishments' as defined by the 1982 Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act Those local authorities who resolve to adopt Schedule 3, as 
amended, will be able to impose a wider variety conditions on lap dancing clubs 
e.g. relating to opening hours, adverts, visibility of the interior to passers by. 
Local authorities will also be able to refuse to grant or renew a licence on the 
grounds that such a club would be inappropriate having regard to the character 
of the area or the total number of similar premises in the locality.  
 
Similarly, local people will be able to make written representations to the local 
authorities on these grounds, rather than being limited to making representations 
based on the four licensing objectives found in the 2003 Act. Licenses would only 
last a maximum of one year before requiring renewal.  
 
The Lap Dancing Association proposed an alternative approach that included 
using planning legislation to control the establishment of lap dancing clubs. This 
approach was considered but was opposed by the Local Government 
Association and some industry representatives2 who argued that it would be 
overly complicated and bureaucratic. It was also felt that this approach would not 
adequately address the issue of giving communities a stronger say.  
 
Appraisal  
Option 2 - Reclassify lap-dancing clubs as 'Sex Establishments' under the 
1982 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act  
 
Costs  
Costs to Local Authorities  
The level of take-up by local authorities is difficult to predict as it will depend 
greatly on local circumstances and where lap dancing clubs are located. 
Responses to the Department for Culture, Media and Sports (DCMS) 
consultation suggest that these measures are well supported by local authorities 
and therefore we anticipate a relatively high take-up, especially in those areas 
where lap dancing clubs are located or where specific issues relating to 
applications for lap dancing clubs have arisen in the past.  
 
Those local authorities that resolve to adopt the provisions will face costs of 
processing applications and monitoring premises to ensure compliance. There 
may also be costs associated with enforcement action that is required where 
 
2 

Peter Stringfellow’s evidence to Department of Culture Media & Sport Select Committee hearing 

– 25 November 2008  

202



premises breach their licence conditions or operate without a licence. Under the 
new provisions, local authorities are able to recover costs by setting a 
‘reasonable fee’ for licence applications. This is accounted for in the summary 
table.  
 
Costs to Business – Based on 300 establishments  
Costs to local authorities will be recovered from new applicants and existing club 
operators when licenses are renewed. In addition all clubs will be faced with the 
additional administration and legal costs of applying for a new sex establishment 
licence and the subsequent annual renewals and some may choose to offer 
alternative entertainment in order not to face more regular licensing.  
 
Additional costs to the sector arise where applications are rejected under the new 
act where they would previously have been approved or where an application for 
renewal was not previously required. In some cases the club will be licensed to 
continue trading in the same way but in others the license may be revoked or 
refused, necessitating either a change in the type of entertainment offered or 
closure of the club. For applications for new clubs it may restrict the potential 
areas or locations within an area where the club can operate and impact on 
revenue where the location is less favourable for the business. In some cases 
this may deter investment altogether. Where renewals are rejected there will be 
some loss of revenue if the club has to revert to an alternative role under the 
2003 Licensing Act or sunk costs where the club chooses to close.  
 
Legislation will be clearly directed at regulating sex establishments and not any 
premises that might occasionally feature performances, exhibitions or 
entertainment that involves nudity or sexual stimulation, such as theatrical 
performances/art or a one-off or infrequent performances of ‘relevant 
entertainment’ in a pub or nightclub.  
 
It is possible that this legislation may capture some premises, such as ‘peep 
shows’ that operate outside London and are not currently licensed under the 
Licensing Act 2003, but do provide services or performances that are for the 
purpose of sexual stimulation. The number of such premises is not known but is 
believed to be very low.  
 
The Government is proposing a transitional period of one year for business to 
comply with the new regime. This will delay the full impact on business, 
especially the cost associated with closures or venues being forced to operate 
without ‘relevant entertainment’, for this period.  
 
The Cost of a Sex Establishment Licence  
Information provided by the Lap Dancing Association based on the current cost 
of sex establishment licences in local authorities across UK puts the average fee 
for a new licence at £5447 and £4981 for a renewal.  

203



Therefore the total cost of applying for a licence in year 1 would be around £1.6m 
for 300 premises.  
 
After year 1 the cost burden as a result of renewing sex establishment on 
licenses on a yearly basis would be around £1.5m. However, this figure may be 
lower after year 1 if there are closures or premises continue to operate without 
‘relevant entertainment’.  
 
Administrative Costs  
The average administrative cost of applying for a new licence is estimated to be 
around £2,000 per application resulting in a total cost to industry of approximately 
£600,000 per year.3  However, as with the application fee, this figure may be 
lower after year 1 if there are closures or premises continue to operate without 
‘relevant entertainment. 
 
Cost of Operating Without ‘Relevant Entertainment’  
Where existing venues are refused a sex establishment licence or decide that 
applying for a licence would be too costly, they may decide to continue to operate 
without ‘relevant entertainment’, for example as a nightclub, bar or pub. This may 
incur a loss of revenue. We have estimated that this lost revenue would 
represent 20% of a premises’ annual turnover. We have also estimated that this 
could apply to up to 10% of all existing lap dancing venues. These figures should 
only be seen as indicative and do not necessarily represent a likely outcome.  
 
Assuming that existing lap dancing clubs consist of Micro (1-9 employees) and 
Small (9 – 50 employees) businesses at a ratio of 50/50, we have estimated that 
the cost to industry would be up to around £1,225 .4  
 
Cost of Business Closures  
Where existing venues are refused a sex establishment licence or decide that 
applying for a licence would be too costly, they maybe forced to close. We have 
estimated that this could apply to up to 5% of all existing lap dancing clubs.  
 
Assuming that existing lap dancing clubs consist of Micro (1-9 employees) and 
Small (9 – 50 employees) businesses at a ratio of 50/50, we have estimated that 
the cost to industry would be up to around £3,060.5  
 
Benefits  
 

• These new powers will allow local communities to have a greater say over 
the establishment and location and of lap-dancing clubs in their area and 
will bring the licensing of lap-dancing clubs in line with the licensing of  

 
3 Figure provided by the Lap Dancing Association  
4 Figures based on Department for Business, Innovation and Skills SME statistics.  
5 

Figures based on Department for Business, Innovation and Skills SME statistics.  

204



other sex establishments such as sex shops and sex cinemas, which are 
currently licensed under the 1982 Act.  

• Where the provision adopted local people will be able to object to lap-
dancing clubs if they felt that it would adversely impact the character of a 
particular area or, for example, that its proximity to a school or place of 
worship was inappropriate.  

• Gives local authorities more scope to reject applications for lap-dancing 
clubs or impose conditions on their licences if they deem that such 
measures are necessary to address the concerns of local people.  

 
Assessment of the costs and benefits  
The purpose of this policy is to empower local communities and give them more 
say over the make-up and character of their local area. Where they have 
reasonable and legitimate concerns about the location or establishment of lap-
dancing clubs, local authorities will have more powers to consider these 
concerns when reviewing a licence application.  
The Government acknowledges that costs will fall to industry as a result of this 
legislation, and some lap-dancing clubs may close or be restricted from operated 
from certain locations. However, we believe that the cost to industry is 
outweighed by the wider objective of giving power to local communities to control 
the establishment and location of lap dancing clubs.  
 
Risks  
Option 2 - Reclassify lap-dancing clubs as 'Sex Establishments' under the 
1982 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act  
There is a risk that some local authorities may decide not to adopt the new 
legislation. However, we believe this is a small risk as a significant number of 
local authorities have indicated their support for this legislation, as it will allow 
them to regulation lap dancing clubs and similar establishment more effectively.  
 
Enforcement  
As existing lap-dancing clubs are already licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 
there will be no additional licensed premises as a result of this policy. Therefore, 
we do not anticipate that these proposals will result in significant increased 
enforcement costs for the police or local authorities or subsequent prosecution 
costs for the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS).  
 
In addition, experience of the Licensing Act 2003 suggests that very few licence 
breaches result in prosecutions as local authorities have the power to deal with 
such offences by other means.  In order to minimise transition costs and reduce 
the potential for licensees inadvertently failing to comply with the new legislation 
(with the resultant costs for the police or local authorities, CPS and Her Majesty’s 
Court Service) local authorities will be encouraged to work closely with industry 
and promote any legislative changes prior to adopting the provisions in their 
area.  
 

205



Implementation  
The Government is proposing to commence these provisions in April 2010. 
However, they will only come into force in individual local authority areas when 
the relevant local authority resolves to adopt them. Once a local authority has 
passed a resolution to adopt the provisions the Government is proposing that 
there will be a transitional period that lasts for 12 months.  
 
Monitoring and Evaluation  
The effectiveness of the new regime and the impact on industry and local 
authorities will be monitored on an ongoing basis.  
 

Specific Impact Tests: Checklist  
 

 
Use the table below to demonstrate how broadly you have considered the 
potential impacts of your policy options.  
 
Ensure that the results of any tests that impact on the cost-benefit analysis 
are contained within the main evidence base; other results may be 
annexed.  
 

Type of testing undertaken  Results in 
Evidence Base?  

Results 
annexed?  

Competition Assessment  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Small Firms Impact Test  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Legal Aid  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Sustainable Development  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Carbon Assessment  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Other Environment  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Health Impact Assessment  Yes/No  Yes/No 

Race Equality  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Disability Equality  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Gender Equality  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Human Rights  Yes/No  Yes/No  

Rural Proofing  Yes/No  Yes/No  

 
  

206



 
 
 

207



 

208


	Agenda
	10 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	13 Hackney Carriages Unmet Demand Survey
	Item 13 - Halcrow Final Report
	Item 13 - Halcrow Appendix 1
	Item 13 - Halcrow Appendix 2
	Item 13 - Halcrow Appendix 3
	Item 13 - Halcrow Appendix 4
	Item 13 - Halcrow Appendix 5
	Item 13 - Appended Letter

	14 Hackney Carriages/Private Hire Trade Ethnicity Monitoring
	15 Street Trading Policy
	16 Policing and Crime Bill - Sex Establishments Consultation

